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5BM BANK (MAURITIUS)LTD
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 la

The Board of Directors of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd is appointed to act an behalf of its sole shareholder, SBM
{Bank) Holdings Ltd. A professional management team Is appainted to run the business of SBM Bank (Mauritius)
Ltd (the "Bank’) under the oversight of the Board of Directors. The Board is directly accountable to the
shareholder and each year the Bank holds an Annual Meeting at which the directors report te the shareholder
on the performance of the Bank and its future plans and strategies. They also submit themselves far re-election
as directors al the Annual Meeting, as laid out in the Constitution and the National Code of Corporate
Governance for Mauritius.

The Board of Directors' key purpose is to ensure the Bank's prosperity by collectively directing its affairs via
delegated authorily, whilst meeting the appropriate interests of its stakeholders, In addition to business and
financial issues, the Beard of Directors is also called upon to deal with the challenges and issues relating to
corporale governance, corporate social responsibility and corporate ethics. The Board musl ensure that
appropriate internal controls and risk management processes are set in place for the proper running of the
business,

The Risk Management Committee has the respensibility to set the risk strategy, advise the Board on risk issues
and monitor the risk management processes. Amongst others, it sets and reviews policies for the management
of risks particularly in the areas of credit, market, interest, liquidity, operational and technological risks
including legal, reputalional and strategic risks, ensuring that adequate procedures and limits as well as
appropriate methodologies and systems are in place.

The Audit Commitlee critically reviews the financial and interim reports, prospectus and other financial
circulars/ documents and is responsible, amongst others, for reviewing the systems of internal controls to
ascertain their adequacy and efiectiveness. It reviews and discusses any material weaknesses identified in
controls and deficiencies in system, and il necessary, recommends additional procedures to enhance the
system of internal controls,

An internal audit function, whose Head also reports directly to the Audit Committee, is in place lo ensure that
the Bank's operations are conducted according to the established practices by providing an independent and
objective assurance, and by advising on best practices. The Audit Committee reviews reports from internal and
external auditors and monitors relevant actions taken by management.

The Risk Managemenl section contained in the Annual Report provides further details on the processes for risk
management and internal controls.

The directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge and belief, that:

(i) an effective system of internal controls and robust risk management practices, including compliance,
has been pul in place to safeguard the assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities;

(i) the Bank has neither the Intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of its
operations in the foreseeable future;

(i the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank for the year ended
31 December 2021 and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the reguirements of the Banking Act 2004, Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and the
Financial Reporting Act 2004 and applicable Bank of Mauritius (BOM) guidelines and appropriate
accounting policies. These were supported by reasonable and prudent judgments, and estimates have
been used consistently;

(iv) they continuously review the implications of corporate governance best practices and are of the
opinion that the Bank complies with the requirement of the National Code of Corporate Governance
for Mauritius in all material aspects ar has explained non-compliance; and

{v) preper accounting records have been kept, in accordance wilh Lhe requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 and are free from misstatements.



SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 1.b

The external auditors, Deloitte have independently given their opinion in their audit report as set out on pages
4to7.

chenin Visvanaden Soondram

Anoop Kumar Milamber
rson, Audit Committee Chairman

Chief Executive

28 March 2022



SBEM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ) 2.

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared by management., which is responsible for thelr
integrity, consistency, objectivity and reliability. International Financial Reporting Standards, as well as the
requirements of the Banking Acl 2004 and the guidelines issued thereunder, have been applied and
management has exercised its judgement and made best estimates where desmed necessary.

The Bank has designed and maintained its accounting systems, related internal controls and supporting
procedures, to provide reasonable assurance that financial records are complete and accurate and that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposal. These supporting procedures include careful
selection and training of gualified statf, the implementation of organisation and governance structures
providing a well-defined division of responsibilities, authorisation levels and accountability for performance,
and the communication of the Bank's poelicies, procedures manuals and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius
throughoul Lhe Bank.

The Bank's Board of Directors, acting in part through the Audit Committee, Corporate Governance and Conduct
Review Committee and Risk Management Cammittee, which comprised mostly independent directors, oversees
management's responsibility for financial reporting, internal controls, assessment and control of major risk
areas, and assessment of significant and related party transactions,

The Bank's internal auditar, who has full and free access to the Audit Committee, conducls a well-designed
program aof internal audits. In addition, the Bank's compliance function maintains policles, procedures and
pragrams directed at ensuring compliance with requlatory requirements,

Pursuant to the provisions of the Banking Act 2004, the Bank of Mauritius makes such examination and inquiry
into the operations and affairs of the Bank as it deems necessary,

The Bank's external auditors, Deloitte, have Tull and free access to the Board of Direclors and its committees to
discuss the audit and matters arising therefrom, such as their observations on the fairness of financial
reporting and the adequacy of internal controls.

++++++++

mbaal Kichenin Visvanaden Soondram
iflperson, Audit Committee Chairman

Chiel Executive

28 March 2022



S5BM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
REPORT FROM THE COMPANY'S SECRETARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 3.

We certify to the best of our knowledge and belief that the Bank has filed with the Registrar of Companies all
such returns as are required of the Bank under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 in terms of Section 166 (d).

.............. = e

Preshnee™Ramchurn
Company Secretary

28 March 2022
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Jth-8th floor, Standard Chartered Tower
19-21 Bank Street

Cybercity

Ebéne 72201

Mauritius

Independent auditor’s report to the Sharehalder of il
SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statemenits of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd {the “Bank” and the “Public Interest Entity") set
out on pages 8 Lo 104, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of
profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes ta the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial pasition of the Bank as at
31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) and comply with the requirements of the Mauritius Com panies Act
2001, the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and the Banking Act 2004,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including international Independence Stondards) (the "IESBA Code”), and we have fullilled our
ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for expected credit losses - Financial assets which are not credit impaired

Our audit procedures included amongst others:

* Testing of the design and operating effectiveness of
the key controls over the completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs, and significant
judgements, estimates and assumptions used in the
models;

IFRS 3 requires the Bank to recognise expected credit losses
(‘ECL') on financial instruments, which involves significant
judgements and estimates. The key areas where we identified
greater levels of management judgements and estimates and
therefore increased levels of audit focus in the application of
IFRS 9 are:

* Model estimations = the Bank has used a statistical model .
to estimate ECLs depending on type of portfolio which
involves determining Probabilities of Default {'PD’), Loss
Given Default ('LGD’), and Expasures at Default {'EAD’).
The PD and LGD models used in the loan portfolios are

Evaluating controls aver model monitoring and
validation;

* Using specialist team in performing certaln
procedures in relation to model validation;

the key drivers of the ECL results and are therefore the .

mast significant areas of judgements and estimates used
in the ECL modelling approach.

Determining the criteria for significant increase in credit
risk (*SICR") and identifying SICR- These criteria are highly
Judgemental and can impact the ECL materially where
facilities have maturity of greater than 12 months,

Macra-Econamic Forecasts — IFRS @ requires to measure
ECLs on a farward-looking basis using the most appropriate
macra-economic forecasts. The macroeconomic forecasts
are estimates of future economic conditians,

Verifying the histarical data used in determination
of PD in the models;

Reviewing the criteria for staging of credit
exposures and ensure these are in line with the
requirements of IFRS 9 including any backstops used
in the methodology;

Assessing the appropriateness of the macro-
economic forecasts used;

Assessing the reasonableness of the qualitative
adjustments {overlays) applied by management for
events not captured by the ECL models:




Deloitte.

Independent auditor’'s report to the Shareholder of
SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd [Cont’d)

Key audit matters (Cont’d)

7th-8th floor, Standard Chartered Tower
19-21 Bank Streat
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Mauritis

Key audit matter (Cont'd)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for expected credit losses - Financial assets which are not credit impaired (Cont'd)

* Economic scenarios — the Bank has used a range of future
economic conditions in light of the global pandemic of
COVID-18. Significant management judgement is applied in
determining the economic scenarias used and the
probability weightings applied, especially when considering
the current uncertain global economic environment,

¢ Qualitative adjustments - Adjustments to the model-driven
ECL results are accounted by management to address
known impairment model limitations or emerging trends,
Such adjustments are inherently uncertain and significant
management judgement is involved in estimating these
amounts.

Due to the significance of the judgements and estimates
applied in the computation of the expected credit losses, this
itern is considerad as a key audit matter.

The details of the policies and processes followed for the
determination of ECL are disclosed in Mote 37 to the financial
statements.

Independently assess prohability of default, loss given
default and exposure at default assumptions;

Testing the accuracy and completeness of ECL by
reperformance; and

Assessing whether the disclosures are in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 9.

Provision for expected credit losses — Credit impaired assets

Provision for expected credit losses on credit-impaired loans
and advances to non-bank customers and memorandum items
at 31 Decermber 2021 amount to MUR 9,505 million and the
charge to profit or loss for the year amount to MUR 1,993
million,

The use of assumptions for the measurement of provision for
expected credit losses is subjective due to the level of
judgement applied by Management.

Changes in the assumptions and the methodology applied
may have a major impact on the measurement of allowance
for credit impairment.

The details of allowance for credit impairment on loans and
advances to non-bank customers and memorandum items are
disclosed in Notes &(c), 22 and 32 to the financial statements.

The most significant judgements / matters are:

-whether impairment events have occurred
-valuation of collateral and future cash flows
-management judgements and assumptions used

Due to the significance of the judgements applied in the
identification of credit-impaired facilities and determination of
the provision for expected credit losses, this item is considerad
as a key audit matter.,

Our audit procedures included amongst athers:

Obtaining audit evidence in respect of key controls
over the processes for identification of impairment
events, impaired assets and impairment assessimant;
Inspecting the minutes of Impaired Advances Review
Forum, Management Credit Forum, Board Risk
Committee and Board to ensure that there are
governance caontrols in place in relation to assessment
of allowance for credit impairment;

Challenging the methodologies applied by using our
industry knowledge and experience;

Obtaining audit evidence of management judgements
and assumptions, especially focusing on the
consistency of the approach; and

Performing a risk-based test of loans and advances to
customers to ensure timely identification of
impairment and for impaired loans to ensure
appropriate allowance for credit impairment; and
Assessing whether the disclosures are in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 9.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The ather informatiaon, abtained at the date of this auditor's report,
comprises the About SBM, Chairperson’s letter, Chief Executive Officer's |etter, Board of Directors, Corporate Profile, Strategy
Report, Financial Review, Corporate Governance Report, Risk Management Report, Statement of Directors’ responsibility,
Statement of management's responsibility for financial reporting and Report from the Company Secretary, Management
Discussion and Analysis but, does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (Cont’d)

Other information (Cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other inform ation,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Corparate Governonce Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement of the
Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the annual report, the Public Interest Entity
has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financlal Reporting Act 2004, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001,
the Banking Act 2004 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and they are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable gssurance
is @ high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 154s will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due ta fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal contrel refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or cenditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scape and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we.identify during our audit,
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SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (Cont'd)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Maouritius Companies Act 2001
In accardance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

*  we have no relationship with, ar interest in, the Bank and its subsidiaries other than in our capacities as auditor and
tax advisor;

*  we have obtained all information and explanations that we have reguired; and

*  inow opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as appears from our exarnination of those
recards.

Bonking Act 2004
*  Inour opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year and

are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the provisions of the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations
and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius; and

= the explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Bank were satisfactory.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the Bank's shareholder, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Rank's shareholder those matters we are
required to state to the shareholder in an auditor's report and for no other purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank’s shareholders as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte R. Srinivasa Sankar, FCA
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC
28 March 2022



SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PGSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 a.
31 December 31 Degember 31 December
Maotes 2021 2020 2019
MUR* Q00 MUR* 000 WMUR' 000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 40,281,422 16,749,335 15,386,859
Mandatory balances with central bank 11,203,833 9,749,384 2,326,006
Loans to and placements with banks 6 BT.';'I."B 3,130,387 5,174,088
Derivative linancial instruments 7 576,946 774,785 889,301
Loans and advances to non-bank customers a 9‘?,91&,360 99,038,527 993,025,404
Investmeant securities L 93,338,046 73,460,130
Property and equipment 10 2,582,331 2,599,568
Right-of-use assels 11 255,603 247,168
Intangible assels 12 2,145,280 2,526,156
Deferred tax assaks 18d 497,123 219,302
Other assols 13 T06,B83 791,859
Total assets 228,967,690 209,645,881
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 15 1,119,661 929,357
Dreposits from non-bank customers 16 190,004,270 173,258,702
Other borrowed funds 5 | 11,085,951 10,140,215
Derivative financial instruments s | 1165271 1,000,972
Lease liahility 11 | 233,590 240,180
Current tax liabil {kes 1Ba 246,774 487,139
Pension lability 14 I 724,082 334,005
Dther Habiiities 19 4,591,660 5,190,076
Total liabliit/es 255,990,127 209,171,259 191 580,646
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY )
Stated capital 20 400,000 400,000 400,000
Capltal contrioution 20 11,854,011 11,854,011 11,854,011
Retained earnings 6,675,006 4,595 878 3,777,262
Qther reserves 3a 1,653,685 2,946,542 2,033,962
Total equity | 20,582,702 19,796,431 18,065,235
Total liabilities and equity 276,572,829 228,967,690 209,645 BA1

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for [ssue on 28 March 2022,

Anoop Kumar Hlll-mhar Visvanaden Soondram
Chief Executive Chairpefson, Audit Committes Chalrman

The notes on pages 13 te 104 form an integral part of these financial statements,



SEM BANK (MAURITIUS)ILTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 9,
Blﬁeumbgr 31 Decembaer 31 Decembear
Nales 2021 2020 2019
Continuing Operations MUR® 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 0G0
Interest incame using the effective interest method 6,453,235 6,935,645 7,834,260
Other interest incame 202,837 291,549 145,744
Interest expense using the elfective interest method {548,130} (1,062,203) (2,023,529)
Mher interest expense 3395.'1‘1& (434, 831) (163,906)
Net interest income 25 5,717,227 5,730,180 5,792,569
Fee and commission income 1,130,243 971,350 1,076,461
Fae and commission expense (53,630 {36.700) (31, 716)
Met fee and commission income 26 1,076,613 934,650 1,044,745
Other Income
Net trading income 27 972,356 B27.551 1,097,350
et galns/{losses) from financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or loss 28 228,083 [29,218) (92 289)
el gains on derecognition of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income L LRSI eeda0n
Other operating income B78 Ba4
i 2,002,217 1,230,325
Mon-interest income | 2,936,867 2.275.070
Operating Income 8.567.047 B,067.639
Perscnnef expenses 30 B (1,402,217} (1,697,838)
Depreciation of property and equipment 10 | 143,1 (150,225) (143,121)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11 | 6 i, 1 { {3T7.439) (49,941)
Amartisation of Intanginle assets 12 (457,997 (A74.547)
Olher expenses 31 (1,347,241) (1,009,095) (1,094,307
Non-interest expense (3,719,765)  (3,056573)  (3.459,754)
Profit before credit loss expense 4885916 5,610,074 4,607,885
Credil loss expense on financial assets and memorandum items 32 (2,347,518) (3,863,072) (3,606,666)
Profit befare (ncame tax 2,538,398 1,747,002 1,001,219
Tax expense 18b (448,211) (293,088) (501.452)
Profit far the year 2,090,187 1,453,914 499,767

The nates on pages 13 1o 104 farm an integral part of these financial statements.




SBM BANK (MAURITIUSYLTD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 10.
31 December  31December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Prafit for the year 2,090,187 1,453,914 459, THT
Other camprehens ive income -
items that will not be reclassified lo profit or loss:
Inerease in revaluation of properly 10 = 754 204,358
Delerred tax on revaluation of property 1Bd s - (9,950)
Change I deferred tax rate on revaiuatian of property . . 118,392
Change in daterred tax rate on deflined benelit pension plan 3 0,923
Remeasurement of delined benefil pension pian 14 366,917 (734,415) (203,665)
Deferred tax on remeasurement of defingd banefit pansion plan 18d (25,684) 51,409 14,271
Revaluation gains on equity Instruments measured at FYTOC) k] 404 997 -
341,637 (681,2585) 115,333
Hems thal may be raclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Investment securities measured at FVTOCI (Debt instruments) .
Maovermnent in fair value during the year {653,959} Z,161.068 608,876
Reclassification of logses included in profit or loss on derecognitlan (588,038) {1,203,008) (224,380
Loss ailowance relating to debt Instruments held at FYTOCT 6,514 475 (6,37m
{1,245,553) 958,537 378,126
Total olher camprehensive (loss) f Income (903,916} 277.282 493,449
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,186,271 1,731,196 993,216

The notes an pages 13 to 104 form an inbegral part of tnese financial statements.
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SBM BANK (MAURITIUS)LTD
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 12.
31 December 31 December 31 December
Motes 2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000D MUR"' 000 MLR' 000

Net cash generated from operating activities a3 30,508,554 695,238 3,844,995
Investing actlvities

Acquisition af properly and equipment 10 (586,863) £132,829) (91,145)
Acquisition of intangitle assets 12 (88,593) (83,489) (52,005)
Disposal of property and equipment z 1329 2,589
Acquisition af equity investments 9 {2,057) - 2
Met cash used In Investing activities (677,513} (214,989 (140,651)
Financing activities

Repayment of principal portion of lease kabilities (B2,610) (66,227) {71,993)
Met change In ather borrowed funds (5,810,551) 945,736 923,777
Capital contribution recefved during the year 20 = = Q00,000
Dividend paid on ordinary shares 21 (400,000} . {1.319,000)
Met cash (used In) / generated from financing activities {6,293,161) 879,509 432,784
Net change In cash and cash equivalents 2,3,53'?;3_3:.1 1,359,758 4,137,128
Expected credil loss on cash and cash equivalents (5,793) 2,678 38,059
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 5 16,749,335 15,386,899 11,211,712
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year g 40,281,422 16,749,335 15,386,899

The notes an pages 13 to 104 lorm an integral part of these financial statements.
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1A, GENERAL INFORMATION

1B.

SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd ("the Bank") is 3 public company incorporated and demiclied in Mauritius. The address of its reqgistered
office ls SBM Tower, 1 Queen Elizabeth Il Avenue, Parl Louls, Mauritius. The Bank operates in the financial services seclor,
principally commerclal banking,

IMPACT OF COVID-19

Tho COVIO-19 pandemic has hil the waorld In unpracedentad ways. heightening risk with prolonged uncerlainly. As per World
Economic Outlook, the global growth is expected te moderate from 5.9% in 2021 to 4.4% in 2022_ This i5 expected ta Turther be
impacted by the current Russian-Ukraine war which |s naving an impact an the entire global economy by slowing growlh and
[4cking up Inflation that could fundamentally reshape the global economic order in the langer term. Mauritius taced a downgrade
of long-term igsuer rating by Moody's from Baal (o Baa2 on 04 March 2021 with neaative aitiook on account of the erosion ol
Mauritlus! fiecat and economic strengthas a result of the economic shack broughl on by the coronavirus pandemir.

Government suppart measures

In view of the challenges that the country is facing on its economic and trading sctivities, Mauritius being heavily dependenl an
the tourlsm sector including SMEs finked to the hospitality sector and the export industry; Lhe Government of Mauritius has taken
4 serles of accompanying measures including reviewing of menelary policies by the Bank of Mauritius (BOM) to enhance the
economic resilience of the country.

The measures were extended up Lo 30 June 2022 as the Bank of Mauritius commits towards maintaining financial stability,
consistent with its statutory responsioiiities.

Furthermore, some companies benefitted from support from the Mauritivs Investment Corporation (MIC) which has a5 main
abjective 1o assist systemically large, important and viable companies in Mauritius, which are linancially impacted a5 & result of
the COVID-19 pandemic and representing a direct threat to fnancial stabiliby.

Key impact on financial performance of the Bank:

COVID-19 is expecied Lo signilicantly disrupl the operating envirenment af financial institutions, Failewing are seme of fhe key
accounting and linancial repo rting considerations;

Loans and advances ta banks and cusfomers:
Credit risk

With & projonged shock on the economy mainly on the tourism sectar, the cradit quallly of the Bank's client base has deferiorated
owing te the Impact on their financial position, Although various measures have been taken o support different segments of the
economy. and oorders re-opened from October 2021, the recovery is still uncertain, The Mauritian government had set a target
ol welcaming 550,000 tourisls uver the next nine months (Oct-21 1o Jun-223 (350,000 of which should come by mid-January
2022). However, as of Feb-22 the expeclation was not reached,

Given the uncertainty of the pandemic and the Russian-Ukralne war, the Bank simulated three stress seenarlos based an the
futire economic recovery in bolh the local 2nd domestic marker. In its baseline scenaria, the Bank has considered that recovery
will centinue in 2022, GDP qrowth gains Stream with 2conomic sechors recovering from currenl crisis and Inflation remains
manageahie. No olher additional impairment other than budgeled was taken in Ihis scenario. This scenarin resulted |n a slight
Increasein the expecied credil loss amount,

Inils mild case scenario, the Bank has considered an underlying rationale thal economic slump will prolong in 2022, GDP growth
is slow with subdued macroeconomic condilions with elevated inflatian rates and high debt levels and high volalifily in foreign
exchange inarkets. The Bank has thus, impacted its bock assuming lower grewth in advances, reduction In Net interest Income,
worsening credit ratings of corporate and SME cllents by an additional 1 notch down, Increase in probability of default premmium
en retail clients and taken a downside probability of defaull. The Bank ended with an increase in ECL within the Bank's appetite for
the eaming year ending 31 December 2022,
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1B. IMPACT OF COVID-19 (cont'd)
Loans and advances o banks and eustomers (cont'd)
Credit risk (cont'd

In 115 worsl-rase scenarin, the Bank has considered that the ecanomic slumg will aggravate in 2022, GO growlh remains low with
stagnation in tourlsm sector and shuggish private and public investrment. Major increase in voiatiity In foreign exchange markets
and sustained uptrend fn inflation rate leading to a deterioration in Mauritius soversion credit rating. Under this scenario, the
Bank anticipated higher specific provisioning for clients likely to move to stage 3 on lop of the siressed parameters considered
under fts mild scenaria,

Impact on Expected Credit Losses (ECL]

The Bank hes considered the wnpact of COVID-19 in ts financial stalements within different segments (corporates and SMES,
retail, bank and sovereigns) by updating iks ECL framewark to cater for higher level of uncertainly in markets both locally and
Internationally white remaining In line with (he statements refeased by local and international bodles with regards to IFRS 9 in a
COVID-12 environment (principally the Bank of Mauritius and 1A5E respectively)

The Bank has adopled 5 probabilistic appreach in determining lls MEVs due fo the uncertainties prevailing across markets. A
scenario weight approach (baseline, upside and downside) has been applied to reflect the lielihood of such event occurring based
on assessments of ecanomic and markel conditions relating to COVID-19 and the war. The scenarlos assumed were very bearish
Lo properly reflect the current and projected local and global econaomic enviranment.

The Bank ennanced its SICR assessment framework wsing mere objeclive and subjeclive factors to adapt to this unprecedent
condition, In-depth analysis was performed on exposures in COVID impacted sertors,

A post modelling adjustment was also applled oy the Bank an its PD, LGD and other qualitative considerations 1o restructured
exposures dpe Lo COVID-19 and has worked on & premium Lo be laken as additional overlay on account of uncertainty around the
Russian-Ukralne war and its impact on the Bank's ciient base.

Slage 3 exposures have heen assessed considering COVID-19 impact and adequate provisioning has been made by (he Bank a5 al
A1 December 2021,

Depesits from non-bank customers

Tne Bank nas expencnced renswal of its deposit base and s stralegy in the shorl to medium lerm remains to rafse cheaper
saurces of funding by increasing its deposils book.

Liguidity risk

The Bank's liquidity pesition rermained strong and as al 31 December 2021, Liquidily Coverage Ralko (LCR) sloed al 188% (31
December 2020: 154%). This Is well above the LCR ratlo af 100% required by BOM. The LCR exists to caler for this lype of stress
situation under which banks have to potentially operate. High Qualily Liquid Assels (securities) currently held by the Bank
Included some MUR L3T billion, mostly in local government securities and highly ratad USD sovereign securfties, The Bank has
been monitoring (ts lguidity 1evel on a daity basis to ensure that with the impact of COVID-19, there is no significant outflow.
Management has carried out 8 stress tes! based on several scenarfos Including deposit tlight, additional impairmant and provisfon
ol moratorium on capital repayment and |5 satisfled that the Bank's LCR will remaln within the requiatory fimits in all the mild and
medium stress scenarlos.
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1B8.

{a)

IMPACT OF COVID-19 (cont'd)

Capital adequacy ratia (CAR)

The Bank achieved a CAR ol 17.33% as at 31 December 2021 which is ahove the minimum requirement af 13.875%.

The Bank has prepared a capital plan In a crisis situation of COVID-19 by running a few scenarios to demonstrate how the

requlatory raties fluctuste based on dilferent ECL simulations. The Bank remains within the regulatery reguirements In the
Baseling, Moderate and Worst case Scenarlos for FY2021, FY2022 and FY2023 in the assumption of no dividend payaut.

The Bank cantinues to monitor the impact of COVID-19 through discussions with refevanl regulalory bodies domestically and with
the concerned counterparties given Lhe on-going developments and the high degree of uncertainty and by perfarming several
stressed testing scenarios,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARD AND INTERPRETATION (IFRS)

In the current year, the Bank has applied all of (he new and revised Standard and Interpeetations Issued by the international
Accounting Standards Beard (the "IASE") and the international Financial Reparling Interpretations Committes (MIFRIC™Y of the
IASE that are relevant to its operations and effective for agcounting peniods begnning on 01 January 2021,

Mew and revised (FRSs and IFRICS
The foliowing relevant rovised Standards have been applied in these financial stalements. Thelr application nas not had any

significant Impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior periods but may atiect the accounting treatment for fulure
transactions or arrangements,

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments reqarding replacement [ssues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - dmendments regarding replacement lssues in the context of the IBOR raform

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendment to extend the exemption from assessing whaether o COVID-19-related rent concessian is a lease
moditication

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
The adoption of the amendments had no impact an the financial performance and financial position of the Bank,
Impact of the (nitial application of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In the pnor year, the Bank adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rale Benchmark Relorm—Amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 35
and FRS 7, These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to sllow hedge accounting to continue for affected
hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged ltems or hedglng Instruments are amended as a resull ol (he inlerest
rate benchmark reform.

In the turrent year, the Bank adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to RS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Adopting these amendments enables the Bank to retlect the effects of transitioning from interbank
offered rates (|{BOR) to alternalive benchmark Interesl rates {also referred to as 'risk free rales’ ar RFRS) withoul giving rise to
accounting impacts that would nol provide useful information to users of financial statements,

Both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 amendments are relevant lo the Bank because il applies hedge accounling to Hs interest rate
benchmark exposures. However, in the current perlod no modiflcations in response (o the reform have been made to the Bank's
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments that mature post Z0Z1(the date by which the reform i5 expected to be
implernented] and hence there are no financizl impacl during the year ended 31 December 2021,

Delaits of the derivative and non-derlvative linancial instruments alfected by the interest rate benchmark reform together with a
summary of the actions taken by the Bank to manage the rishs relaling o the reform are disclosed in Note 37{d)i).
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARD AND INTERPRETATION (IFRS) (CONT'D)
{a)  Mew and revised [FRSs and IFRICs (conl'd)

Impact af the initial application of Interest Rate Banchmark Reform fcont'd)

The amendments are relevant lor Lhe lotlowing types of hedging relationstips and financlal instruments of the Bank, all o1 which

extend bevond 20212
Falr vatue hedges where LIBOR-finked derivatives are designated as-a lair value hedge of fixad rate debt in raspect of the USD
LIBOR and Eura LIBOR risk compunent
Term depesits and loan bo customers which reference LIBORS ang are sublect to the interest rate benchmark refarm
Interest rabe swaps and cross currency swaps linked with USD LIBOR

The application of the amendments affects tha Bank's accounting In the following ways:

Ihe Bank has lssued USD and Ewro denominated fixed rale debt that ks subject to a fair value hedge using USD and Euro fized
10 USD and EURD LIBOR interest rate swaps. The amendments permit continuation ol hedge accounting even if in the fulure
the hedged benchmark interast rates, USD and Eure LIBOR, may no longer be separately identifiable and there is uncertainty
aboul the replacement of the fioating interest rates included in the interest rate swaps.

“ The Bank wili not discontinue hedge accounting should the retrospective assessment of hedge elfecliveness fall outside the
H0-125 per eent range and the hedging relationship is subject to interest rale banchmark refarms. Far thase hedging
relationships that are not subject to Ihe interest rate benchmark refarms the entity continues (o ceasa hedge accounting |
retrospective effectiveness is outside the 80-125 per cenl range.

As a resull of the phase 2 amendments;

= When the contractual terms of the Bank's linancial instruments will be amended a5 8 direct conseguence ol the interest rate
benchmark refarm and the new basis for determining the contraciual cash Tlows is economically equivalent to the hasis
immediately preceding lhe change, the Bank will change Lhe basis for determining the contraciual cash flews prospectively by
revising the effective interest rate. If additionsl changes are made, which ere not directly relaied to the reform, lhe
applicabie requirernents of IFRS 9 are applied to the other changes.

- When changes will be made to the hedging instruments, hedged item and hedged risk as a resuit of the Intersst rate
benchmark reform, Ihe Bank will update the hedge documentation without discontinuing the hedoing relationship,

(b} New and revised IFRS5s and IFRICs in [ssve bot nod yof effective

|45 1 Presantalion of Financizi Statements - Amendments to defer the effective date of the January 2020 amendments (efiective
01 January 2023)

145 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments reqarding classification ol liabilities (effective 01 January 20233

In5 1 Preseniation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the disciosure of accolnting policies (effective 01 January
2023}

IAG & Arcaunting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding the definition of accounting
estimates (elfeclive 01 January 2023}

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding deferred lax an l2ases and decommissioning abligations (etfective 01 tanuary
2023

IAS 14 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a company from deducting {rom the cost of property, plant and
equipment ameunts received from selling itemns produced while the company |s preparing the asset for Its intended use (effective
01 January 2022)

145 37 Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assets - Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing
whether a contracl s onerous (effective Q1 January 20223

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments = Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2008 - 2020 (fees in the '10
per cent’ test for derecognition of financial llabilities) (effective 01 January 20221

The Directors anticipate that these amendments will be applied in the financlal statements for lhe annual perinds heginning on the
respaclive dates as Indicated above. The Directors have not yet had an opporlunity to consider the polential impacl of lhe
application of fnose amendments,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Biasls of preparation

The Tinancial statomenrts have Deen prepased on the Mistorics cost basis, except for cectain property and sguipment ang financial instruments nat
are meavlred ot rovaloed smounts o (2ir valse a3 explained in Ine accounting policies, The fnancial statements are prescnted in Mauritian Rupse,
whith ki the Bank's functional and presentation cusrency.

Histarizal cost it genzraily baced an the 1air value of Lhe censidaration given n exchange for goods and services.

Fair valuw s the price that wowd be received (o sell an assel or paid bo bransier a liabiily inan craery transactkan oelwesn macket participants at the
measurement doke, regardless of whethar that price i directly observalibe or estimated wiing valuation Lechaloue. In estimating the Tair valwe of an
assel or labiity the Bank 138as inte actount the characteristics of the atesl o Eability il markel participants would take inla accound those
characterislics when pricing the assel or Fabilily at the measuremend date, Falr vakee for measurement and/or disciosure porposes in these financial
statements Is determined on such a basic, excopt for share-based paymenl Iransactions that ars within (e scooe of IFRS 2, seasing transactions that
are within the scope ¢l IFRS L6, and measuremants that have some smilarities bo far value bl are nol fair value, such a5 net reafsablie valee in 1AS
2 orvalus Inuse In (A5 36,

Statement of compliance
The lisanclal staterments have bean prepared in accordance with International Finsncial Reporting Standards (FRSs), a3 issued by e International

Accounling Standands Board (IASEY and in compliance with the Maurillus Companies Act 2001, ihe Banking Act 2004, the Guidelines and Guidanee
Notes lzsrad by the Bank of Mauritiue and the Financial Reporting Act 2004,

Pregentation of financial statements

Thi financial statements are presooted in Mauritinn Rupess CMUR') and ail values-are rounded Lo the nearest Thousand eacepl when otharsise
indicated, Thie Bank presents iLs statement of financial pasilion brosdly In order of Wity The recovery or setliement within 12 months alter the
reparting dats feorrmni) and more than 12 months after the reporting date fnea=curront) i% presented under each respective nots,

Recognltlon of income and sxpenses
Mel infarest Mcome

Inlefaal income and expense for all financlal insiruments except tor thase classified as hedd dor brading or these medsered or designaled sl Fair valug
through prafil and less (FVTPLY are recognised In "Mel Inferest lncame” i3 'Intorest Incama’ and interest avpense” in profit of loss using the sileclive
Imtarsst melhod.

For all finzncial instruments meadured ab amartived cont and interest-earning finandlal Instruments classifiod as vestmant securities measured at
Fair walue thraugh oiher compranensive income (FYTOCE, inferest income or axpanss is recorded 21 tha effective interest rate (EIRY, which Is the rate
Il gxaclly dissaunts eslimated fvfure cash payments or feceipts Ihrough the expected (e of 1ne financlal instrumend of a shorer period, whece
apprapriale, to the net candpmg amount of the financial asset or lmanctal Babillly, The calculation t3kes into account af contraciual lerms of the
financal instrurment (for examale, prepayment options) and intludes any lees o incremental costs that are directly attributabls 1o the instrument ang
are an inbeoral part of tha effectiva intorest rate, but not future credit losses.

The-snieres| income/ interest expanse i¢ calculated by applying the EIR (o (he gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired tinansinl 3ses (that s,
at tne amaortised codl of the financial asset before adpsting lor any espected eredil loss allowance), or to the amortised cost of linancial liabiies,
For credit-impaired finantial assots the interest income is calcwiated by appiying the EIR Lo the amortised costof Lhe credit-impairsd linancial assats
(Enat is. the grass carrying amount less the allowsnce for evpected credit losses (ECLsI.

For {inanceal assets o FYTPL, Iransaction costs are recognised n profid or foss at initigl recognition, Interest on financlal assats al FYTRL are
recagnised under other inlerest Income or other imerest expense.

el fee and convmission income

Fee Income eamead from Services provided

These fees include commission moome, sccount servicing lees, assol managemont, custody and other management and adviaory fees ., The foes are
Fecogmised 43 the related sefvices are provided. Loan commitment fees lar fodns that are likely Lo be drawn down and ether credit ritated fees are
deferrad-(togethar with any incremontal costs? and recognised 25 an atjustment 1o the EB on the loan. When it is unlikely 1hat a Soan will be drawn
davn, the lean commiment less are recognised over the commitment perisd on @ strabghl-fne basls. A cantract with & customer that reaults ina
recogaisen financial Instrument in the Band's financial statemants may be partially in the scope of ITRS 9 and partially &n the scope of IFRS 15, 1T his
Is the caze, then U Banh first applies IFRS S to separale and measure the past of the cantract that B in the scope of IFRS % and then applies IFRS 15
lo tha residual.

Eeeincome from providieg lransaction services

Cornmission and fees arising from negotiation of transactions with third parties, or parlicipating in the negotiation of a transaction lor a ihicg party is
recoghised on comasetion of the underiving transaction.

Lo and commission esparns

Fea and comnission capensa refate mainly to transaction and sevvice less, which are expensed a3 the services are recaived.

Ml Irading mcame

Resafts arising from traging activities include profit arising on dealings in foreign currencies; all gains and lesses Tram changes In lalr vatue and
dividents lor fnancial assels and Nhanclal labiiities hreid-far-trading.

Frofits arising from dealings in fareign clrrencies include gans and fasses from sped and lorward cantrocls and olher currency derivatlves. Deol
securities Income Inludes the results af buying anid selling and changes in the fair value of debl securities and debt securitios st short. The resulls
of trading money market instrumenls, interest rale swaps, colions and other derivatives are recorded under olher Interest rate nstruments.

Cainsflos ses from Mrancial adsets modsured at FYIPL

Galna of losses on assets, labilities and derivatives designabed in hedge retationships recogalses Tale value movements (exchding Interest) an batn
he neagad ibern and becging darivative ina fair value nedge retnliandtip, and hedge ineffectivenass fram {air value hedge relalionskips,

Gaint or [osses.on other fnancial ascets designated ad talr value through profit or loss recognizes lair vahes movemenis {eachuding interas) en thoss
[berms designated as falr value through prafit ar loss,
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
®#  Flnancial Instruments
Flranclal assets and Nabilties

Financial azsats and financial Nablilles (excluding reguler way trades) arg (ecegnised in thae staternent of financial posiion when (he Bank becaine &
warty b the contraciual prowisioms of the instrument. Recognised financial avsets and linancial abilitias are nifizily measured af fadr value, Aegular
way Wades are purchdscs o sales of financlal assots thak require selivery of assels within the time frame generally established by requlation or
convention i Ihe market place. Thess are recogaised using settlement date accounting and are sppiied both for financla? -aseets mandatarivy
maasured at FYTPL and tinancial assets measurzd at amortesed cost,
Transattion coels thal are @rectly stiributable o the acnouisEtion or 5506 of fnoncial assets and financial liahiltles father than financial asety and
financial fabilities sl FUTPL are added Lo or dedected from the Tair value of the financial assets or fmancial liabiities, a5 apprapriate, an Initial
FECOgmetion, Trafsacilon casts directly atinbietadls to the acquisiten ol linancial assets or financial labditias al EVTRL are secoqnisad Immeadiately in
prolit ar joss,
W ther bransaction price diffecs from falr vatue at inilial recognition, the entity will account 1o SUCh AiErEncE 25 fallows:
= il Fair vallue & evidenced by a qualed price in an active market for an Identical asset ar labiily or based on & valuation technigee that uses anly
data from obseyvahie markats, then the ifterencs is recognised in pralil or lass on mitlal recognition tLe. day L gralit ar lass);
- Inaltether casas, the lai value will be adjusted to bring It in line with the transactian price (e, day 1 prolit o loss wiil be deterrad by inciuding it
I the Inftial carmying amodnt of the asset ar liability),
Aiter initial recognilion, the deferred gain or kass will be relezsed Lo profil o loss on 3 ralional basis, oniv to tne extant tnat It arises irom a change | n
a factor (reluding timed thist matkel participants would take inle adcoinl vwhen pricing the assel or Babilily.
Financlal assets
Al fErancial A33ets are fecognised and derecognised an selllsment dale where lhe purchase or sale of a financial assel s under & conlracl whase
terms require dalivery of the financlal asset within the timaframe estaplished by the market, and sre initially measured 31 fair value, phas bransaction
costs, excepl lor Lhwse financial pssots classifled as at FYTPL.
Tramsaction costs directly attributatile o the acquisition of financlal assels classithed as &t FYTPL are recugnlsed Tmemadiately in prafit or loss, Foral
financial assels the amoon! pressnted an the statements of financial positlon represant all amounty rocsivable inchling interest accruals. All
recognised financlal assets thal are within the scope of 1FRS 9 are required o be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value on the tasis
af the antity's busingss model for mansging Uhe linancial assets and the contractual cash llow characleristics of e Mnancial assets,
deint instrumients ihal are keld within a business madel whose objeclive 5 to colbect the coniraclual cash fows, and thal have confracluad cash
Tlaws that are salely payments of principat and Interest on the princlpal amount outstanding (SEFD, are subsequently measured at amartised
debt instruments that are hald within a buginess model whose obiective |s both to collec) the conbractual cash llaws and Lo 260 1he debt
Instrumients, and that have contractual cash flows thal see SPPI, are subsequent ly measured st FYTOCE and
all athar debt fnstrumapts (e.q. depd insbruments managed an a fakr value basls, or held for sale} and aquily i 5 e ity
measured at FYTAL.

However, the entity maoy make ihe fallowing imevocatls el=ction [ designation al inilisd recognilion of a firancial asset on an asset-by-asse] basis,

e entity inay irravecably elect 10 present subsequent changes in faie walue of on equity investment thal ls nelther held for rading nor
cerilingenl consideration recognlsed by am acquirer In & busivess combination 1o which IFRS 3 agpites, In OCL; ang

= Ihe entily may Irrevocably designate @ dent Inslrument thal meels the amortised cost or FYTOCE criterla 85 measured a1 FYTRL if Boing so
eliminates or sigrilicantly reduces an accountlng mismatch (reforred Lo as tha Talr valug aption).

The Bank has rol designated any debl instruments that mest the amartised cost or FVTOCH erileria &1 measured ab FYTRL
et nstruments measured 8 amortised cost or at FYTOCI

Thia Bank sssesses the classification and messurement of a financial asset based on (he conlraclual cash low characteristics of 1w assel and Uhe
busingss model for managing the assel.

For an assel to be classified and measured af amortised cost or ot FVTOCH, its contrachial kenms should give rise Lo cash tiows that are SPP1, For the
purpase ol SPP test, principal is the lair value of the financial asset at Indflal recognition. Tnat principal amaunt may change aver the lile of the
financial axset {e.g. if there are repayments of princpal). interest corsisls of consideration Tor the teme value of money, for Lhe credt risk sssoclated
willi the principnl amount outstanding during & particular period of lime aod for obher basic lending risks and costs, a5 well as 3 protil margin, The
3PPl assessment (s made kn Lha currency nwhich tne financial a5set (s denominated

Eantractual tash lkws thal are SPP1 aro consistent with a basic ianding arrangament . Contractual terms Inat intradues sxpasure b riske ar valatikty
inthe contractisad cash fows that are unretsled Lo & basic lending arrangemaent, such as eaposure la changes In eguity prices or cammodily prices. do
il ghve rlse [0 contractual cash Hows that are SPRI. An ariginated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement Irrespective of
whether il Is 3 loan In 158 legal form.
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SUMMARY OF 5IGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Firamchal Inglruments (cont'd)

Flnanclal aisots feond 'd)

Debt instruments measured af amortised cast ar af FYTOCH foont )

An assessmant of business models lor maneging financial assets |5 fundamental to the classification of o financia! assel. The enlity determines the
buialness models at a level that reflects how graups of financial axsels are magnaged logether 1o schieve a particwar business objsctive. The oatity's
buziness madel dows net depand an management’s intentans 10F an individual instrement, therelore the budingss model assessment s performed a1 2
filgher level ol aggeegation rather than an an iInstrumentby-nstoemen; Dasks,

Fha Bank has mare than one business modiel lor managing {hair lnancial instruments which reffect how they manage their (inancial assets 1 arder 16
genverate cash fiows, The Dusiness madz1s determing whether cash Hows will result fram cellecting confractisnl cash fows, saliing fnancal assets or
Both. Tive Bank considers all refevant infor matien avaiable whan making the business model assessment.

However, this assessment is not perfarmed on Ihe basis of scenarlos (at the Bank does not reasonzbly expect te ocour, SUCh 63 ‘worst case’ or

‘slress Casg’ scanarigs. Thae Bank takes inte accaunt all relevan evidence avallabbe such as:

* how ine parformance of the Dusiness model nd the financiad 2ssots held within that business medel are evalusted and reparted Lo the entily's
ey management personnat;

the riske that alect the perfarmance of the business model tand the financial assels hield within thal business moded) and. in particular, the way
In wnich those risss are managed; S0

how managers 4l ne business afe compensated feg. whether (he compensalion is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
cortraclual cash Nows collacted).

At mitial recegnliion af & linancial asset, the Bank delermines whelher newly recogaised financial assels e part of an exisling business model or
whather they refiect (he commancament of a new tusiness moasl, The BaRk reassastes their husiness models a1 each repacting period be determipe
whether the tusiness models have changed since the preceding perdad. When a debt instrument measerad 31 FWTOCHs derecagniced, the cumulative
gainfloss previously recagniced in OCI |s reelagsitied from equity to profit or loss. Dabl inskiuments that art subseguently measured at amortised rast
o at FVTOC! are subjeet Lo imdiairment,

Finanelal ass0is measured at F¥TPL

Financial assels al FYTEL are:

- GRS with contractual cash flaws that are not SPPL; orfand

= assets thiad are held i@ businesy modsal other than held to collect contracteal cash flows of helo 1o collect 2nd seil or
= psseds gesignated sl FUTPL usimg e Tair walue option.

Thiest assels are measured at fair value, with ary gains/Insses arising on remeasurament recognised in prafit or fows,
Equity instruments deslgnated at FYTOC

on Initial recogaition, the entity may make an irrevocable section (on an instromend by instrument basish to designals Investments: in equity
[nstruments as at FYTOCL Designatton st FYTOC! ks not parmitied If the squity investment ix neld tor trading oF il i K cantingen! consideration
rRCognised by N acquiver in a businesy combination.

& flinancial axsel is held for trading i1
= it has been acquiced principsly for Lhe purpose of seding It in the near term; ar

= o initial recognition |t is part of & peitfollo of Wentified financial Instruments that Ihe 2ntity manages tagether and has evidence af & recenl
actunl pattern of sherl-term pradil Laking: ar

= itEs aderivalive fexcopl for 2 derivalive thal is a NMnanciadl Quaranies conlract or a designated and etiective hedging instrument).

InvestmentsIn equity Instruments al FYTAC! are Initiaity measured &1 1air value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are messured at fair value
with galns and losses arising lrom changes in falr value recognised in other comprenemsive income and acnimaated In the Ter valus ressive, The
cumulative gain or fass 13 not rectassilied (o prolit or loss en dispasal of 1he equity Investments, Tnstead, it & transterred to retaines earmings

Cash and cash equivalenls
Cashand cash equivalents are carried a1 smorlised cos| in the statament of nancis position.
Reclagsifications
il tive business model nder which the onlity halds financia assets cnanges, 1he financial Assets affected are reclassilied. The classification and
measurement reguireménts relaled to the new cateqory apply prospectivaly from the lirst day of the first reporiing perion telinwing the change in
business maodel that results In reciassilying the finoncisl assets. During the currenl financial year there 'was no change in 1ha business inoed urder
which the Bank halds financial assels and theretora no reciassifications were made.
Foreign eichange gaing and losses
The carrying amount of financlal assets that are denominated ina foreign currency is aetermined o 1hat forsign currency and transtated at the spot
rale al the wnd of sech reporting perfog, Specificaliy;
= for linancial essels measyred al amoclised cost, exchange differences are recognised In profit or loss;
= fordebt fnstruments measured at PYTOL), exchangs silferences on Lhe amortised cost ol 1 debi nsliument are recognised in prafit ar inss and
olher exchange oifferences are recognised In the OC) in fair vabue reserve;
for financial assats measured at FUTPL, exchangs differonces are recognized by profit or s snd

= Tor equaty instruments measured at FVTOCL eschange dillerences are tecognised [n Uhe OC1 b the falr value fresare,
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SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTTD)
Financisl instruments font'd]
Financial guarantves
I ihe ovdindry course of business, the Bank glves financlal guaran ees, consisting of teiters of cred|t, bank guarantees and acceptances
Financiad guaraniee conlracis issusd by an enlily are indially measared at thew Fair values ard, it not designated as at FVTPL and nat ansing from a
tramsler of & lranciat assel, are subseguantly measured at (he Digher of:
- ihe ameunt o1 1he foss ablowence delgrmined In accordance with IFRS-9; and
the ammurl Inithally recognised less; whare appropriate, cumuiative amount of (neome recognised in accordance with the enlily's pevene
rocopiilion pediches,
Ay incresse in the flabiilly refating to financial guarantees is recorded in Ihe statomeanls of profil or loss and other comprohansive income. The:
pramaim recelved |5 recegnized in the sialements of prolit or loss and alher comprehensive income in ‘Fres and commissian income' on a straighl-
lime basts over the life of the guarantee.
Impairment af inancla asse s
The Bank recognises ioss allowances lar ECLs on Lhe lollowing fing nosl instrumants that are nel measured al FYTRL:
= [0ans and BOVENCES T DARES And customers;
* faars o and placemants with tanks:
= inwestment sscurilies meesured ol amorlised cost;
+ westment securiiies measured &t FYTOCK
* foan commitments issued; and
+ financial quaranler contracts fzsued.
Ha lmpatment (055 is recognised on equily fnvestments designated ot FYTOC)

ECL33re required ta o measuded (hrough o s allewance at sn amoant equasl be:

- l@-month ECL, le, [Helime ECL that resull from (hese defsull evepls on tng Grancial Trstraments 1het ace posslble within 12 mantns aller the
teporimg dete, {reterred to as Stage L) or

= hulviretime ECL, L2, (ietime ECL BRAl fesull from all possible defaulk evepts ovar the fife of the financial instruments (referred to as Stage 2 and
Stage 3,

A loss sllowance for full Iletime ECL is requéred for a Anancial instroment ( the credit risk on that linancial instrument has increased sigaificantly
since inltial recognition. For all other finandial instrements, ECLs are measured at on amount equal o the LZ-manth ECL. More detalls on e
dotermination of a significant mcrease in oredit rish are provided in Mole 37 ().

ECLs are @ proba bility-weighled esiimate of the present value of credil josses. These are measurad ac Lbe present value of the differance between the
£ash flaws due Lo the enlily under Lhe conliact and the cash fiows (hat the entity expects to recelve arlsing from the welahiing e multiss future
economic soenarias. discounted at the assst's FIRL

Far undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the ditlerance between {he present value of the difference befween the contraciual cash flews thal sre
Gua to the entify il tne halder of the commétment draws sown the loan and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive if the kean it drawn down,

The Bank measures ECL on on indlvidual tasis, or oh 3 collective basts for portiollos of loans that share simiiar ecenomic risk characteristics. The
measienent of the loss sliowance is based on the presesd value of the asset’s expected cash lhows using the assel's oralnzl EIR. regardiess of
wheiher IEis measured an an individual Basis ar 8 eallective hatis.

For linancial guarantee contracls, 1he ECL s 1he difference between 1w expected payments Lo relmburse the holger ol the guarantese debt
imstremant fess any amaunts that the antity espects to recedve lonm the holder, Hha debbar or any other party,
Mare information on measerement of ECLs 5 prawided in Mole 37,
Cradit impadred financial azsels
A financiol assel is 'credit-impaived’ when one or more events that have a detrimental lmpact on the estimated Tulure cash flews of ihe financial asset
have accurred, Credit-impaired finencial assets are referred o as Stage 3 asssts.
Evidence of credit-impairment inchudes observabie data aboul the faollowing evenlts:
- signiticant linancial ifficulty of (ke basrower or issuer:
- Abreact of contract such as @ defaull ar past disd event;
= ine lender, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's Hrancial dfliculty, having granted 1o the barrower 8 concessian that
he lender would nod otherwise consider:
he disappoarance of an aclive marsol Tor a securily because of linancial difficuties; or
< Mhe purchaso af 3 lhancial assat ob a deap discount that reféacts the incurred credit inssea.
It miay net be possils to dentily 2 single dacrste evenl < instend, the combined ellect of several evenis may have caused financlal sssets to become
cregitimpaired. The Bank assesses whether debl nstruments that are linancial aszels measveed at amortised cost or FWTOC are credit-impairad at

each regorting date. To assess I soverelgn and corporate debt instrumenis are credit Impaired, ihe Denk considers factars such &% band yields, credit
ratings ard tha sbility of Lhe bormower Lo ralse funding.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial ingtrumants (cont'd)
Cradit mpalred franclal assets (oant'a)

# joan Is considered crodit-impairad when & concession s granted 1o e barrower due to @ deferiaratian In e Darrawer's linancial condition, unless
inere Is evidence that as a resill of granting the cencession the risk of nol recelving the confractual cash llows has roducad significantly zng thers
#re no olhwr Indicators of impadfrient. For financlal aszets wnere concessions are confemplated bt nat gramted the assel is desmad credll Impaired
when there is observable evidence of credit-impasrment including maeting the delinition of default. The definition of default {toe bebyw) includes
unlikelinets bo pay indlcators and a backstop i amounts are overdye for 90 days of more.

The Baak does not have purchazed or originaled credit Impaired financial asses,

Bardinition of de faull

Critical o fhe dgatermination of ECL Is the definition of aefaull. The definition of default & usad in measuring the amount of ECL and in the
determination of whether the loss allowance (s based an 12anonih ar lfétime ECL, a5 defaull is 3 companant of the probanility of detzud (PO} which
artects batn the measurement of ECLs and the identilicaticn of & sigrificant increase In credil sk (see Nate 371

The Bank consfders the followlng iy constiluting an event of cotauilt:
= the borrower S pasl due merg than 90 days on any materiad credl] obiigalion (o the Bank; or
= Iha borrowar |s unllkedy lo pay IS credil obligstions te the Bank bn Tl

This definition of defaull s used by the Bank for sccounting purposes a5 well a5 Tor internal creddl Mk management purposes and is bregaly aligned to
e requialory Gefinilion of default. The definition ot setault i appraprintely kailored 10 reflect different characteristics of different bypes of gssels.
Overdralts are consaderad as being past due sace the customer has breached an advised Bmit ar as aeen sdvised of a limit smalter than 1he cursent
amount quistanding, wWhen sseessing it the barrawer i unlikely o pay s credit obilgation, the Bank takes into account both qualitative and
quanlitative indicators. The infarmalion assessed depends an the type of the asset, for sxample in Corporate lending & gualilative indicstor used i
the breach of covenants, which & nol refevand for ratall lending. Quantitative indicators, such os owerdus status and Fon-payment on another
abliaation of the same counterparty are key inpuls in this analysis,

The Bank uses & variely of sources of information to assess defaull which are either developad internally ar abbained [rom saternal sources. More
detaifs are provided in Nete 37, As noted in the definition of credit impalred finandal assets above, defaull i evidenco that an asset is credil
Impalred. Tharedare credit impaired sssets will inehude defaited sisets, bul will aiso include ather non-defaulied assel given the definitlon of credit
impaired is broader Lhan the definition of gefault,

Significant increase in eraglt risk (SICR)

Fhe Biank manilory all linancial assebs, isued loan commilments and financial guarantes contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements lo
assesy whelher theee has been a significant inerease in credil risk since initial recognilicn, If there has been 3 signBicant increase in credit risk the
Bank will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rathar than | 2-manth ECL,

Trhe Bank's accaunting oollcy is ned 1o uie the practical expedient that linancal assels with fow' credit risk at the reporting date are desmed not 10

have Fiad @ significant Increase in credil sk, As 3 resull the Bank manitors ail lineneial Avsels, issued Ioan commilments arad Tinancial quarantee

confracts that are subject to impairment for signilicen] incresse in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credil risk on-a financial Instzument hag MCreased significantly since inftlal recognitien, the Bank compares the rish af

default gccurring an the financial instrument at the reparting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of defauit

wccurming Lhat was snlicipated for Lhe ramaining maturity &t the cerrant reparting date when the financial inslrument was first recognised. In making

this assessment, the Bank considers hath guantitative and gualllative infarmation that i reasonable and supportable, ineluding histarical experience

and tarwart-ioaking information that is available withou! indue cost ar effarl, based on (he Bank's histarécal eaperience and exfer! credit assessment

including ferward-laoking Wformalion,

Multiple ecanamic scenarios form the basis of cetermining the probabifity of default 23 Initial recegnition and ot subsequent reporting dates. Dillermnt

ecancmie scenarias Wil 1ead to a different probabiity of detsult. |f s U welghfing of these differant sconailos thal forms the hasis of a waighted

everage probabllity of datault inal ks used to determine whether credit fiss has significantly (ncressed,

Fur corgarate lending, forward-looking infarmatian includes the tuture prospects of W industries in wiich the Bank's couterparties operate,

ohiained from econamic experl reports, financial analysts, governmental bades, relevant think-tanks and other simiar oroanisations, a5 wel as

consideralion of various internal and estermal sources of actual and farecast economic information, For retall lending, forwara-laaking infor matian

includes [he same economic farecasts as corporate tending with additional farecasts of locel economic wedicators; particularly fov reglons with a

concenlration to cortaln industries, as well asinlernally generated information of customer payment behaviaur |

Tne Bank allocates thelr countarparties to a relevant internal credit rish grade depending on their credit quality, The quantitative information s a

primary indicatar of significant increase in credit rish and & tased on the chiangs In Wfetime PO by comparing:

- Ihe remaining 11etme PO at the reporting date with

- Ihe remaining Iifetime PO for this poing in time fhat was estimated based on facts and circumstances at the Yine of Wlial eecognition of the
oEpoIuy,

fhe PDs used are forward-looking and the Bank uses the same melhodakdios and dala used ta measure Ihe loss allowance for ECL,

The qualitative factars thal indicate significant kecrease in credit rish are reflected In PD models onoa timely Basis: However, the Bank still considers

separately soma Qualitative factors te assess if credil risk has increased significantly, For corporate lending, (hire is particular focus on assels that

are inchuded on 8 ‘walch &1 given an exposure is ona watch list ance thare is concem that the eredibworthiness of the specific counterparty has

deteriarated. For velail kending, the Bank considers (he espectalion of ferbearance and payment hakidays, credit scores and events such as

unempdaymeant, bankragte y, sade of asdais,
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SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financhal Instrursents toont'd]
Slgnificant Incredse in crooit risk (SICR) (cant'd)

Glven that - signifizant increase In credit risk since Inltbsl recognition is @ refetive meawure, @ given charg, In absolule terms, i the PD will be e
significant far @ finmoclal imsbrument with 2 lower initial PO than compared to a financial instrument with a higher &0

AL 3 back-3top when an asiet becomes 30 days past due, the Bapk eonsiders thal a sigrificant Bcrease Tn credil o5k has ocowred and the assel 5 in
stage 2 of tha impaltment nodel, |e, the less alowance |s measiwen as tne itetime ECL i additian, losns that are indoddually assessed and are
Inchuded on 3 wateh list are in stage 2 of the impalrmant model, As noted, If there 1s evidence of coedll Impalrmant, he assels are maved to stage 3
of the imparment model.

Modification and derecognition of financlal #ssals

A medification of a financial assel accurs when Ihe conbractual terms governing the cash llaws of & linantial assel ace renmgodialed or otheie
modilied belween initlst racognition and maturity of the financial assel. 4 mogification atfects the amosnt ara/ar timing of the eantractunl cash Haws
either immadiately or 5t & fwtwe dale. In addition, the miroduction or adjvstment of exsting cowvenants of an existing loan would conatilule a
modilication even Il these new or adjusted covenants do ol yel alfect the cash fows immedistely bul may aflect (he cash fiows depending on
ety 11w Covinanl iz of ks nol met {e.0. 3 change Lo the increase in ine interest rale That afises when covenants are breached),

T Bank rensgatiates oans b cuslemers In financial difficully 1o mazimise coltection and minimise the risk of default, A loan locbearance I granted

I eases where althoixgh the borrower made all reasanable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there i a high risk of delasll or defaull

has afrgady happened and the borrower |s expected 1o be obke 10 meet The revised terms. The revisan terms In most of the cases inciude an sxdension

af the maturity of the loan, changes to the Uming of the cash ows of the loan (principal and Interest repayment), reduction in The amount of cash

Hows due (peincipal and lerest forgivenessh, change in interest rates and amendme s Lo covenants, The Bank has a lorbearance polcy In place 1o

cater foe requests for restrudiuring of detts. Wnen a linancial asset (s madiflea, the Bank Assesses whether this moditication results in derecognition.

In accordarce with the Bank's policy, a modification results in derecognition when IL glves riso 1o substanilally different torms. To getermine i the

macifed terms are substantially different from the originad contractual terms, thie Bank comsiders the Tollowing:

»  Dualitative lacloss, such as contractual cash flows alter modilication are no longer SPPI, change In cwrrency or when righis to cash flaws

Detwen the ariginal counterporties evpire because a new debitor replaces Lhe ariginal debiios (unless both deblors are under comenon comtrof,
the extent of cirange in interes! rates, and maturity, If tnese op not ciaany iNMCAte A wbitantia modification, then:
A quantitative assessment |5 pertormed to compare the present valve of the remaining contractual cash Mlows wder the origingl Terms with (he
cantraciual cash fows ander the revised terms, hoth amaunls dscounted at the original effeciive interest rate. When perlorming a quantitative
assgssment of a rmodification or rentgatiation of a crest-impaired nancial asset o a purchased or originoted credit-impaired financial asset that
wes subject b 8 weite-all, the Bank conslders the expected (rather than the confractual) cash Nows before madification or renegatiation and
COmpares those with the contractual cash llows after modification or repegatialsoen,

Wihwn prrforming a quantitative assessmont of @ modlfication or reregoiiation of a creail-imoaired inancial asset or a pUrchassn or olginated credit-
imgired financial aeset that was subject ta & willemaf!, the entity considers the expected (rether than the confractual) cash Nlows before mogiticatlan
af (enagolistion and compares thase with the contrachual cash ilows alter modification or renegatiation, In 1he case where the financial assel is
derecognized, the loss allowence for ECL s remeasured al the dale of derecognition 1o determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that dais.
The differance batween this revied carrying amount and the fair value of the new BRANCial assed with the new torms wil load to 2 galn or ks an
derecognition. The new finansial asset will have 0 1655 allowance measured based on 12 mandh ECL escepl in the rare eccasions where the new loan
Is considerad Lo be originabed credi| impaired. This applies anty In the case where the f3ir valie of [he now |03 i recognised at o significant discount
to bts revised par amound becaue here remains a high risk of defaull which has not been reduced by the modification, Tha Bank mordors ceadit risk
of modified linancial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitstive iflarmation, as I Ihe borrowes (s in past due stalus under the new fermes,

Witun 1he contractual terms ol a financlal asset are moafied ana the modification does not result in derecognilion, the entity defarmines if the
linancial sssel's credil risk has increased slgnfficantiy since inftial recognition by compating:

- Ihe remaining [Hellme PO estimated Based on dala at Initial recognition and the original £ ontractial tsims; with
- the remaining Hetime PO at the raparting date basad on the modified terms.

For finsncial asels modilied as part of the forbearance policy, wherg modilication gid nol result in deracagnition, the sctimate of PD rafiec]s the
abity ta calkact the meditied cash flows taking info account he previoud experience of similar Torbearance action, as well as various behavicural
Indicstors, including the borrower™s payment pesformance againse the maditied contractunl terms, W the credit risk remains significantty higher than
whal was expected al |nitial recopnition the loss allowance will continue [0 be measered al an amount pqual to lifetime ECL, if a forbarne loan is
credit impaired due o the eristence of svidence of cradil impairment {3e¢ above), the Bank performs an gngaing assessmant Vo ascertaln If Lhe
problems of the egpesire are cured, |0 determing il the toan b5 no fonger cradil-impaired, The faas sllawance an focbomme loans will generalty only be
measured based on 1Z-month ECL when therg is evidénce of ihe torrower's [mproven repayment behsvious Iellowing modification leading to a
reverszl of the previous significant increase in comdit rivk, Where a medification does not lead te derecognition, 1he Barik caloutates the modification
foss by comparing the gross carrying amount helore and after the madilication (excheding tve ECL aluwance), Mosilicalion Josses for finsncisl assals
arg Included In e pralll or loss accowd. Then the Bank measuras ECL far the madified asset. whers 1he eupsctad eath llows arising from the
rrndified financial asset are nchded In caloufaling thie enpected cash shortfalis Trom the original asset.

Ine Bank dérecognises a financial assel only when Lhe contractual rights fo the asset’s cash Nows expiee (ncluding eapiry arising from a mesdification
\with substantiaiy ditferenl lecmsl, or when the financial asset and substaniially all the o tks and rewards of ownership of the asset are translerred to
arother entily.

1t Band nelther tanafers nor retains substantia®y all 1he risks and rewards of awnmeship and continue 1o confrol Lhe transferred asssl, the Bank

recognises Ihel retainad inferasd in the asset and an asscciated Habiity for amounts i may have to pay. I the Bank retains substantially all the risks
and rewarnds ol ownership of o iemlorred financial assel, the Bank contlnues Lo recogrise Ine Ninanciil asset and also recognise a collaterslisad
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
#  Fimancial instrumenis {cont'd]
Madilicotion and derecognition of finsncial assels foond d)

Or derecoqgaition af & Hinanclal assst in fis entirety. the differance between the asset™s CAMTYing Amaunt and the sum of the consideration recalvad
and recelvable and the cumulative gainfioss that fad been recognized In OCH and acommulatod | oguity |5 recognised in prafit or loss, with the
wxceplion ol eguily investment dusignated as measered at FYTDCL, whore the cumuiative gain/ioss proviously recognised (i OC! i nat subsoquently
reciassified te profit o 1085, On detecagniliop of  linanclal asset othes than In Its entinety (e, wnen the Bank relany an opton bo repurchage part of
@ Wansferred asiell the Bank aliocates the previous carping amount of (ne Tingncial assel between the part i cantinues to recognlye undar
continuing involveme, and the gart it no langer recagnises on the basisal e relative Tair values of hose parts on the date of tha franstar.

The differance batmesn the carrying amoint llocated to the part Thal Is na longer recagnises and the sum af the consiceration [ecuived for he part
no lenger: recognised and any cumulative gairfloss scated 1o 0 1At had been recognized (0 DCH s recognised In peallt or joss. A cumulative
oain/iogy thal had been recagnised in OO |5 allocated betwesn the pert [het confinues to be recognised and the part that is no langer recognised an
the biasis of fha relalive Tair values of those parts. This dons not apgly 16F squity investmants designalied as moasured al FUTACH, as ihe cumuiative
gain/ioss préviously recognised (n OC1 14 nol subseguantly reclassified to pralil or kass.

Write-off

Loans and debt secaritias are wrilten off whan the Bank has no ressonable expectations of recovering tha Tinanchal asset Gelther in itx sntirety or 2
porfion of it} This is the case whon the Bank defermnes that the borrower dass nat have asels ar sources of incame that could generate sulficient
cash lows to rapay the amounis subject bo the wite-atl, & write-oll canstitutes o derecognition event, The Bank may apply enforcement activities to
financial assets weitten off. Recowaries resuiting from the Bank's enforcement aclivitios will reslt in Impalrment gains, which will be presenled in "pat
Imprirment loss an (inancial assets”in the statement of prafit or loss.

Preseatation af allawance far ECL In the statements of financiad position

Lons allowances for ECLS are prasented in the staternents of financial postion as follows:
far Finmncin! assets measured &l amortisod cost- @5 a deduction fram the grass carrying amount of he assets;

= tordebt instruments measured ab FYTOCI no loss allowance is recognised (n 1ne siatements of financial position as [he carrying amaunl Is at fair
vale, Howaver, Ine @55 allwance i included &5 perl of the revaluation amount in the fair valug reserve; ang

«  Tad loan commitments and tnancial quarantes conlrécli as s provision,

Finznelai iabifitios ana equity

Dbt and equily instrumenls that are lssued are <assilied as cither the financial Habililies o ax aquity In sccordance wilh 1ha suostance of the
contractisl arvangement

A linancial liabilily Is a condraciual ebligation 1o deliver cash or ansthor financial assel or la exchange financlal assels of linanclal dabiifies with
another entity urder condlzions thal arg pelentialy unfavourabis ta the Bank. Where a financlal Imstrurment Inchides both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the entity cannat identity the ECL on the loan commitment component saparately fram thade an the drawn component: the ety
presenis a combingd luss allawance fof both camponents. The comblned amount is presented 3s a deduction from {he gross carrying amount of the
drawn compofentl. Sny excess of 1he loss aliowance over (e gross amount af tha drawn companent |5 presented as o provision, A codrach Thal wil
ar mmay he settied in the Bank’s own equity instruments and is a non-derlvative contract for which fhe Bank are or may bo oblked o deliver a varlate
numbar of thelr own equily instruments, oF a derivative contract over own equity thal will of may be settics ather than by the exchange of & leed
amount of cash {or anolher fMnancial assat) for a Mxed number of thie Bank's own equity iistraments.

Equity nstromern 4

A equity instrumen is 2ny contract thil eviderces a residial interest in e assels of an entity aiter deducting all of its libitias, EQuity instruments

issed by Lhe Bank s recognised al the proceeds recelved, net of direct isue oo4ts, Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Repurchase of [ha Bani's

owWn equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in egully. No gaiffloss (= recogrisad In pratit or lass on the purchase, sale, issuee or

cancellation of the Bank's own aguity Instrumenis.

Financlal abilities

Financial Habllities incluge deposits Irom banks; depoits fram banks and nan-bank customurs, othof borrewed lunds, and other Habllities and are

Initially measurad sl fair vales, not of Uznsactlon cedls, Theae financial ahilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cftachive

Interest method. The effective inferest method is 3 method of calcwsating tha amortised cas! of & financial liability and ol allacaling inlerest expense

ovir (ha relevant period. The £IR is the rate that exactly discounits estimated Tulure cagh payments through Ihe expected it of the financial lizndity,

or, whure sppropriate, & shorer periad, te the net carmying amaunt on initial recognitian,

Financlal Rabilitles measwred af FYTPL

Financial liabilizies are ciassified as at FYTPL whwn the financlal llability is 0 hetd for trading, o 0] it 15 designoles as at FYTRL

A tnancial llabiity 5 classitled 25 neld far tradmg il:

= It has been incurred princpally far the purpose of repurchasing & in the nisar Lorm: or

= eninitlal recognition it 1 port of a porttolio of identilimd finencial imstruments (hat the Bank manages togethar and has a recent actual patiern of
short-term profii-taking; or

= itisa devivalive that is nal designated and etfective a5 & hedging imirument,

Finanecinl ipbalities at FVTPL are staled al fair valus, with any gainsficsses ariing on remeasicemant recognised in profit ar foss. The nel gainfloss

recognised in prafll o Ioss incorporates any intersst paid on the financial kabifity,
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SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTT)
Financial instrumants (cont'd)
Rerecognition ann modification of financial dabditizs

Thie Bank derecogrities linancial Babililies when, and only when, lhe Bank™ ebligations are discherged, cancelled or have ekpired. The diiference
lotween the carrying ameunt of the Anancial llabdiity derecognized and the consideration paid and payabla is recognised in profdt or loss, When the
entity gxchanged with \he exiating lender oneé d2bit instrument inla anolher ane with substantlally differont terms, Such exchange Is accounted for as
an exiirquishment of (he arigingl linancial lfability and 1he recognition of a naw financial labifty, Simiary, the ontily accounts Tor subslantia
modification of terms of an skisling liability o part of i a5 an #tinguishment ol the adginal Mnancial abdily anid the recognilion al & new lkabilily. To
datermineg If tha moditied terme of 2 Habiity sra substantially ditterent to the original terme a smilar procsss with madification of linanckal assets i
{ellowed, The modification ls assessed ai first on a qualitative basls, factors such asa changa in currency or the Intredudion af 2 non-closely related
embedded derivative thal sigrificantly modities the cash llows are regarded as substantiaity different,

IF 11 is not clear from he gqualitative assessment thal 4 madilication has resuited in a substanti®l change in A linancial liability, 8 quantitative
assessment [s applied. |t ls-assumed that the terms of th fnanciat Habliity are substantially ditferont It the discounted prosem value of the cash fows
under the new berms, including any fees paid net of any lees received and dacounled uting the origingl elfective rste s al least 80 per cent dilferent
from the oiscounted present valse of tne remaining cash fiows of the arfginal Hinarcial Fabllity. # the modilicalion 15 nol sestantial, the Bank
recaldulates thie armorlised cost of the moditied linandal Habifily by discounting Ue modified contractual cash Hows using the original effective
Iriterest rale, The Bank recognives ary adjustment {a lhw smortbed cost ol Lhe financlal RabliRy In profit or loss as Income or eapense al the date of
the madification, The irancial labilily madification gainfloss B nol sigailicant tor the Bank. Modification gains are presented in ‘ather operating
income’ and madifhcathon jesses are prasented in ather eparating expensas” in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

Thie Bank enters infa fair value hedges when hedging the exposure Lo changes in the lakr value of a recoonised assel or labliity or &n unrecognised
Fie m comenitrment

Al the inceplion of a bedge relationship, 1he Bank formally designales and documents the hedge relationship lo which | wishes io apply hedge
accounting ond Ehe fish managemen| abjective and strategy far undertaking the hedge.

The documentathan ncludes (dentificatlon of the hedging Instrumend, the bedged fem or transaction, (hi nafure of Uhe risk oeing hedged and how Lhe
Bank will assess the effectiveness of changas in the hadging strument's lair walie in oflselling the exgosure Lo changes in the hedoed ibem's falr
walue of cash flows attrbutadla ta the nedged risk. Such hedges are axpacted 1o be highly effective In schieving oftsetting changes in fair value ang
are assessed on an ongoing basi to determing that they actually have been highly affectiva throughaul the finascial reporting periods for wilch Lhey
were designated,

Fait vafue fredges

In eccordance with g witer risk managoment, ag s oul in Note 370 U is the Bank's sirategy Lo apply fair valie hodga accounting Lo keep
interest rabe sensiivities withinits established Emits. Applying lair value hedge accounting enables the Bank o recuce Tair vahee ucheations of Tioed
rate financi assels ang faniites as 1 iney wers 1atng rate Instruments inked ta the sttrigitable Benchmark rales. Fram o hedge accounting poini
of wlew, the bank deslgnates Lthe hedged risk & the esposw e o changes in the fair value of 8 recognised finandiol sssol of Ranllily or an unrecognised
firm camenitrnent, ar an sentitied portion ef such lnancial assets, Fatillties o B commilments thal s sitribulable to 8 parlicular rak and cotld
allect profit or toss. The Bank anly hadges changes due to Interest rofes such as benchmark rates {e.g. LIBORY whlch are typically the most
significant component of the owerall fair value change. The Bank assessas hedge etfectlveness oy comparing fair vaiue movements of ine nedging
imstruments ard the bedged item attribatable Lo changes in these benchmark rates using the hypolhetical derlvative meibod as sel oul above.

In Becardance with ifs nedging strateqy, the Bank maiches the pringipal of the hedging Inastruments to e principal of the hedoed (tems, incluging
prepavment edpecialions, The Bank wses pay fisedfreceive Mloaling inleresl rate swaps o hedge 0 Nk rale debl fnatruments aned pay
lepatingfreceive fined inlerest rate swaps Lo hedge |t lixed rate Rabililes, The Bank agplies anly a micro fair value bedging strategy as sel out under
the relevant subheadings below

Hedge inelfectivensss cen arise from:

» Ditferences in flmirg of cash Mows af hedged fems and hedging insliuments,

* Different interest raie Curves appsied 10 OISCOURL NG NECGD i18ms and Redgng insiruments,

= Derivatives used as hedging instruments having & none-nil 1zir value at the Ume of designation.

+ The effect of changes in counterparties’ credlt nsk an the falr values ol hedaing Instruments of hedged ibem.

For gesignated and gualllying falr value nedges, (e cumulative enange in 1he 1air value af o hedging deriwative i recognised In the Stalement o1
Profit or Loss in Net Trading Income, In additon, the cumalailve change In the fair valve of the hedged Rem attribetablo to U hodged (s Is
recogaised |noihe Statemend ol Profit ar Loss in Nel Tradiag Incarms, and alao recarded as parl ol tha carrying value ol the bedged ibem jn tha
statemant of financis pasition, The Bank clected, a5 a palicy choice permifted under IFRS 9, to continue ta appéy hedge areaunting in accordance

Micro igir value hedges

& lair valise hodge rolatianship is a *Micro fair value hedge® when the hedged itemn (or group of items) is a distinciively identitiable asset or lat=ity
redges by ane of 4 Tew hedging matruments, The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk i a fer valoe hedge reladionship inclede fieed
rale corporate and small business loans. These hedge rolalionships ore assessed for prospeciive hegge eifectivaness on a monl by Sasls,

I thie hedging Instrument expires o §s sold, terminated or exercizad, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria lor hedge accaanting. or the
Bank decidas to voRlntartly gisconiinug the nedaing refationsnip, the hedge relationship = discontimued prospectively. I the reiationship does not
meel L fedge efleciivensss crileria, the Bonk discontinues hedge accounting Trom the last date on which compilance with bedge eflectiveness was
dempnstrated, I the hedge accounting relationshap e terminated lor an item recorded at amortised cost. the accumulated faw value hedgs
adjudment to the carmying amound ol tho hedged tem s amoriised ever thw remaining torm ol the original hedge ny recalcdating the g5, the
hedged ibem iz derecognied, the unamor{ied lair valug adjustment is recognised immeodialely in the statement of prolit or loss,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTM)
Financial instruments (cant®d}
Hedge aceaunting (eant'al

Far fair vatue hodge relatieeishigs where the nadged item 15 nol measured at amortised codd, such &3 debt instroments af TYTOCK changes |n falr
vilue [hal were recotded in Lhe stalement of profit or toss whilst edge accouwnting was in place are dmortisod in @ similar way to amortised cost
trstruments using the EIR method. However, as these instruments are measured at their lalr vahwey in the statemend of financial poshion, the fzir
vikui vodge adjustmonts are translor e from (he statement of profiz or ioss te OC|, Thare ware na such instances in rither tha current year orin the
compEalive pear,

Derivatlve financial Instruments

The Bank enters inte 3 variety of derivative tinancial Instruments seme of which are held lor frading while athers are held to marage its-expasure to
Interest rale risk; credi] risks antd lovelgn exchange rate risk, Derlvative hold inchues Torwand conlracls, spol peshion, swaps and aption contracts,
Crétflvalives are initislty recognised ol fair vale at (he date & desivatles conlract b ealered into and are subseguently remeasured to thelr 1ale vatug
# pach roporting date. The remdting gain or 053 65 recognised In profit of o

A gwivative with a positive fair value is recognised 35 a3 NRancisl 153l wherens a derivative with a negative Fair value 15 recagnised as a financial
lakiliby, & derivafive is presented as 2 non-current asset or a nan-curront Eagliity It the remaining matulty of the Instrument is more than 12 manths
and It s not eipected bo ba realisod or seitled within 12 mantha, Other deérivalives are presenled as current ausebs or current llabilties,

Impairment of noa-financisl axaets

The Bank assesses at each reporting diate whether Lhere i an indication thal an ssset may be impalred, If @y Indicatlon exists, or when annua)
bmpairment Tesiing for anassel |s required, the Bank ssthmates [he asset’s recoverable smound, &n avset's recoverable amount |5 the mighar al an
assel's of Cash-gendrating unil's (CGUD falr vanee tess costs to self and IEs value in wie. Where the carrying amount of an ssset or COL exceeds i1s
recouel shle amaunl, the avset is considered Impaired and s weilten down Lo £ recoveradle @nounl.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr presend value using @ pre-las discount rale ihat refiects current
market assessments of the lime vaiue of mensy and e riss specific (o the assel, In vetermining fadr value less costs (o sell, an epproprisle
valuation madel Is vsee, These caculations are corronarsded by waluslion muftipies, quoted share prices for pulificly braded subsidiacies or oller
available lair vales indicators.

For -ascets gxchding goodwill, an aswassment ls made al each reporting date as to whathar there i any Indication 1hal previeusly recognised
impairmenl sses may ne longer axlst or may have decreased, I such indicallon exfsts, the Bank estimates the asset's or CGL's recoverable amod,
A previousiy recognised impainment Joss is reversed anly 1T there has boen 4 change In the assumptions used to determing the Jssel’s recoverstic
ameounl since the last impairment loss was recognaed. The reversal 3 limifed wo that the carrgng amount of the assel does nol escoed g
recaveralie amount, mor exceeds the camying ameunt thal would have been gefermined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recagnised [or the assel in prior years, Such reversal ls recogrised i profit o loss,

Provisions and other contingenl Babifities

Provisions are recognised when the Bank his a present obligation {legal of censtrectlived a3 a tesult of @ past event, and it 15 probate that an outtiow
of resources embadying economic benelits will be required Lo seftie the obEgation and a rellabie estimale con be made ol the amount of the
abligatian. The expense refating ba ony provision is presenbed in prodil or kss nel ol sy reimbursmen],

The Bank opoarates in 3 requiaiony and lqs! environment that, by nalure, has a heightuncd glement of itigation risk inherent 1o s aperations. As o
resul, Lhey are involved In varlous Iligation, arbitration and reguéatony investigatians and proceedings both in local and in other jurisdictions, arlsing
I the ordinary course of Lhe Bani's busingss. When the Bank can redanly measure e outfiew af ecannmic banelits in felation ta a specitic case and
canskders suth oulllons to be protable, the Benk reconds a provdsion agalnsi the case. Where (he probabitity of oulliew is conside ed Lo be remote, ar
proaple, but 3 relianie astimate cannot be made, & confingent lizhility is disclosed, Howeaver, when Uhe Bank is ol the apinion (hat dhclosing these
eslimates on a case-ty-case basis would prejissice thair oulcomo, than the Bank does nol include detailed, case-specilic ditclasures in their financial
statemants. Glven the subjectivily énd uncertainty of delermining the profrabllity and ameunt of sesses, the Bank Lakes iinle secount & number of
tactars inchigeng legal advice, the stage of the matier and historcal vvidence Irom similar incldents. Skgnilicaat judgement Is reguired lo conciude on
Lhese estimates,

Foreign turrency |ranalation

Assets, laudities, Income and cxponse items denominated in olhed cierencies are transiated into Mauritian Rupees, the currency of the primery
oconamic environment in which the entity operates (functional currency’ In sccordance with 1AS 21,

Trarsactions denominated in foceign currency are converted at tne rale prevailing ab [he date of the trans actions,

Monstary assets and laniities dennmanated in fareign currency at the reporting date ars ranskaled il Mausilian Rupees sl [ho ralex of sxchange
ruling at that dabe,

Morrmonelasy assets and linbdities donmorninated in lorelgn currency are reported wsing the exchange rales al the date of the transactions, I carried
ol cast, ar the eeehange rales that existed whon the fair values wers defermined, if carrled st fsir valoe.

Eichange differences arising an Lhe seltiement of monwary items, and on the transiation of monetary items, are Mcluded in the staloment of profi
or |oss and other comprehansive incame COCED far the period, When a gain ar lass on @ nor-menetary dtem (s recognised In equity, any exchange
component of {hat gein or loss shall be recognised In bguity. Conwersely, whev 3 gain or 1655 on @ nen-manelary fem s recogised in the statemen
of profit or loss ane othar comprahensive inceene, any exchange camponent of Vhat gain or less shall be recegnised in the stalement of prafil or loss
and other comprahensive inoomie.

Oftaetting financlal Instruments

Financial assets and lxsiies are ascl and Iha nel amaont reported in the. statement of financial position when Gsere 5 o fogally enlorceatde right to
ofis=1 Lhe recognised amounts and here & an Intenthon Lo seltie an a net basls, o realise the asset and Sethe e TABITY Smutansausly

This k& nol generally tha case with master netting agreements, therefore, fha ralabed assets and llabiiities ars presented gross in the statements of
fmancial position. Income and experse Wil not be oifsel In the statemenis of profit or loss and ather comprehensive Income unless required ar
pedimiitted by sny accownting standsrd o interpretation, as specifically gisclosed in the accounting palicios,

Comparat|ve ligures
Where necessary, camparative figures are restated or reclassiied Lo conlorm to Lhe curenl ywar's prosentation and to he changes I accounting

The atcountlng pellcies of each reiovant ling lfem not dsclased above, are Included in the respeciive nofes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements requires management to make [udgements, estimates and assumptians that affect the
reparied amount of revenues, expenses. assets and liahilities, and the accompanying disclosures, a5 well as the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, Uncertainly aboul Lhese assumplions and estimates could resull in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amaunts of assets or [bilitias afected in future periods, In the process of applylng the Bank's accounting palicies, management has
made the following judgements and assumptions concerning the fisture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a sigrdficant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next
financial year. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to creumstances beyand the Bank's
cantrol 2nd are reflected In the assumptions ifand when they aceur. ltems with the most sianilicant effect on the amounts recegnised In
the financial statements with substantisl managemen! Judgement andfor estimatés are summarized balow with respect to
judoements/estimates Involved.

Judgements
Going concem

Directors have made an assessment of the Bank's abifity to continue as a going concern and are satistied that the Bank has the resources
to continue in business for the foreseeabie future. Furthermore, directors are nial aware of any materlal uncerlaintles that may cast
significant doubl upon the Bank's ability (o continue as a going concern. Hence, the financial statements conlinue Lo be prepared on the
going concern basis,

Business model assessmenl

Classification and measurement of financial assels depends an the results of the SPRI and the husiness madel test, The Bank determines
the business model al a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed logether lo achieve a particutar business
objective, This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including haw the perlormance of the assets is evaluated
and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the perfarmance of the assets. The Bank mondtors financial assets measured at
amertised cost or lair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to thelr maturity to understand the reason
far their dispasal and whether the reasons are consistenl with the objective of the business for which the assat was held. Monitoring is
part of the Bank's continuous assessment of whether the business madel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues ta
be appropriate #nd if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business madel and $o a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.

Caiculation of ECL allowance

Slanificant increase of credit risk: ECL are measured a5 an shiowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or iifetime ECL for stage
2 ar stage 3 assels, An assel moves to stage 2 when its crecit risk has increased significantly since Inftial recogaition, IFRS 9 does not
define what constilutes a significant increase In credit risk. In assessing whether the eredit risk al an asset has significantly increased the
Bank take inlo account qualitative and quantitative reasenable and supportable forward-looking information.

- Establishing groups of assets with similar eredit risk characteristics; When ECLs are measured on a collective basls, the tinancial
Instrurnents are grouped on the basis af shared risk characteristics. The Bank monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk
characteristics on an ongoing basis ko assess whether they continue to be simiiar, This Is required in order to ensure that should
credil risk characteristics change there is sppropriate re-segmentation of the assets. This may result in new partialias being created
or assets moving Lo an exlsting portfolio that better reflacts the similar cradit risk characleristics of thaf group of assets.

= Models and assumptions used: The Bank uses varicus models and assumptions In measuring fair value of financial assets as well as
i estimating ECL. Judgement is applied in identitying the most appropriale model for each type of assel, as well as for determining
the assumptions used in these models, including assumplions that relate to key drivers of credit risk.

Deferred tax assets

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends an managoment's intention of the Bank to generate future taxable profits which will be used
against temparary differences and to oblain tax benefits thereon. The cutceme of thelr actual utilisaticn may be ditferant
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)
Estimates

4.5 Expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assots

The Bank's ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumplions regarding the choice of varfable
Inputs and their imerdependencies, Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include;

> The Bank's internal credit grading model, which assigns FDs Lo the individual grades;

> The Bank's criteria lor assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial 2ssets should be
measured an a long term ECL basis and the qualilative assessment;

> The segmentation of linancial assets when their ECL are assessed on @ collective basis;

> Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs;

> Determination of assoclations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic Inputs, such &s unemployment bevels and collateral
values, and the effect on PDs. EADs and LGDs; and

> Selection of forward-lpoking macroeconomic stenarios and their probability welghtings, to derive the economic inplts into the ECL
models,

It has bean the Bank's policy Lo regularly review ils models in the contest of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

In refation to credit impaired faciiitios, the Bank determines expected cradit losses by estimating the shortfall between the present value
of expected cash llows and the present value of contractual cash flows. The estimation of expecled cash flowsis inherently judgemental
and invalves an estimation of proceeds from liguidation of the berrowers, proceeds from realisation of collaterals and the liming and
exient of repaymants an forborne facililies, These estimates are based on assumptions about & number of factors and actual resuils may
differ, resulting In future changes to the allowance.

4.6 Falr values of financlal Instruments

Where the fair values of financlal assets and financial liabilities recorded on the stateménts of financial position cannat be derived from
actlve markets, they are determingd wsing & variely of valeation technigues thal include the use of mathematical models. The Input ta
these models is taken from ohservable market data where possible, but where observable data is not available. a degree of judgement is
required in eslablishing fair values. The judgements include conslderations af quidity and model inputs such as correlation and volalility
far inager dated derivatives.

4.7 Assessment of useful lives of property and eguipment and Intangible assets

The Bank reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipmenl and intangible assels al the end of each reparting period, The
cost ol the property and equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated and amortised over the estimated useful life of the asset, The
estimated fife ix based on expecled usage of the asset and expected physical wear and tear which depends on operational factors.

4.8 Leases

The application of IFRS 1% reguires significant judgement and cerlain hey estimations. Critical judgements include aetermination of
whether it is reasonable certain thal an extension ar termination eplion will be exercised. Ky sources of eslimation uncertainty In the
application of IFRS 16 include estimation of the lease terms, determination of the appropriate rates to discount the lease payments and
assessment of whether right of use assel is impaired,

4.9 Pension benelits

The Bank operales a defined benefit pension plan fer its employees as well as provide for relirement graliities under the Workers' Rights
Act. The amount shown in the statemenl of financial position In respect of retirement benefit obfigations |s subject to estimates in
respect of periodic costs which would be dependent on relurns on assels, lulure discount rates, rates of salary increases and infiation

A4.10 Provisiens and ather cantingent flabliities
Pravision is recognised in Lhe financial stalements when the Bank have maet the recognition critericn. The directors measure the

provision al the besl estimate of the amounl reguired Lo settle the cbligation al the reporting date. Actual results may be difterent fram
their estimates.

In specific circumstances, significant judgemant is required from directors Lo identify the financial effects to be disclesed attributable to
1he uncertainties inherent In contingent llabilities,



SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liguid Investments that are readily convertible to known amounts af cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change In value, Such investments are normatly those with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.
For the purpeses of the staterment of cash Hows. cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances with banks and central bank axciuding

mandatory balancis.

31 becember 11 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' OO0 MUR' 000
Cashin hand 1,961,552 2,016,619 2,078,284
Foreign currency notes and cains Tﬁ,'i,-:.l._?'l 524,835 337,946
Unrestricted balances with central bank ' 35,790,264 10,536,120 4,167,009
Loans and placements with banks® . 1,035,373
Batances with banks 1,772,848 1,672,781 7,771,985
| 40,288,235 15,750,355 15,390,597
Less: aliowance for credit losses (6,813) {1020) {3.698)
40,281,422 16,749,335 15,386,899
! Unrestricled balances with central bank represants amounts above the minimum cash reserve requirement.
* The hatance above relates 1o loans and placements with banks having an origingl maturity of up to three months,
The balances were classified under stage 1 and 12-manth ECL was calculated thereon,
An analysis of changes in the carresponding ECL allowances Is, as follows:
31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1
MUR'000 MURQO0 MUR'ID0
ECL allowance as at 01 January | 1,020 1,698 41,758
Het remeasurement of Inss allowance 6,390 1,020 3,698
Assets repald (597) {3,698) (41,758)
ECL allowance as at 31 December 6,813 1,020 3,698
6. LOANS TO AND PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
31 December 31 December 31 December
At amortised cost L2021 2020 2019
Loans to and placements with banks: NUH' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
= in Mauritivs - 353,508 2,482 044
« oulside Maurilius 843,079 2,197,237 2,717,013
843,079 3,150,745 5,199,057
Less: allowance for credit losses (5,109) (20,358} {24,9569)
837,970 3,130,387 5,174,088
Remaining term to maturity
Lip to 3 manths = 47,293 522,761
Owver 3 months and up to & manths " 1,257,394 2,504 267
Dver 5 manths and up e 12 menths - 1.008,868 1,119,602
Ower 1 year and up ba 2 years 653,378 * 1,062 427
Ovwer 2 years and up to 5 years 189,701 B37,120 -
843,079 3,150,745 5,199,057
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6. LOANS TO AMO PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS (CONT'D)

Crealit joss altowance for loans to and placements with banks

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum expesure to credit risk based on the Bank's internal credit rating system and year-end
slage classification. The ameunts presented are qress of credit ioss allowances. Detalls of the Bank's internal grading system are explained in Mote
AT

31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1
Internal rating grade MUR" 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Perfarming
High grade 189,701 ’ 367,371
Standard grade £53,378 2,807,724 3,719,888
Sub-standard grade = 343,021 1,111,798
Total | 843,079 3,150,745 5,199,057

An anarysis of ehanges in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowsnces is, as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December

| 2021 2020 2019
Stage 1 Slage 1 Stage 1
MUR'O00 MUR'D0O MUR'Q00
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 3,150,745 5,199,057 9,290,692
Financial assets eriginated or purchased T S 2.698,297 2,766,559
Financlal assets repaid (excluding write offs) (2,371,933) (4768.978)  (7.014,033)
Forelgn exchange atdjustments . 64,267 22,369 155,839
Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 843,079 3,150,745 5,199,057
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1
MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'DOO
ECL allowance as at 01 January 2'0*353 24,969 34,281
Met remeasurement of (oss allowance - 18,004 5299
Assets repard (eschuding write ofls) (15,249) (22,615) (14,611}

ECL allowance as at 31 December 5,109 20,358 24,969
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7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019

MUR* 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Agsets
Derlvative assels | 579,946 774,785 889,301
Liabifities
Derivative llabiities 565,655 1,165,271 1,000,972
The fair values of derivalive instruments are further analysed as fallows:

‘Maotional

Frh'l':l'lld Fair Values

- Amaunt Assets _ Liabliities
31 December 2021 MUR' 00D MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Derivatives held for trading -
Foreign exchange contracts® 10,539,939, 52,005 {30,883)
Cross Currency swaps 2,917,065 204,110 (208,317)
Diher derivative contracts 2,728,546 199,196 (198,081)
Derivatives used as Micro lair value hedges ' ' E
Intersst rate swap contracts 4,901,874 124,635 (128,374)

21,087,414 579,946 (565,655)
31 December 2020
Derivatives held for trading
Fareign exchange contracts® 12,755,594 153,479 [LZ7,7B4)
Cross currancy swaps 3,622,605 116,425 (L63,384)
Other derivative contracts 7.178,309 3Tr.258 1296,493)
Derivatives held for risk management purposes
Farelgn exchange contracts 4,844,566 145 -
Derivatives used as Micro falr value hedges
Interest rate swap contracts 19,241,246 127,478 {577,610)

47,642,320 774,785 {1,165,271)
31 December 2019
Derivatives neld for trading
Foreign exchange contracts® 31,978,555 540,656 (281,879
Cross currency swaps 2,285,473 47,633 (896,421)
Other derivalive conlracls 19,865,225 282,397 (220,731)
Derlvatives held for risk managemen! purposes
Foreign exchange conkracts 3,298,074 498 (23,508)
Derivatives used as Micro tair value hedges
Intarest rate swap conlracts 18,786,898 78,117 (418,433)

T6.214,235 B89,301 (1,000,972)

* Foreign exchange cantracts include forward and spot contracts
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B. LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO NON-BAMK CUSTOMERS
31 December 31 December 31 Decernber

2021 2020 2019

Al amir tised cost :H'U.R“ Qoo MUR" 000 MUR*® 000
Governments 2,713 7,705 8,515
Retail customers 45,490,284 £1,305,180 39,363,943
- Credil cards 492464 510,114 583,205
- Mortgages 30,632,959 27,565,755 25,487,999
- Other retail lnans 14,364,861 13,239,311 13,292,739
Corporate customers 49235351 48,912,236 47 550,561
Entities outslde Maurithus 14,644,923 20,250,460 19,869,057
1@9.3’?5.:2?]; 110,475,581 106,792,076
Less credit loss allowance (11,454,071) (11,437,054}  (7.766.672)

97916200  99.038.527 99,025,404

@ Remaining term fo maturity

Up ta 3 menths 9221841 8500152 9,417,082
Over 3 months and up to & manths 2,638,412 3,507,260 2937677
Cver & months and up to 12 months 5,850,802 5,475 686 5,085 980
Over 1 year and upto2 years 4,605,809 9,894,847 6,890,553
Cver 2 years and up to 5 years 20,948,455 16,563,563 19,404,879
Over 5 years 66,104,945 64,534,073 £2,055,905

109,370,271 110,475.581 108,792,076

Qut of the MUR 109,37 hilllon, there is an amount af MUR 4.63 hillian (2020: MUR 6 21 billien and 2019: MUR 8.18 billion)
relating o loans where fair value hedge accounting has been applied. Reler to note 37{d)ii} lor more detalls,
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4. LOANS AND ADVAMCES TO NOMN-BANK CUSTOMERS (CONT'D]

b Net Investment In finance lzases

Amaunts due Trom lessees wnder finance ieases are recorded as 1oans and advances at the amotmt of the Bank's net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as lo rellecl a conslant periadic rate of relurn on tha net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases. Ml invesiment in finance leases are measured at amortised cost,

The Bank acts as lessor of several ibems like car and equipment. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into
these leases. Rental income recognised by the Bank during the year is MUR 7553 million (2020 MUR 69.26 milllon and 2019;
MUR B7_32 million).

The amgunt of nel investment 0 linance leases included in Joans and advances to non-bank customers and Ihe associated

allewance for credit lossas ara as follows:-

After 1
year and
Upte 1 up to Afler
year 5 years 5 years Total
MURIO00 ~ MURIOGO  MURIO00  MUR'000

31 December 2021

Gross Investment In financa |eases 463,085 1,154,976 135,891 1,753,952
Less: Unearned finance incama (70,038) {113,421) (4,963) {1B5,426)
Present value of minimum lease payments it mim: 1,041,555 130,922 1,565,526
Credlt Inss expense _m,_ﬁ_ﬂ'_t_
Net investment in Finance lease L1513 } .Qﬁ?
31 December 2020

Gross investment in Tinance |eases 500,375 1,119,442 109,089 1,728,907
Lesst Unearned finance incame (B6,463) (104,089} {4,195) (174,747
Present value of minlmum lease payments 433,913 1,015,353 104,894 1,554,160
Credit loss expense (94,54%5)
Met investment in finance lease 1,459 615
31 December 2019

Gross lnvestment in finance leases 435,140 1,081,017 97 ATZ 1,613 622
Less: Unearned tinance income {78,465) (124,708} (4,386} (207,559)
Present value of minimurm lsase payments 356,675 956,309 93,086 1,406,070
Credil loss expanse {45, 769)
Met investment in finance lease 1,360,301

Finance |ease contracts give the lessees the option Lo purchase the assels lor a residual value al the termination of the lesse
arrangements. The lerm of lease conbracts generally ranges from five to seven years. Finance 1eases are secursd mainly by
tharges an the leased assats and / or corporate / personal quarantees,
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B, LOANS AND ADVANCES TO HON-BANK CUSTOMERS (CONT'D)
© Credit loss allawance on leans and advances to non-bank customers (cont'd)

The table below shows the credit guality and the maximum exposure 1o credit risk based on the Bank's internal cradit rating system and
year-end stage classilication. The amounts presented are grass of impairment allowances, Details of the Bank's Internal grading system are
set out In note I7(b)Y.

Al 31 December 20211 T Stage1 Stage ¢ Stage 3 Total
internal rating grade MUR! 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Performing
High grade 40,065,578 949,994 - 41,015,573
Standard grade 24,110.281 ?.Tm £ 31874,104
Sub-standard grade m .['5.4;31 m E ?maﬂ.m
Past due but not impaired e 4.2?5,2?1 - 1;1'?5,-';11'
Nan-perferming
Ingdividually impalred - 10,583,354 m.!aaa 354
Tatal :ﬁl EEISH E&H.’d EETD 271
Al 31 December 2020:
Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR" 000 HMUR" Q00 MUR" 000 MUR" 000
Performing
High grade 33,285,409 1417014 " 34,702,423
Standard grade 35,315,355 8,632,826 = A3,848,281
Sub-stanoard grade 10,791,064 7,248 997 = 18,040,061
Past due but not impaired = 1,5%1,008 = 1.551.008
Man-parfarmlng
Individually impaired . . 12,333,804 12,333,808
Total 72,391,628 18,749,945 12,333,808 110,475,581

Al 31 December 2019:

Intermal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR' 000 MUR" 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

Ferfarming

High graae 34,855,065 853,683 - 35,708,748

Slandard grade 30,754,206 5,705,392 ¥ 36,459,598

Sub-standard grade B.639,984 B,B471 872 - 17,483,856

Pasl due but not impaired : 6,821,920 = 6,821,990

Meon-performing

Individually Impair ed 5 & 10,317,884 10,317,884

Taotal 74,249,255 22,224,937 10,317.884 106,792,076

An analysis of changes In the gross carrying amaunt and the correspanding ECL allowances 15 as follows:

At 31 December 2021: S'Inqyz Tatal
MURMDO0 MUR'DOO
Gross carmying amount as at 01 January 2021 15,749,945 110,475,581
Financial assels originated or purchased 3,281,823 24,846,273
Assels derecognised or regald (excluding write offs) EM'IM (26,161,549)
Tranilers to Stage 1 mn.m: %
Transfers Lo Stage 2 13,006,568 cs
Transters to Stage 3 Elﬂ.ﬁlﬁ (305,916 -
Amounis written aff - mﬂﬂ (2,.39&,994}
Fareign exchange adjustiments 752,158 THT.69T mr 149 2,607,004

Gruss carrying ameunt as at 31 December 2021 T0.062,363 28,424,554 10,883,354 109,370,271
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B, LOANS AMD ADVANCES TO NON-BANK CUSTOMERS (COMNT D)
¢ Credit loss allowa rce on loans and advances to non-bank custamors toonl'd)
An analysls of changes In the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances |s as follows
At 31 December 2020: Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3 Total
MUR'000 MUR'OO0 MUR 00 MUR'000
Gross carrylng amount as al 01 January 2020 74,249,255 22,224.937 10,317,884 106,792,076
Financial assels originated or purchased 23,064,837 4,251,500 27,356,337
Assels derecogrdzed or repald (excluding wrile olis) {19.813.471 i6.217,B8T {2 B7L.345) (27,902,709
Transfers bo Stage 1 5,590,362 (5,572,158 (18,204) =
Transters to Stage 2 {5.926,179) 50450926 C19.74T) S
Trapslers to Staga 3 {116,866) (3,873,203 3.990.069 =
Amounts written of! v * 15,904) (8,904)
Foreign exchange adjustments 2,343,89% 950,830 G44,055 4,238,781
Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 79,391,828 18,749,945 12,333,808 110475581
At 31 December 201%: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR000 MUR"000 MUR'D0DD MUR'COO
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 2019 55,905, 181 31,450,316 12,442,745 99,798, 242
Finandial asseks originated ar purchazed 28,521,644 ¥212.023 35,793 667
Assets derecognised or repald (excluding write ofis) (16,188,237 (11,056,046) {1433, 465) (28,677 848)
Tranalers (o Slage ] 10,902,030 (10,896.971) (5,059 =
Transters to Stage 2 (5,575,685) 5,613,161 (37,478) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (41,831} (620,100) 661,931 -
amounts wrilten ofl - - {1,423,620) (1.423.620)
Foreign exchange adiistmenis Té6,#53 A6E,554 112 828 1,301,635
Gross carrying amouat as at 31 December 2019 74,249,255 22,274,937 10,317,084 106,792,076
At 31 December 2021: Stage'l Stage 2 Stege 3 Total
MUR'D00  MUR'0DD MUR000 MUR'000
ECL allpwance as at 0l January 2021 T11,750. 961,423 9,763 881 11,437,054
Alpwance on new financial assels :I.'."ﬂ._!.'ﬂ 11!,,.“.1 - 281,590
Assels derecoonised or rapaid (oxcluding write offs) (429,720) (318,343) (492,107)  (1,240,170)
Translers 1o Stage 1 J,'ﬂm a?;,ﬁ"."‘l) _ tz‘nj -
Transfers {0 Stage 2 (72,458 75,685 3,230) -
Transters 1o Stags 3 | (8,738) £13,082) 21,798 -
et remeasurement of loss sllawance 1,@5,32]. ﬂﬂ.MﬁS 2,454,807 3,372,591
Amcents welllen off - Y  (2,396,994)  (2,395,994)
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2021 651,183  1,455012 0347,876 11,454,071
AL 31 December 2020: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MUR'D0G MUR00 MUR'DO0 MUR"000
ECL allowance as at 01 January 2020 651,591 1,662,596 5,452,485 T, FB66TS
Allewance on new financial assets 96,919 57.310 ) 154,229
Assats derecognized er repald (etcluding write offs) (469,303 {175,226) (5192.877) (1,164, 406)
Translers Lo Stoge 1 198,833 (198491} (343 =
Translers (o Siage 2 (58,297 59,333 (1,036) -
Translers bo Stage 3 {1,520 (1,111,550} 1,113,070
Mel remeasurement of loss allowance 203 52y GAT 451 3,728,485 4,689,463
Amounts writlen off * 2 {8, 904) (8,304)
ECL ablowance as at 11 December 2620 T11,750 961,423 9,763,881 11,437,054
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B. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO NON-BANK CUSTOMERS (CONT'D)
€ Credit loss allowance on leans and advances to non-bank customers {cantd)
An analysis of changes n the ECL allowances is as lollows:
At 31 December 2013 stage ) Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR 000 MUR'CON0 MUR'OO0 MUR'OOO
ECL allovwance as 4t 04 January 2019 222,448 B5T.6L9 4.222.124 5.502.191
Allowance on new financial assels 214,480 1,157,894 2,801,096 4,173,470
Assels derecognised or repaid (excluding write offz) {356,5148) (274.078) (233,07a) (BAT.670N
Transfers te Stage 1 266,815 {266,815] . .
Transters to Slage 2 (A9,642) 49,642 =
Transfers to Stage 3 G2d) (RS, 437 5,961 .
Net remeasurement of 1055 allowance 154,530 223,771 ‘ 3ve.3m
Amounts wiitten off - - (1,423 620) {1,423,620)
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2019 651,591 1,662,596 5,452,485 T, T646.672
d Credit loss allowances an loans and advances by Industry sectars
At 31 December 2021:
Sage 3 Stage 1 Total
Gross allowance & stage 2 allowances
amaunt of Credit Impaired tor credit Credit loss for credlt
loans laans Impalrment allowance Impairment
MUR' DD MUR' OO0  MUR'O0D  MUR'G00  MUR'000.
Agricufture and fishing 920,559 490,016 23,011 5131,04?
Manulacturing LTT,027 173,382 43,354 216,736
of which EPZ 21,156 21,156 2,867 24,023
Taurism 39,890 8112 TER.6TT 767,789
Transport 34,224 25,492 20,608 46,100
Canstruetion 626,386 520,038 392,400 912,438
Financial and business services 46,540 46,538 78,954 125,492
Traders 837,717 5sv4siL 90,557 5,765,068
Personal 1,099,420 52,110 514,515 1,366,625
af which credil €ards 40,217 42,285 4,800 47,185
Professional 82,760 82,760 4,144 86,3
Global Business Lizence holders 1.372.644 1371147 .901 1.412,048
Others 115,181 103,770 138,054 241,824
10,883,354 9,347,876 2,106,195 11,454,071
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8. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO NORN-BANK CUSTOMERS (CONT'D)
d Credit loss allowances on loans and advances by industry sectors (cont'd)
Ak 31 December 2020:
Stage 3 Stage 1 Total
Gross allowance & stage 2 allowances
amount of Impalred tor credit Credit loss tor credit
Inans loans impairment allowance impairment
MUR' 0DO MUR' DOO MUR' Q00 MUR' 000 MUR" 000
Agriculture and fishing 4 683,383 B27,431 331,126 35,281 366,407
Manulaciuring 4,461,220 185,390 158,151 B2.473 240,624
of which EPS 1,778,397 26,531 3,942 22,840 26,782
Tourism 15,287,021 9,916 a7 354,544 355,414
Transport 2,180,026 15,895 14,561 24,231 38,782
Construction 10,800,431 629,538 477,190 381,405 858,555
Financial and business services 8,103,313 B&5, TO2 621,578 80,789 T02,364
Traders 11,152,448 5,808,510 4,531,386 90,627 4,622,013
Personal 39,349 045 1,052,900 736,094 AG6, 6T 1,202,761
of which credit cards 510,114 47026 48 138 4326 52,462
Professional 160,200 A2.718 B2, Ti8 4,629 BY.,347
Global Business Licence holders 6,481,782 1,247,358 1,096,615 14,089 1,110,704
Others 7816712 1,808,360 1,713,505 138,448 1,852,043
110,475,581 12,332 BOA 9,763,881 1,673,173 11,437,054
At 31 December 2019:
Stage 3 Stage 1 Total
Grass allowance & stage 2 allowances
amaunt of Impaired for credit Credil loss for credit
loans [nans Impairment allowance Impairment
MUR' 0G0 MUR' 000 MUR* 000 MUR' DOOD MUR' QDO
Agriculture and fishing 3,958,718 1729 £53 115681 115,934
Manulacturing 4,361,146 154,707 124,765 T0.220 194,985
of which EPZ 1,687,420 28,053 4,141 31,192 35,333
Tourism 11,726,634 3,632 3,213 134.265 137,478
Transparl 2,212,143 15,233 14,371 136,485 150,836
Construction 9,572,469 281,418 193,287 110.729 3p4a,016
Financial and business services 59,805,038 628,137 440,446 76,287 516,733
Traders 12,628,321 7.802.236 3,662,471 59,283 3,721,754
Personal 37,347,894 BB6,066 633,392 465,252 1,098,644
of which credit cards 583,205 81,055 41,9597 6,258 48,255
Professionat 168,000 T3.872 73,873 1,720 75,593
Global Business Licence holders 6,682,622 286,405 144,822 501,775 646,597
Olhiers 8,329,091 183,749 161,592 642,510 804,102
106,792,076 10,317,884 5,452,485 2,314,187 7,166,672
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9. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONT'D)
m |
Debt investment securities at amortised cost i3 oot : H El:;;:lnhar A I:;;::\hm
St-ﬁej Stage 1 Stage 1
MUR' 000 MUR "000 MUR 000
High grade 277,860 256,365 753,104
Standard grade 50,224,355 32,517,383 18,609,288
Sub standard grade 1,167,895 1.073,580 -
Tetal gross carrying amount - BLATO111 33,847,308 19,362,392
|
Credit Inss aflewance (27,884} (38,5200 (23137
Carrying amount | 51,642,227 33,808,788 19,335,255
31 D!I:I'l'l-'lbl!l' 31 Decembaer 31 December
2021 2020 20189
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1
HUE’S]IEI MUR'COQ MUR'000C
Gross carrying amount as at 01 Janpuary | 33..84"." EDH 19.362.392 13,815,525
Mew financial assels orfginated 34,578,025 8,750,000
Financial as5ets that have been repaid I {20,438 552) £3,328,700)
Other mavemenls | 345,443 125,567
Gross carrying amounl a5 at 31 December | 33.B47.308 19,362,392
| 31 Decey 31 Detember 31 December
i 2020 2019
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 1
| MUR'DO0  mMur'coo MUR'00D
ECL allowance as al 01 January i 3&..5-‘5& 23,137 9,038
Mt remeasurement of foss allowance 232 38,387 15,605
Assets derecognised or repald (exeluding write offs) J l.',_l_ﬂrm} (23,004 [1,506)
ECL allowance as at 31 December . 27,884 38,520 23,137

The tabie below shows the fair value of the Bank's debl insteuments measured st FVTOCI by credit risk, based on the Bani's internal eredit

rating system and year-end stage classihicatlion.
Debk investment securities at FYTOCI

R 31 December 31 December
ES,WEDEI 2020 2019
Stage 1 Stage 1
MUR '000 MUR '000
High grade 28,755,220 19,186 436
Slandard grade 19,149,274 22,587,611
Sub standard grade 1,270,752 517461
Carrying amount 50,175,246 42,291, T08
. 31 December 31 December
3 Ducesobrer 2041 2020 2019
Stage 1 ‘Slage 2 Total Total Stage 1
MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR'000D MUR'00D MUR'DOD
ECL allowance as at 01 January 29,118 24,665 53,308 59.678
et remeasurement of loss allowance 11,178 24,086 45,020 44533
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write i it
offs) (27,552 “,198) (28,750) (44,545} {50,903
Transiers bo stage 2 (6E4) 664 b . 5
ECL allowance as at 11 Decamber | 12,080 48,217 60,297 53,783 53,308

Stage 1 & 2 ECL allowance for 31 December 2020 stood al MUR 2812 million and MUR 24 66 million respectively, Mo loss allewance is
recognized In the statement of financial position for debl instruments measured at FVTOC] 35 the :arrﬂng amount is al Talr value,

F ll nlﬂﬂ'qaf | 31 December 31 December
Equity instruments designated at FYTOC| | 2020 g
Mm 000 MUR"00D MUR'CO0
Carrylng amount a3 at 01 January 4.41_3' 3,411 3411
Additians 2,057 - -
Fair value movement 404 997 -
Carrying amount as at 31 December 6,869 4,408 3411
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13 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Aecounting policy

Froperly and equipment are ctated ol cout Cencopt for freehold land and bulidings and bulidings on (2esehald land) kess accumulates depreciafion and
any cumubative impairment loss. Land ks stabed sl revelued armounts and buildings are staled o) revalwed amounts less accumulated depereclation and
sy impairment joss.

Il is hiz Bank's palicy to revalue fis freshold land and bubldings and deasehoid budidings al kst every e years by Independent valusrs. any
revaluation surplus i crediied (o the Property revabieaiion resecye. Any revalustion decresse bs (st charged directly against any proparty
revaluation reserve neld in respect of Ine respective asset, pnd then 1o the statement of pralit or oss.

Progress payments on tangitle fixed assats are carried al coal, less any recoghised imgairment loss, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basks
a5 other Langiie Mood assels, commences whan the assets are rezoy for their intended uss.

Deprecialion on owned assets bs calculated to write off the cost or revalued amourts of tangible lived assets owor thalr extimates vssiul lives on 5
stralght-line basis. Depreclation Is ealculates fram the manth the asset i capitalised, Mo depreciation is provided on (reshald fand,

The &sthmated uselul lives af property and equipment are as folloes:

Buildings 50 yoars
Egquipment, machinery, furnilure, fitlings and computer equimment J o 10 years
Matar vehicles 5 years

The galn ar lass #dsing on the disposal or ratiremant of an Item of property and squipment is determined as tha diffarence betwesn the sales
procesds and the carrying amgunt of the assel, ﬂm_ﬁr\ﬂmm:l wilthin other operating nasme In the statement of proflil o loss.

Depreciation an revalued buildings s charged to protit or foss. & transter is mate froam the revafustion reserve lo retained earnings as the assel |s
used (representing oliference batween deprecialion besed on revalued amount and depreciation hased an eriginal cosf), On the subsequent sale or

ratirement of a revalusd property, the alt

revahsation surplus ¢

In bhe progeriies revalualion reserve Is-transterred directly to

relalned eamings,

Freehold Bulldings Total

Land and on leasehold  Other tangible Motor preperiy and

Bulgings Nanit fixed assats vehleles equlpment
Cosl or Valualion MUR" 000 MUR" 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
AL O Janaary 2019 785,808 1,573,752 1,746,037 10,703 4,116,300
Revalusation 20.088 (153,710 = (135,122
| mpairmeant (8.962) =] = t 9,9462)
sdditkang : 507 62,186 3,222 85,915
Disposals - = B A40) {8,840}
&t 31 Becember 2019 A¥3,934 1,471 049 1,808,223 5,085 #,038,201
Revaliation o THL 1 T54
A citians i8 16,827 149,570 ’ 166,415
Dispesals 3 (144.491) {962) {145 453)
Al 31 Decambar 2020 804,952 1,437,878 1,814,056 4,123 4,080,007
paations - - 86,311 . 86,311
Dispasals _ Z a (93,4200 . 53,4200
At 31 December 2021 803552 1431876 1,806,947 4123 4,052,898
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10, PROPERTY AMD EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)
Freahald Buildings Tatal
land and on leasehold  Other tanglbis Motor property and
bufldings land flued aszets vahleles equipmant
Accumulated Depreclation MUR' Q00 MUR' 00D MUR® DDO MUR' 000 MUR' 000
AL DL January 2019 46,917 225,240 1,411,519 7.411 1,691,087
Revaiuation (56,589) (272,931} = (329,520)
Dispersal - - - (7,135) (7,135)
Charge for the year 10,851 52,443 78,602 1,225 143,121
Ab 31 December 2019 1,179 4,752 1,490,121 1,501 1,497,553
Dispasal * = (143,805 {959) (144,858)
Charge for the year 11,512 57.067 Bi,E21 A28 150,225
At 31 December 2020 12,691 61819 1,427,043 1387 1502920
Disposal - - 52,525) - m;ﬂﬂ
Charge for the year 11,715 57,721 78,651 arg 149,112
At 31 December 2021 74,4086 119,540 1d13_,":é§9. 2,192 1,559,507
—. ——
Met hook value j
At 31 December 2021 T19.546 1,318,336 393,578 1,931 2,493,391
Progress payments on tangible fixed assets 525,796
Al 31 December 2020 TG1,261 1,376,057 87,013 2,756 2 557 08T
Progress payments on langible fined assets 25,244
2,582,331
Al 31 December 2019 802,755 1,416,297 318,102 1,504 2,540,738
Progress payments on tangible fixed assets 58,830

2,599,568
——

Other tangitie ficed assets, Included within Property and equipment, consist of equipments, furniture, fittings and computer

equipment. Property and equipment are non-current assels whose maturity is more than one year,
Detaits of the Bank's tand and buildings and informalion abiout Lhe fair value Merarchy are as foflows:

Fairvalue | 31December 31 December 31 December
lovel 2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Freehotd land Level 2 485,001 485,001 484,987
Freehold bulldings Level 3 294,545 306,260 araTe
Bulidings en leasehald land Level 3 1,318,336 1,376,057 1,416,297
2,097,882 2,167,318 2,219,052

The carrying amounts of land and buildings, that would have been Included in the linancial slatemants had the assels been carried al

cost, are as fioliows:

31 December 31 Docember 31 December
2021 2020 2019
'MUR' 000 MUR' 00D MUR' 000
Freehold land and buildings | 417,025 420,644 447,209
Bulidirgs on leasehald land 319,351 3313426 347.500
| 736375 754,070 790,789

The freshold land and Dulldiregs and buildings on teasehold land are periodicelly vaiued by an independent chartered valuation
surveyor, Freeheld land was revalued in December 2019 based on an open market value pasis whereas freehold bididings ana
buildings en leaseheld fand were revalued hased on the depreclated replacement cost method, The directors have ensured that
management sisessed the Tair value of the properiies al 31 December 2021 and 2020, The estimated falr value approgimale the
carrying value as 4l the reporting date. These assels have not been impaired during the years under review,
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11, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY

AEcaunting palicy

The Bank assesses whelher @ conlract is or contains a lease, ab Inception of Hhw contract. The Bank recognises a right-of-use aszet and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it Is Ihe lessee, except for shorl-term |eases (defined as lsases
with & lease term of 12 monihs or hess) and keases of low value assets, For these leases, the Bank recognises the lease payments as an
cperaling expense on a siraight-lne basis over the term of the lease uniess another systematic nasis is mare representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets ane consimad.

The lease liability /s inftially measured at Lhe present value of e lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
by using the rale implicit In the lease. If this rate cannot be readity determined, the lossee wsas its incramental borrowing rate: Lease
paymenis included in Lhe measurement of the lease llability compr lse:

= Fined lease payments (nciuding in-substance fived payments), less any |&ase incentives receivabis:

= Variable ease payments that depend on an index or rate, nitally measured using the index or rate at the-commencement date:

- Tha smount expected Lo be payable by the lessee under residual value quarantees;

= The exercise price of puschase options, If the lessee s reasonably cerfain Lo exercise the options; and

= Payments of penallles for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflacts the exercise of an option Lo terminate 1he lease,

The tease Hability Is precented &4 & separate line in the statement of financial position.

The tease. liabllity is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amounl to rellect interest on Lhe fease ilability (uslng the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect (he lease paymenls mode,

The Bank remeasuras the |aase liahility (and makes a corresponding a¢justment Lo the related right-of-use asset) whenevar:
The ieass term has changed of there is a significant evenl or change in cirowmslances resulling in a change In Lhe assessment of exerdse of
A purchase option, In which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rale.

The |ease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or & change in éxpected payment under a guaranteed residual valee, |0 which
cases the lease llabllity is remeasured by discounting the revised |ease paymenls using an unchanged discount rale (unless Lhe bease
paymenls change 15 due to a change bn 8 Noating Interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate Is used),

A l2ase contract Is modified and the lease modification (s not accounted for ag 3 separate |gatw, |n whith case the lease lability is
remedsured based an the tease term of the modilled lease by discounling the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
eifective date of the modification. The Bank did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use. assets comprise [he Intial measurement of the corresponding Iease lablity, lease payments made al or before the
tommencement day, less any lgase incenlives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
eccumulated depreclation and Impalrment losses. Whenever the Bank incurs an obiigation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset,
restore the site on which It is located or restore the underlying assel to the candition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision IS recagnised and measured under IAS 37,

Right-of-use assets ore depreciated over the shorter period of lease lerm and uselul lile of the underiying asset. Il 4 lease lransfers
ownership of the upderlying assel or the cost of the right-of-use asset refiects thal the Bank expecls to exercise a purchase aption, the
related right-af-use assel is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The degrecialion slaris at the commencement date af
the l=ase.

The right-of-use assels are presented as a soparate ne in the statement of financial pesition, The Bank leases several assets including land,
buildings and equipment . The average kease lerm is 5 years.

The Bank applies 1AS 36 to determine whether a right-ol-use asset is impaired and sccounts for any Identifiod impalrment loss as described
In the “impairment of non-financlal assets’ policy. Variable rents thal do nob depend on an index or rate are nol Included in the
messursment of the lzase liability and the right-of-use dssel. The related payments are recognised as an expense In Lhe period in which the
event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in 'Other aperaling expenses” in profil or koss,

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permils a lessea not to separate non-lease comporrents, and instead account for any lease and associated
non-lesse campanesls 45 a single arrangement. The lease contracts do not have [ease and nen-lease components and hence the Bank has
not used this praclical expediont.

Rentals payable under operaling leasas are charged Lo profit of loss on a straight-ling basls aver the term of the relevant lease except
‘where another more systematic basis Is moro rép-resenuiiue of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease asset are
consumed. Canlingenl rentats arlsing unier operaling leases are recognised as an expanse In the perlod bn which they are ncurred, in the
evont that lease [ncentives are received ta enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability, The ssgregate benelil
of Incentives is récognised at a reduction of rental expense an 2 straight-line basis over the lease term, excenl where ancther systematic
Ihasis |5 more repeesentative of the time pattern in which economic beaefits fram Lhe leased assel are conswmed,
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I1l. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (CONT'D)

Land and Other tangible

nulldings fixed assets Total
Cost MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
At 01 January 2019 159,926 102, D67 761,968
Additions a5.121 z 35,121
A1 31 December 2019 195,047 107,062 207 109
Rdditions 27,594 I8, 185 65,783
Tarminaticn {23,285) (H.733) [32,018)
At 31 December 2020 199,356 131,518 330,874
Additions 20,216 2714 22,930
Termination (10,473} 121y (10,554)
At 31 December 2021 209,099 134,111 343,210
Accumulated Depreciation
A OL Janwary 2019 : = ’
Charge for the yoar 28,180 21.761 49,941
Al 31 December 2019 28,180 21,761 49,941
Termination {3,350) {8, 759) {12,109
Charge for the year 18.345 19,094 371,439
AL 31 Dacember 2020 43,175 42,096 75,271
Termination (8,084) 2y 8,205)
ERarge far the year 34,638 20,469 4,107
At 31 December 2021 69,729 B1,444 133,173
het bagk value . o o
Al 31 December 2021 139,370 72,667 212,037
At 31 December 2020 155,181 99 422 255,603
Al 3] December 2019 166,867 80,301 247,168
The fallowing are the amounts recognised in profit o |oss: ‘31 December | 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019

MUR* 000 MUR* D00 MU D0G
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assats &4,107 37,439 49,941
Interest expense an lease Hablity (Note 25) 13,144 13,761 15,064
Total amount recognised In profit or luss 71,251 51,200 65,005

The Bank had 3 total cash autliows for leases of MUR 82.61 million (2020: MUR §6.23 millicn & 2019 MUR 71,99 million). At 31 December

2021, the Bank doas nol have any commitment for short-lerm leases.
There are no variable lease payment fn the lease eantracts of the Bank

Maturily snalysis of loase llabiily are as falows:

g to L year
LioSyears
51a 25 years

Less unearned interest

Furlher analysed info;
Mon current
Current

31 December 11 Oecember 31 Decembzar
2021 2020 2019
MUR* 000 MUR' 000 MUR 000
76,633 &t 114 54,088
129,677 163,243 150,248
24,007 28,414 41,131
230,407 260,771 245,467
(45, 742Y {27.181) (5,267)
184,655 233,590 240,180
7HE68 159,063 173,531
105,997 74,537 B6,649
184,665 231,590 240,180

The Bank dozs nnf face sgnilicant Rquidity risk wilh regards Lo ils lease lisbililies. All the lease obligallons are denominated in Mauritian

Rupees.
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12, INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

i

13,

Accounting paficy

Intangibde assets with finite useful fives, that are acquired separalely, are carried alb cost dess accumulated amorlisation and sccumulated
Impairment lasses. Software is amortised on a stralghl line basis over thelr estimated useful ives of 3 bo 10 years, Costs direclly assoclated
with the production of identifiable and software products controliad, that will probably generate economic benslits excending cosls beyvond
Ol peEr, ke recogiised a5 inlangitle assets.

WIP Software
The Bank [s develaping few saltwares. These costs will be transferred under "Soffware® &s soon as they will be 0 wse al tha Bank,

Intelectual proparty rights

The Bank entered Inte an agreement in respect ol Business Process Engineering and Business Transformation initiatives to asign bath its
strategias and processes with the Technology Tremformmation Inifialive namely Flamingo Project and also high performance banks. The costs
Incurrad in respect of thess imtiatives were capitalised as intellectual property righks and are being amorlised foffewing the profect going live
In Seplember 2006,

WIF inteflactual
Soltware Property
Saftware (Note a} {Mats b) Tatal

Cost MUR' 00D MURT 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
AL 01 January 2009 3,974,129 68,442 B4 917 A28 488
Additions 4,534 47,161 L: 52.095
Transhers 32,030 (32,0300 - .
Write atf (4,430) 9.682) & (14312)
Bt 31 December 2019 4,006,663 T4,891 284917 AI6E2T]
Mdditions . B3 489 = 83,489
Transters To.388 (793880 * =
Disposal (110,156) 2 o (110, 158)
Wirile ofl 15,601 (FED = {6,368)
ALAT Decamber 2020 3,070,204 ; 284917 4333238
Additions - - 88,5931
Tromsters B3.823 - =
Write off : | - {6,203)
At 31 December 2021 4,054,117 76,512 284,917 4,415,546

e s
Accumulated amortization
AL O January 2019 1,194 619 . 170,949 1,364,568
Charge for the year 417,564 » 56,283 AT4,547
AL 31 Decembar 2019 1,612,183 = 227,932 1,540,115
Dizposal (1141551 - {110,158
Charge for the year 408,012 = 56,985 457,997
Ab31 Decernber 2020 1,503,059 . 284,917 2,187,956
Charge for the year | Ailoel - x 411,081
Al 31 December 2021 2,314,120 - 284,917 2,599,037
Net book value
AL 31 Decomber 2021 | 2739997 76,512 = 1,616,509
At 31 December 2020 2,067,255 TB,O25 = 2,145,280
AL 31 Decgmber 2019 2,354,480 T4.591 56,985 2,526,156

411 Intangiblas are tested tar impairment-on an annual basis and the intangible assets have nol been impaired during Lhe years under revigw,

OTHER ASSETS
' 31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 | 2020 2019
| MUR' 000 LR 000
Accounts receivable’ 525 BAA 620,381
Balances due in cleanng 4422 4,156
Prepayments 102,962 88,252
Olhers 73,617 72,030
06, BT ¥91,859

' Credit risk is manged for each cateqory and 15 subject te the Bank's established policy, procedures and contral relating te customars credit
risk managemeant. The accounts recelvable are mainky transition accounts that wid be cleared the Tollowing day ang therefare is not subjact to
impalrment.

? Repassessed assets have teen inclugded under 'Dthers!, The Bank's palicy is-to dispose af such assets as sosn as the markel parmits;
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14,

PENSION LIABILITY
Aecounting pelicy

(1) Pension benefits for efigitie participating employees

Ebgible garticipating employees are enlitied to retirement pensions under the SBM Group Pansion Fund, 8 delined benefil scheme, The
average retirement age Is 85, The assets of the scheme are managed presently by the SEM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid.

Fer defined benefil relirement plans, the cost of providing benelits 15 determined using the prajected unit credit method, with acbuarial
valuatiens being carrled oul al the end of each annual reporting periea. Remeasirement, comprising actuarial gains and kosses, the affect:
of the changes to |he assel ceiling and the return on plan azsats, |5 refiected immediately in the statement of financial position with a
charge or credit récognised in olher comprehensive income In the period In which they occur, Remeasurement recognised in othior
comprehensive income 15 rafiactad immeadiataly in retained aarnings and will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss. Past service cost s
recagnised in the statement af profit or loss in the pericd of a plan amendment. Net intesest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the perind to the net detined benafit Fability or asset. Delined benedil costs are categorized as service cost dirichuding
curient service cost. nast service cost. as well ms osins and losses on curtallments and setlisments), nal Interest exoense or income and
The relirement benefil obfigation recognized in the statement of financlal position represents the actual deficit or swrplus in the Bank's
delined benefits plans. Ay surplus resulting from this calculation ks limited to the present value of any economic banefits availabiz in the
larm af refunds from the pans or redictions In future coalributions to the plans,

A llabliity for a termination benafit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer wilhdraw the offer of the termination
benafil and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.
(i) Pewnsfon benefits for employees under term contracts and all employees who joined after 31 December 2004

Employees who joined after 31 December 2004 are entitied to defined cantribution relirement benefil pension arrangements. Employer
contributions are expensed In the statement of prafit or loss in the perlod In which they fall due, The defined contribuiion benefit replaced
the defined benefit pension plan as fram 0L January 2005, Employess who were initially in the defined benefit pension plan remalned in
‘e said plan.

(Ui} Travel tickets/allowzances

Employees are perindically entitied to reimbursements of averseas travelling and allowances up bo a cerfaln amount depending on their
grades. The pxpacted casts af these benefits are recognised in the stalement ol profit or loss on a stralght-fine and undiscounted basls
aver the remalning periods until the benefits are payabie.

The amount inciuded in the statement of financial position arising frem the Bank's obligation in respect of ils defined beneflt plansis as
follows:

Pensian liability 31 Decémber 31 Docombor 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR'DOO MUR' 00D MUR' ODO
Defined benefit pension plan (Mote 14 (a)) | :h:S,!*H 577,568 240.146
Residual retirement gratuities (Note 14 (b)) | 82,084 146,514 93,859
| 1ssozm 724,087 334,005

Defined benellt penslon plen

The pension plan i a final salary defined benafit plan to ellgisde employees joining the Bank prior to 31 December 2004 and are wholly
[unged. The assets of the lunded pian are managed by SBM Maurithis Assel Managers Lid and administered by SICOM Lid, The plan is a
The plan provides for a pension at retirement ana A bensfit In death or disablement in service before reliremant.,

There has been na pian amendment, curtaiiment o seltfement during the year excepl for some employee transfers between related
ontities within SBM Group.

The plan exposes the Bank e normal risks assoclated with defined benefit penaion plans such as investmen, interest, longevity and salary
rlse risks.

tovestment sk

The plon abifity is calcutated using a discaunt rate delermined by reference fo government bond vields; [f Uhe return en plan assets is
belaw this rate, It will create a pian defict and i1 il is higher, it will creale a plan surplus.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bend nberest rate will increase thie plan fiabitity; howevar, this may be partially efisel by an increase in the relurn on Lhe
plan’s debl investments and a decrease in inflationary pressures onsalary and pensign ingreases,

Langewity risk

The plan Niabiity Is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participents both during aed after thelr
empioyment. An increase in ihe life expectancy of the pian participants will increase tha plan hability,

Salsry risk

The plar liability is calcufated by reféronce to the Tuture projecled salaries of pian participants. As sueh, an increase In the salary of the
plan parlicipants above the assumed rate will increase the plan Habllity whereas an increase below the assumed role will decrease the
Hiabdli by,
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31 December 31 December 31 Cocember
Z021 2020 2019
MUR* DOO MLFR' OO0 MUR' Q00

Present value ol funded defined benefit obligation 1,881,806 1.932,247 1,307,790
Fair valuz of planned assets (L577.962)  (1.354,679)  {1.067.644)
Mat fiability arising from defined banefit abligatian 303,944 577,568 240,146
Reconcillation of net defined benefit abiity
Balance at starl of the year 5?7,'56@ 240,148 109,621
Amaount recagnised in stalement of prolil or loss 50,415 39,214 32,684
Amoun! recognlsed In other cemprohonsive Tncome (288,714) 597,375 204,365
Less employer contributions 145,426) (#99,171) (106,524)
Balance at end of the year 303,844 577,568 240,148
Reconciliation of fair value of planned zssets
Balance at starf of the year L!ﬁd,m 1,067,644 915,095
Interest Ineome 36,034 59,871 59,075
Employer cantributions 45,426 299,171 106,524
Bunelits pald (A2 BT {46, 138) (38,817)
Transler tafirem anather entity . - (6,590
Freturn on planned assets exciuding Interest Incame 20,702 {25,869) 12,353
Balance at snd of the year 1';.-..7?:5"93'. 1,354 679 1,067 644
Reconclliation of present value of defined beneflt obligation - |
Halance at starl of the year 1,932,247 1,307.790 1044716
Current service cosl 44,320 30,979 30,680
interest expense 55,130 68,106 62,561
Past servioe cost et : (1,482)
Olher banedils paid ;ﬁzm (46, 1318) {38,81L3)
Transter to/fram another entity = % (6,590)
Liability experience loss Lo 226,181
Liahility gain due lo change in demographic assumptions ﬁljm = 5
Liability fgain)ficss dug ko change in linanclal sssumplions (79,871) 571,510 (9.463)
Batance at end of the year | imBigos 1932247 1,307,790
Companents of amaunt recognised In statemant of profit or loss | L [
Service cos| 44,320 079 29,198
Mt interest on net defined benatit ability 16,096 /215 3456
Total c¥pense s above (vore J0) 60,416 38,214 32,684
Compongnks of amount recogrived in other comprenensive income =l l
Return on planned assets below interest ncame 201,702y 25,869 (12,353)
Liaility experignte lass = E 226,181
Liahiiity experience gain cue to changes in demaographic assumpliong AT, 141 . =
Liabillty {painiioss due to change In tinancial assumptions [79.871) 571,510 {9,463)
Tatal (288,714) 597,379 204,365

il December 31 December 11 Deceimber

2021 2020 2019

Allocation of planned assets at end of year % % ]
Equity - Dverseas quated s 26 23
Equity - Overseas unquoted ot 5 a
Etuity - Local quoted 18 25 26
Equity - Local unquated 4 5 T
Debi - Overseas quoled % 5 1
Debt - Lucal guoted 10 & a
Debt - Local unguoted 15 10 15
Cash and other i4 23 14
Tatal 100 100 100
Reporting antlly's awn transferante financial instruments 305 2.0% 3.0%
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14, PEMSION LIABILITY (CONT'D)

31 December 31 Decembier 31 December

Principal assemptions used at end of year 2021 2020 2019
% % %
biscount rate 4. TH 2.9% 534
Rate al salary increases H2% 264 1%
Rate of penaion Increases 1.5% 1.0% 0.8%
Average retirement age (ARAY
Averoge life expentancy for; 65 65 65
- Maleat ARA 15.9 years 15.9 years 15.9 years
- Female at ARA 20 years 20 years 20 years

I1AS 19 requires that the discount rale be sel based on the yields of high gualily corporate bords with an appropriate lerm. Since no desp
market in such bongs is avallable, IAS 19 reguires that the yield on government bonds of appeapriate term can be applied. The discourt

rate takes socount of the nominal vield to redemplion of government bonds traoed on tha SEcondary Markel a2 at 31 December 2021 and
the duration of last year's Hahllities,

Sensitivity analysls on defined benefit penslon plan at end of year
31 December 31 December 31 December

L2021, 2020 2010

- MUR! 00D MUR' D00 MUR* Q0O
Increase due to 1% decrease in discouni rale I am.m EETR: T 205,990
Decrease due to 1% ncrease in discoun| rate 244,635 270,515 167,365

The aboue sensitivity analysis has been carried ¢ul by recaiculating the present valug of obligation st end ef period after increasing or
decreasing the discount rate while leaving ail other assumplions unchanged. Any similar variation In the ather assumptions would have
shawn smalles varialions in the defined benelil obligation.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may nol be representative of the actual change in (he deflined benefit asset as il is unilzely that
the change in assumptions wauld occur In isofation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Future cashfiows:

Tne tunaing polley I5 to pay contributions to.an external legal entity at the rate recommended by Lhe Bank's actuary.

The Bank expecis (o maks a contribution of around MUR 44.39 milllon ta the SBM Group Pension Fund lor the next financial year and the
weighled average duration of the defined benetit onligation is 15 years.

The most recent acluarial valuation of the gefined Denedit plan was cartied out at 31 December 2021 by AON Hewitt Ltd, actusries and
comsuifants.
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14,

L]

PENSION LIABILITY (CONT'DN
Resltual retirement gratuities

The labllity relates ta residual retirement gratuities payable under the Workers' Righls Acl 2019 and i unfunded. The amount inchsded in Lhe
slalement of linsncial position aflsing from the Bank's abligation in respect of its residual retirement gratullies i as follows:

31December | 3% Docamber 31 December

2021 2020 2019
Feconcifation of net defined bonefit Habiuty MUR" 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Balance al slart of ihe year 146,514 93.859 A3,414
Amaund recognlsed in stalement of pradit or loss za,m [B4.3813 0,925
Amaunt recagnlsd In olher comprehensive income 137,038 {500)
Less empbayir conlributions -
Aalance at end of the year ‘97,084 145,514 93,859
Reconcliation of present value of delined benefil obligation
Balance at start of the year 146,514 93,859 61,434
Current service cost 246231 6,550 3,700
Inkerest expense 4219 4375 3,869
Past service cost (L3 195 94&) 23,356
Oitier benefits pald 7aT, 2
Lisbillty sxperience loss (20,9721 508 2,612
Ligbility gain due ba change In demographic assumptions tzﬁ/,ﬂ&n - -
Liabillty 1055/ (gain) uie to change I finane/al assumptions | (30,664) 136,528 (3112
Balance at end of the year L o304 148,514 53,259
Camganents of amaimt recognlsed In stabement of profit or loss e
Service cost 20,341 (89, 358) 27056
Het siierest on nel defined beneflt Hakility ] _ 4,219 1,975 3,859
Total expense as abave | 24,530 (4,381 ) 30,925
Companents of amount recogmised In other comgr ehensive Incame
Lianllity experince loss 508 2,612
Liatshity experience gan dug to change in demograghic assumplions . -
Liabsily dgain/loss due bo change in financial assumptions 136,528 £3.113)
Tatal 137036 {5000
er 31 Decomber 31 Decemper
2020 2019
Principal aszumptions used at end of year % %
Ozmcaunt rate 2,9% 2.3
Rale o salary increases So0% T
Rate of pension increases Q0% BN
Bverage relirement age (ARA) GO/ES ai/as
Sensitlvity Analysis on defined benefit obligation at end of year
Increase dus o 1% decorase in discound rale ,I!.nﬁﬂ. 53,501 13,458
Decrease due to 1% Increase in discount rate 27,168 42,172 9,002

The abgve sensitivity analysis has been carried out by recadculating Ihe present velue of obligation a1 and of pericd after increasing or
decseaiing the discaunl rate while leaving all ather ascumptions unchanged. The resuits are particularly sensilive to a change in discount rate
due lo the nature of the liabilities being the difference between the purd retlrement gratulties under the Workiers® Rights Act 2019 and the
deductiens ilowable, belng five times the annusl pension provided and Ball the fump sum received by the member | refirement from the SEM
Group DC Tund wilh reference Lo the Bank's share of contelbutions. The Bank made & conlribution amounting to MUR 100.94 million to S8M
Groap DT fund for emgrioyees under Lhe defined contribution pension plan {2020; MUR 93,11 millan and 2019 MUR 8B.41 milllon)

Future =ashflaws
The funding policy 1s b2 pay beswfils fram the reporting entity's cashliow as and when due.

The Banl expects to make & contribution of around MUR 10.7% milllon fer the nect financial year and the weighlod avorage duration of the
defined Benefil obfigation = 16 years,

The negative ‘past service cost’ of MUR 1.31 milllon is on accounl of a transfer of employess (o ather enthizs within the ok,

The Bank is exposed Lo normal rishs assedated wilh reslidual relirement gratuitios such as inberest and salary rise flaks,

Interesl risk

A decrease in the bond [nierest raie will increase-the plan ianmty; Nowewsr, Ihis may be partially afiset by an increase in the retur oo the
pean's debt investments and a decrerse in inllationary pressures on salary and gension Increasos.

Satary rish

The plan Hability fs calowated by reference foothe future peofected salarios of plan participants, As such, an increase kb the salary of the plan
participants above Lhe sssumesd rab will increase (he plan lablity whereas an Increass helow the assumed rale will decrease the llabhity.
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15. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
31 December 11 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR'Q0D MUR" Q00
Demand deposits 1,481,854 1,119,661 929,357
16. DEPOSITS FROM NON-BANK CUSTOMERS
31 Decamber 31 December 31 December
- 2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' Qo0
(i) Retail customers
Current agcounis 26,005,661 22,451,904 18,514,354
Savings accounts 67,926,002 B0.358.474 54,976,651
Time ¢eposits with remaining term Lo matirity:
Up to 3 months 1,‘!]25,‘&1‘] L.780.870 1.904,780
Dwer 3 months and up to & months \WH.‘“E 1,290,770 1,281,866
Char & maonths and up to 12 months 1.#&!.25! 1,690,778 1,870,138
Dver L year and up to 5 years 2,500,142 2,379,546 2,343,728
Oheer 5 years 10,178 11,106 2.256 622
Total time deposits 7,080,587 7,153,070 9,697,131
Total deposils from retail customers Iblﬂlg"ﬁﬁu 89,963, 448 82,568,136
{ii} Corporate customers ] ]
Current accounts 104,783,111 68,352,249 54,110,610
Savings accounts 3.463,515 4,041,778 3,373,764
Time deposils with remaining term Lo matarity:
Up 1o 3 months a,ggz,m 9,734,684 9,349,147
Over 3 months and up Lo & months 2,394,308 1,604,487 3,642,604
Over & months and up to 12 months 1,221,083 2.287.062 2,130,624
Over 1 year and up to 5 years 1,181,318 260,557 233,830
Tatal time de posits 13,098,781 13,386,790 15,356.290
Total deposits from corporate customers 122255407  B5,780.817 72,840,664
(il Govermment i
Current accounts 10,252,546 7,742,294 7,994,530
Savings accounts mlpﬁ' 3,386,221 2.90%,782
Time deposits with remaining lerm to malarity:
Up Lo 3 months m_;m 501 6,918,162
Ower 3 months @nd up o & months 4800 126,702 1,600
Ower & months and up to 12 menths 3,304,794 3,004,187 5,828
rwer | year and up to 5 years 277,000 100 -
Over 5 years 122 | « S
Tokal time deposits 3,709,538 2,131,490 £,925,590
Tatal deposits fram government 18,261,171 14,260,005 17,829,902
Tatal dapasits fram non-hank customers 241,528,828 190,004,270 173,258,702
I ———
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iT. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS
31 Docember 3L Decernber 31 December
2021 FOED 2019

Borrowings Irom cantral banks MUR' D0DO MUR" DOO MUR® 000

=For relinancing = 1.977.685 -
Barrowings from other financlal instituiions

«For refinancing 916_&52 3,139,542 2,718,585
Borrowings from banks

= In Mauritius 4,358,708 3,056 990 2,580,602

- Abroad = 2,011,734 < 871,028

18,

18k,

5275400 11,085.951 10.140.215

Remaining term to matwrity

Up Lo 3 months 4,358,708 2,041,212 5,767,984
Cwer 3 months and up o 6 manths - 3,049,797 1,162,205
Cver & months and up to 12 months 58,427 TR0, 158 36,353
Ower 1 year and up to 5 years !ﬁ,m 4,570,261 2512345
Dwer 5 years ] 493,621 485,523 561,328

5275400 11085951 10,140,215
TAXATION

Accounting polley

Income tax

Current tax assels and Habilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to
tha taxation authorities, The tax rates and Lax laws used lo compule the amount are thase that are enacted or substantively enacled by
the reporting date,

Corporate social redponsibility (CSR)

Corporate social respansibility (CSR) was legisiated by the Covernment of Mauritius in July 2009, I terms of the legisiation, the Bank is
required to allocate 2% of its segment A chargrable income of the preceding Ninancial year to government approved CSR NGOS. 4s from
July 2017, follewing amendments {o the Finance Act 2017, the Bank was required as from 01 January 2017 to 31 December 2018 1o
remit Lo the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority (MRAY at least 50% of the CSR contribution. Affer D1 January 2019,
{he Bank 1s reguired to remil to Lhe Director General of the MRA at 1east 75% of the CSR contribution. This ks recorded as part of incame
tax expenss.

Bank levy

The Bank is liable (o pay a special levy as per the VAT Act enacted under the Finance Act 2018, Special levy s calcilated as a
percentage of the Bank's loviable incoma from residenls excluding Global Business Licence holders (the speclal levy was paid as a
percentage of ils segmental chargeabile ncome for thee year 2019 and 2018). A communique Issued by the Bank of Mauritios during the
yual under review ciarified thal Special Levy should be treated as a tax expense, 1

The income tax rate applicable tor 2019 was L5%. As from 01 January 2020, a new tax regime IS applicable lor the banking sector.
Banks are being taxed at 5% on tne first MUR 1.5 billion of their chargeable income, at 15% of the chargeable Income belween MUR 1.5
billian and the base year income, and at 5% an the remainder, subject to meeting prescribed conditions,

. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Current tax liablities can be analysed as follows: 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 00O MUR" QoD MUR' Q00
Al 01 January 246,774 487,139 480,633
Incame tax expenses 205954 235,812 537,016
Carporate Social Responsibility contribution _;«'_z.jr_ag GE, 985 39.410
Bank lewy payahie 186,416 171,368 171,368
Underprovision in priar years 30,087 39,334 22,166
Falo ouring INe year (Note 33 (434,103) {759,865) (763,454)
At 31 December 307,867 246,774 487,139
TAX EXPENSE
The total tax expense can also be analysed as follows: |
Income tax expense 205,954 279,146 559,182
Delerred Lax tcredit] / charge {Mefe 18d) (47,0045 (226,412) (268,504)
Carporate Social Respensibility contribulion 72,749 &8,986 39,410
Bank levy 216,812 171,368 171388

Total tax expense 448,211 203,088 501,452
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1B8. TAXATION (CONT'D)

18c. TAKX RECONCILIATION 31 December 31 December 31 Decembear

2021 2020 2019
MUR* GO0 MUR' Q00 MUR' DOO
Profit pefore tax Irom continuing operatiens 2,538,108 1,747,002 1,001,219
Tax on accounting profitat 7% (2020:7% and 201%:.17%) 177,488 122,290 150,183
Underprovision in prior years 30,799 39,334 22,165
Han allowable expenses 64,622 {40,030) 237,823
Exampt incams £71,453) (96,638) {69, 285)
Corporote Social Responsibliity contribution T'Z.,Tﬂ. B8, 98H 359,410
Special levy on banks 184,416 171,368 171,368
Tan rate differential {12,610) 36,774
" 448211 793,088 550,963

Forelgn rax credil * # (49,511)
Total Lax expense 448,211 293,088 501 452

18d. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETSNLIABILITIES

Accounting policy

Deferred tax is provided on termporary differences at the reporting date belween the tax bases of assets and Bablities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax fabilities are recognised for 8ll taxable temporary differences, excapt:

> Where the deferred tax labiity arises from Uhe initial recognitlon of goodwlll or of an asset or liabiiity in a transaction that |s not a
business combination and, at tha time of the transaction, aflects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit o loss; and

= In respect of lagabie lemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaies and associates, where the timlng of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied and it |5 probable that the temporary dillerances will nel reverse in the
loresevable future. ]

Beterred tax assels are recognised for all deduclible temporary differences, carry forward of unused fax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that It is probable that tazable profit will be availsble against which the deductible lemporary differences, and the carry
Torward i unused tax credits and unused tax josses can be utilised excepts

> Vinere the deferred Lax asset relating to the deductible lemparary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or flability
In & transaction that is not 8 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nelther the accounting prafit nor faxable
prafit or lass; and

2 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and azsociates, deferred lay assels are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable thak the temporary differences will reverse in the foresesable future and laxable peafit
will b availabile agalnst which the temparary ditferences can be ulifised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i reviewed al each reporting dale and reduced to the exlent Lthal it is na langer probabie
that sufficient taxable profit will be svailstle Lo allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o be utilisad,

Unretognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that tuture taxable profit willaliow the deferred tax asset ta be recovered.

Defarred tau assets and liabilities are measured at the ax rates thal are expected fo apply in the yoar when thé asset is realized or lhe
liability is setfied, based on Lax rates (and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Current tay and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss are recognised outside prafit ar Ioss, Deferred tay items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaclion eilher in other comprehensive Incorme of directly in equity.

Delerred lax assets and deferred tax labiitkes are offsel It a legatly enforceable right exists to set off current t2x assels againsl current
tax liabilities and the deferred tanes relate |0 L Same Laxable enfity and the same taxation aulhorily,

The deferred tax rate applied lor segrment A and segment 8 is 7% and 5% raspactively (2020; 7% & 5% and 2019 7% & 5%). The change
Inthe rate in 20019 resuited in a tax credit of MUR 112,59 million in the statement of prafit or loss and MUR 1 10.47 millian in other
comprehensive incame for the year ended 31 December 2019,
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8. TAXATION (CONT'D)
18d. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETSWLIABILITIES (CONT'D}

A DT Lanuary

ChargeAcredit) to pralif or loss:

- Moonrinent for [he year (Mate 180

- Change in tax rate (Nete 1800
Chargedcredit ) [o elher cemprehensive income:

- Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations
- Revdlation of properties

- Change in tax rate

At-31 December

Deferred tax assets

Aliowances far eredit impairment
Pension laniity

Dbher provisions

Deferred tax Habllltles
Accelerated capital allowances
Revaluatian of property

Wet dolerred Lax assets

Deferred Lax assels

Allowances for eredit impalrmend
PEnsian kankifity

Other provisians

Deferred tax fabilitles
Accelereled capital allowances
Rewaliiation of property

Mot deferred tax assets

31 Bimphr 3] December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
_II_UR' Qoo MLIR' Q00 MUR' 00
(497,123 [219,302) 163,996
(AT, 0043 (226,41 {155,921)
t - {112,587
25,684 (51,405) (14,2712
- - 2.950
= = (100,469
{518,447) (497, 123) (219,302
01 Jamuary Chargefferedlt)  Chargeferedit] 31 December
2019 ta prafic or kess 1o 0C] 2019
MUR' 000 MUR" Q00 MUR' Q00 MUR' 000
(503,857) 55,435 = (A48, 423)
(13,4700 (3.564) {6,347 (23,380)
{2,454) {2,313) : (4,767}
(519, 761) 49,557 {6,347) {476, 570)
484 897 (315,063 = 169,837
198,880 {3.004) (108.442% a7.431
163,936 (268,507) (114,731} [219,302)
01 January Chargef{eredit)  Charge/icredity 31 Decomber
2020 to prafit ar loss to OCH 2020
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' D00 MUR' 000
(448,423) (219,001} = {BaT. 424
(23,380} 24,103 {51,409 {50.686)
{4,767) 62} * (5,225}
(47645700 (195.360) (51,409 {723,339
169,837 127 481) 42,37k
B7.431 (3.591) B3.840
(£19.302) (226,412} {51,409 {497,123}
2021 to profit or foss 1o 00l ]
MUR* 000 MUR' 00D MUR' 000
ws.420) o -~
(50,686) 25,684
5,229 2l
(723,339) 25684
142,376 -
83,840 =
{497,123} 25,684
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19, OTHER LIABILITIES
3iDscember 31 December 31 Decemner
2021 2020 2049
MUR' ﬂﬂﬂ MUR" 000 MLR' OO0
Balznca dua [0 clearing 3-.-074,531 2,198,673 2,951,306
Bills payabile 273195 190,709 142,107
Accruals for expenses ToL293 360,576 408,142
Accounts payable 858,087 576,059 398,984
Deterred income 35,118 50,734 45,134
Halances in transit 971,002 862,598 899,889
Others 4 14,029 27,849
ECL on memorangum items (Note 22 296,159 337,982 112,666
6,249,510 4,581 660 5,196,076
200 STATED CAPITAL
Authorised, jssued and pald wp share capilal Humber' Miilion MUR' 000
AL 31 December 2021 40,000 ﬂ 3,000
el
At 31 December 2020 40,000 400,000
At 31 December 2019 40,000 400,000
31 December 31 December 31 Decembe
€apital Contribution 2021 2020 2019
MUR' DCD MUR' 000 MUR' 000
ALDL January 11,654,001 11,854,011 11,044,011
Capital contribution received during thie year by 1 - Q00,000
Carversion into share capital during bhe year - = {90,0000
AL 31 Decembar 11,854,001 11,854,011 11,854,011

21,

Fully pait ardinary shares at no par value carry one vele per share and {he right to dividend.
The capital confrioution refers to additional capital over and above the actual staled capital. 1L is Tully paid up, unsecured, interest ree and
s perpetual with no maturity date. The shareholder shall not demand, sue for or receive payman! of the whole or any part of the capital
contribiiition or elnim any sat-olf which would result i the principal amount of the capital contributhon oulstanding 1o be reduced. The Bank

reserves Lhe right to issue ordinary shares aqainst the amounl of capllal contribulien al any lime at prevalling markel, rates,

DIVIDEND
Accounting polley

Dividends on ordinasy shares are recognised In equity in the period In which they are authorised by the directors. Divdends [hat are

declarod aller the reporting date ace dealt with in the notes to the financlat statements:

Cash dividend declared during the year:

2021: 1 cenl per share; 2020: Nil and 2019; 3.60

cents par share

Less dividend pald: 2021+ 1 cent per share] 2020:

Nil and 2019: 3,60 cents per share
Dividend payatie

Oividend declared after the reporfing dake:
2021, 2020 & 2019: Nil

e dividends were pald 1o SEM (Bank) Haldings Lid n bay 2021,

“3i ecomber 31 December 31 Decemner
2021 2020 2019
MU 000 MUR' D00 WUR' D00

400,000 . 1,319,000
{400,000) (1,319,000}
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54.

22, MEMORAMDUM ITEMS

Acceptances, quarantees, letters of credit, endorsements and
a other abligations on account of customers

Acceptances on account of customers

Guarantess on account of customers

Lellers of credit and other obligations on accownt of customers

b Commitments

Undrawn credit {acilities
c  Others

Inward bills held lor collection
Ol ward bills senl for collection

Total

31 Deécember 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' QOO

291,106 234,453 571,824
9,443,377 B, 473,986 7,118,005

| 1,144,247 457,807 362,982
10,878,730 9,166,246 8,153,711
11,474,814 10,851,199 11,675,375
195,273 96,311 144,051
40,871 128,759 36,135
236,144 225,070 180,186
20,242,515 20,009,272

22,58%,688
e

The lable below shows the credit quality and the maximum expesure to credit risk based on the Bank's internal credit rating system

and yaar-end stage classilication.

At 31 December 2021:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3. Tatal
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

Internal rating grade
Parfariring
High grade 8,779,688 = = 8,779,688
Standard grade mm.m:! 639,980 L 5.511.‘34!2
Sub-standard grade 6,594,789 1,422,495 - 8,017,284
Mon=perfarming :
Individually impaired = = 160,734 160,734
Total 20,366,479 2,062,475/ 160,734 22,589,688
At 31 December 2020;

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal rating grade MUR" 000 MUR" 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 00D
Performing
High grade 8,435,235 7.758 B,442,593
Standard grade 4910211 207,849 5,118,060
Sub-standard grade 5.442,588 1,045 851 6,492,439
Mon-periorming
Individuaily impaired v 189,023 189,023
Total 18,788,034 1,265,458 189,023 20,242,515
At 31 December 2019:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal rating grade MUR'ODO MUR'D00 MUR'000 MUR'000
Ferforming
High grade 5,930,298 42 486 5,972,784
Standard grade 4,837,768 1,171,542 6,009 310
Sub-standard grade 7,059,635 966,478 E 8,026,173
Non-perfarming
Individually impaired 1,005 1,005
Tatal 17,827,761 2,180 508 1,005 20,009,272

Detalls of the Bank's internal grading system are set oul in note 37(bXi).
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22. MEMORANDUM ITEMS (CONT'D)

An analysis of changes In the gross carrying amount |5 as follows:

At 31 December 2021: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR'DO0 MUR'DO0 MUR'DOD MUR'0GO
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 2021 | 18,788,034 1,265.458 189,023 20,242,515
Financial assets ariginated 11,509,859 836,024 16,127 12,362,020
Assels derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (8,899,577) (1,069,834) (45,436)  (10,014,847)
Translers Lo Stage 1 36,031 (36,031 ] -
Transfers ta Stage 2 (1,067,878) 1,067,878 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - 11,0200 1,020 2
Gross carrylng ameount as at 31 December 2021 20,366,479 2,062,475 160,734 22,589,688
At 31 December 2020: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MUR'000Q MUR"QDOQ MUR'0GO MUR'D00
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 2020 17,827,761 2,180,506 1,008 20,008,272
Financial assets originated 11,989,463 435,688 61,379 12,487,730
bssets derecagnised or repaid {exciuding write offs) (10,847,370  {1.399.010) {8,107} (12,254,487)
Transfers to Stage 1 205,202 (205,202) - -
Transfers {o Stage 2 (387.022) 387,022 <
Transfers to Stage 3 - (134, 7463 134,746 .
Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 18,788,034 1,265,458 189,023 20,242,515
At 31 December 2019: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR'C0O0 MUR'ODO MUR'0Q00 MUR'000
Gross carrying amount as at 01 January 2019 12,179,781 5,484,390 3,498 17,667 669
Financial assets originated 9,887,203 1,119,556 T 11,006,759
Assets derecognlsed or repald (excluding write affs) (6,605,829)  (2,056,794) (2,533) (8,665,1586)
Transters to Stage 1 2,424,141 (2,424, 141) . 1
Transiers lo Stage 2 (57,375) 57,495 (120} ¥
Transfers to Stage 3 {160) > 160 =
Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 17,827,761 2,180,506 1,005 20,009,272
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is, as fallows:
At 31 December 2021; Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR'000 MUR'000 MUR"000 MUR'G00
ECL allowance as at 01 January 2021 83,910 108,892 145,173 337982
Moverment for the year 57,333 21,759 28,533 107,625
Assets derecognised or repaid (exciuding write offs) (55,876) (77,427) {16,144) (149,447
Transfers ta Stage 1 244 {244) - =
Transfers ta Stage 2 {3,139) 3139 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 = (1) =l *
At 31 December 2021 82,472 56,125 157,563 296,160
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22. MEMORANDUM ITEMS (CONT'D)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is, a5 follows: {(cont'd)
At 31 December 2020: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MUR000 MUR'O00 MUR'000 MUR'GO0
ECL allowance as at OL January 2020 98,721 10,349 3,596 112,666
Mavemenl for the year 73,321 105,118 143,845 322 284
Assels derecognised or repaid (exchuding write ofls) (B6,874) (7.402) (2.692) (96,968)
Transfers Lo Slage 1 559 {5593 # -
Transiers lo Stage 2 {1.817) 1,817 -
Transiers lo Stage 3 . (424} 424 -
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2020 B3,910 108,892 145,173 337,982
Al 31 December 2019: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
MUR"000 MUR'O00 MUR'000 MUR'ODO
ECL allowance as at 01 Japuary 2019 57,115 53,200 4,590 114,995
Movement for the year 78,274 4,138 - 82,412
Assels derecognised or repaid (excluding write affs) (61,965} (21, 782y {994) (B4,741)
Transiors to Stage 1 25,545 (25,545) . £
Transfers la Stage 2 (248) 248 = -
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2019 98,721 10,349 3,596 112 666
The Bank is subject to varicus legal ciaims from former employees and cusiomers with claims totallying MUR 746.91 milfion (2020: MUR 724.8
millian and 2019 MUR 584.1 millien). Outof these; the Bank has made a provision of only MUR 50.9 million as at 31 December 2021 while for
the remaining amount of MUR 656 milllon, the Bank has not made any provision on the basis thal so far there (s no indication that the claims
would succeed in court,
23, ASSETS PLEDGED
The aggregate carrying ameunt of assets thal have been pledged Lo secure The credil facliities of the Bank are as Tollows!
31 Decomber 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR* 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Bank of Mauritius Bonds / Government of Mauritius Bonds 4,076,830 £.555,000 70,000
Other investment securities =3 4,884,628
4,076,830 11,439 628 FOO00
Analysed as,
- In Mauritius 4,076,830 6,955,000 70,000
- Dverseas - 4,884,628 .
4,076,830 11,439,628 70,000
24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Approved and contracted lor 253,694 B5,901 182,952
Approved and not conbracted for '219;'!;7"5 175,288 402,998
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25, MET INTEREST INCOME

26,

Interest Income using the eflective interest methoo
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans to and placements with banks

Loans and advances (o mon-baik customers
Investment securities al amortised cost

niestiment securities al FVTOC

Other interest income
Investment securities measured at FYTPL
Derivatives held for risk managermnent

Total interest income

Interest expense using the effeclive Interest method
D posits from custemers

Gther bor rawed funds

Interest grpense an lease Fahilities

Other

Other interest expense
Derivaiives heid far risk managemenl

Tatal interest expense
Hetinterest Income

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Fretail banking cusiamer rees
Corporate banking customer fees
Card Income

Qther

Tatal fee and cammissian Income
Fee and commission expensi
Interbank transaction fees

Other

Total fee end commission expensg
Met 1ee and commdssion incame

57.
31 Decembey 31 December 31 Decembar
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
9,080, 34,603 125,512
43,189 133,551 231,578
4,594,240 5,007,425 5,692,812
1,072,392 60w, 125 719,612
739,335 945,362 1,062,746
6,458,236 6,935,665 7,834,260
17103 55,390 66,730
185,734 215,159 78,954
202,837 241,549 145,744
6,661,073 7.227,214 7,980,004
(446,505 (TH0,638) (1,549,120}
(88,4511 (265,058) {354,307
(13,144 (13,761 (15,064
(30 (1,746} (5,038)
(5481300 <1.062,20% (2,023,529
{395,716) 434,831) (163,908)
(395,716) (434,831) (163,906)
{(9473,846) (1,497 ,034) (2, 187,435)
5,717,227 5,730,180 5,792,569
ar m 31 Decemiber 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR 000 Wik 000 MUR® 000
310,341 274,620 264,105
409,599 309,083 393 260
357,511 359,274 400,141
52,792 28,373 16,955
1,130,243 971,350 1,076,461
32,446} {21,922 {16,800
(21,184) {14,778) (14,916
(53,630) {356,700) {31,716)
1,076,613 334,650 1,044,745
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27. NET TRADING INCOME

28,

29,

30.

a1 Derzm!ﬂr 31 December 31 December

it 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Profit arising on dealings in 1oreign currencies N-S.BSI 469,488 505,120
Fair valug movements on debl securities measured at FYTPL 80,957 211,096 445,554
Other imerest rale instruments ) 27,548 146,967 146,676
972,356 B27,551 1,097,350

NET GAINS/{LOSSES) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVTPL
3 tm:unl:er 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR" 000 MUR' 005
Financial assets measured at FVTPL EJ;QZE 30,083 #3141
Derivatives held for risk management purposes } 170,454 (59,301} {69,148)
228,083 (29,218) (32,287

NET GAINS OMN DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVTOCI
31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 ! 2020 2019
MUR" m MUR' 000 MUR" DD
Debt securities measured at FYTOCH 588,098 ! 1,203,006 224,380

The Bank rzalsed significant gains during the year 2020 which was driven by the Bank's treasury management aperation,

PERSONMEL EXPEMNSES
Accounting policy

‘Short-term employee benefils include items such as the following, If expected ta be setiied whally befare twalve months after the end

of thie annual reparting pericd o which the employees render the related services:

(a) wages, salaries and social security contributions;

(bY  paid annual leave and paid sick leave;

(c)  bonuses; and

1y non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and free of subsidised goots or services) for current employess.
"Wien an employee has rendered service to an entity during an accounting period, the entity shall recognise the undiscounted amaunt
of shart-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

{8} as a lability faccrued expensed, after deducting any amaunt already paid. If the amount aiready paid exceeds the undiscounted
amaont of the benefits, an entity shall recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will iead
to, for example, & reduclicn in fulure payments or a cash refund.

(0 as an expense, unless anather IFRS requines or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an assel.
The Bank operates a defined contribution pension plan. The contribution payable to 3 defined contritution plan 7 in propartion to the

services rendered to the Bank by the cmpiayees and is recorded as an etpense under personnel expenses. Unpaid tontributions are
recorded as a lishility. Refer ta note 14 for accounting pelicy on defined benefit plans,

3iDecember | 31 December 31 December

2021 | 2020 2019
‘MUR'000. | MUR' DOD MUR' 000
Salaries | 1,3“.&55 1,231,735 1,385,696
Othar social security abligaticns | 21.592 18,293 29,008
Contributions {a defined contribution plan 143,285 119018 137,615

Defined benelit plan (Node 14 (a)) | 0,416 39,214 32,684
Restdual retirement gratuities (Note 1410} : 24,530 184,381) 30,925
Staff weifare cost 50,613' ! 39,301 54,308
Others . 59,428 35.037 27,605

1,748,224 | 1403317 1,697,838
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31. OTHER EXPENSES
31 December 31 December 31 Decembir

2021 2020 2019
MUR! 000 MUR! 000 MUA' 000

Softwarg licensing and other infarmation technolegy cost 461,887 434,536 435,659
Wtilithes and telephone chamges ] EELM 51,373 56,740
Professional charges I..ST'.TH 128,186 142,170
Markeling casts 44,325 52,721 V6,653
Rent, repairs, maintenante and seourity charges 187,428 125,158 131,351
Licence and other registrathon fees 26,233 24,083 24,509
Pastage, courier and statlonery coasts AT, 874 44,285 50,683
insurance costs 5,3;,3?1 42,994 43,006
Dithver® 285,500 105,759 123,536

L 13araa 1,008,095 1,084,307

* fncludas mainly alher aperational costs.
32, CREDIT LOS5 EXPENSE OM FINANCIAL ASSETS & MEMORANDUM ITEMS
The table below shows the impairment charges recorded in the statement of prodit or loss under FRS9:

At 31 Decembar 2021: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MUR'O00  MUR'GO0  MUR'O00  MUR' 000
Loans and advances to non-bank customers ] {ﬂsﬂ} 493,585 1,980,589 2414011
Loans ana placements with banks® (2,456 s = (2,456)
Deht instruments measured at amortised cost and FyTOC" 2T .674) 23,552 - 8,122y
Loan commitments 9,580 e - 9,580
Off balance sheet items {Guarantees, Letlers of credit, Acceplances) | {11,018 (82,7741 12,390 (51,402)
Total credit loss expense under IFRS 9 | {99,135) - 464,367 1,993,379 2,358,611
Bad dabls recovered (11,093)
2,347,518
At 31 December 2020: Stage 1 Stage 7 Stage 3 Total
MUR" 000 MUR' Q00 MUR" 000 MUR" 000
Loans and agvances Lo non-bank customers 54,159 (701,173 4,320,300 3,673,286
Loans and placements with banks® (7,289) - (7.289)
Dett instruments moasured ot amortised cost and FYTOC" {8.808) 24,665 - 15.857
Loan commitments {15,350} - {18,350}
Off balance sheet tems (Guarantees, Lellers of credil, Acceplances) 3,539 98,550 141,577 243,666
Tatal eredit loss expense under [FR5 9 29,251 (577, 958) d4,461 877 3,513,170
Bad debts recovered (50,098)

2.B63.072

At 31 December 2019; Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3 Taotal
MUR' 000 MUR' 0o0 MUR" D00 MUR" 000
Loans and advances Lo noa-bank customers 229,143 BO49TT 2,653,981 3,688,101
Loans and placemaents wilh banks* 47,3728 - (av,372)
Debt inslruments measured ab amor tised costand FPYTOCIT T.729 . . 7.T29
Loan commitments 42,824 . 42,834
OIF batance sheet (lems (Guaranlees, Latbers of cradil, Acceplances) (1,228) (A2 941 {994 {45,163)
Tolal eredit loss expense under IFRS 9 211,108 TH2, 016 7,652,367 3,646,129
Bad debls recovered (39,463)
3,606,666

*ECL movement for cash and cash equivalents is inchuded under loans and placements with banks
**ECL movement for dabl instrumaents measured ab FYTOCH is included under debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
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33,

34,

35,

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
31 December 31 December 31 December

Hotes 2021 2020 2019
Operating setivities MUR' 000 MUR* OO0 HUR' 900
Profit for the year 2,090,187 1,453,014 499,767
Adjustments ta defermine not cosh flows:
Depraciation of property and equipment 10 148,112 150,235 143,121
[ praciation of righl-ol-use assels 11 64,107 37,439 43,941
Amertization of intangible aszets 12 411,081 457,997 474,547
Pepsion expenss 4,946 (45,167} B4,793
Credit loss expense on financial assers 32 ._2_;3&?;'51;_ 3,863,072 3,606,606
Imepairment of non linandal agsets 1o J i = 99823
kel foss J (gaind on disposal of property and equipment BYS/ (734) (BR4)
Tax eipense t8h 448,211 253 {188 501,452
Operating profit belore working capital changes 5,596,057 6,209,834 5,369,365
Change in operaling assels and [iabilities
Het change in derivative financial assets 194,839 114,516 8.212

Wet change in loans to and placements with banws

Kel change in loans and advances Lo non-bank custemers
Hat change in investment securities

Mel chamge In mandatory balances wilh central bank

2,008,312 4,091,635
(3,677,294) (8,655,418)
(18,934,240 (22,151 988)
(423378 (558,239

Mel change in olher essets H4,270 55,377
Mel change In depasits from banks 190,304 133,240
Nel change in depasits from non-bank customers 16745 568 25.727.862
et change In derivative financial liabliities Hi!,ﬂ.ﬂ 164,299 40,099
Mel change in ather llablities LETI L6 (1,067,786) 548,304
Income tax paid 18a {d34,103) (759, BES) (763 454)
Net cash generated fraom operating activities Sﬂ- 554 695,238 3,844,995

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bank manages Its capital to ensure thal It will be able Lo continue as a going concern and maximise refurns bo shareholders, It also
ensures that adequate capdal is maintained ta support its growth stralegies, ils risk appetile and deposilors' confidence, while complying
with statutory and requiatory reguirements, The capltal resowrces of the Bank are disclosed in Uhe stalemant of changes i equily .

The Bank has mel the respective minimum cagital requirements set gut by the relevant requiatory body and, where appiicanle, apprapriate
trarsfers have also been made lo statutory reserves, ranging from 10% to 25% of annual profits.

The Bank bas also mel its respeclive minimum capilal adeguacy ralio requirements.

31December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019

1 Restaled

MUR' 000 MU' 000 MUR? 000
Tier 1 capital 16,932,308 15,197,392 13,915,906
Tier 2 capital 1,769,065 1,837,758 1,810,211
Eligibie capital hase 18,701,373 17,635,150 15,726,117

— —

Rizk welghted assets 107,928,694 110,653,895 106,543,616
Capltal adequacy ratio (%) 17.33 15.94 14.76

Tier 1 Capilal also known as going corcern capital cansists of sharehofder's equily less revaiuation of fiied assets and regulatory
deductions such as intangible assets and deferred tax and Tier 2 Capital also known as the supplementary capital that provides loss
ansorptian of a gane concesn basis Includes 45% revaluation reserves on fixed assets and allowances for credit losses (restricted lo 1.25%
of total credit risk weighted assate).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard SBM Hoddings LEd, 8 company incorporated in Mawritivs as its ullimase holding company and SBM (Baokd Holdings Ltd,
& company Incarporataed in Mauritius as its immediate holding company. SBM Haldings Lid s @ public company, domiclied in Mauritius and
listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius, The address of the regislered office of both SBM Holdings Lid and SEM (Bank) Holdings Ltd is
5BM Tower, L Guesn Elizabelh || Avenue, Port Louls, Mawilius.
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D)

Related party transactions in relation to Post Employment Benefit plans are as follows

31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR"® 000 MUR' 00D
Deposits at end of year 272,579 188,541 211,640
Interest expense & E Z21a
Other income J 4 )
Contributions paid 161,360 132,322 172,701

Transactions of the Bank with the ultimate holding company and the subsidiaries within the Group are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2019
'MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Net interast income ' Z$.259 44,351 20,859
Non interest income 24,199.. . - <
Non-interest expense (23,011) :
Derivative financial instruments (asset) 109,214 35,507 45,154

Credit facilities to key management persannel and executive directors are as per their contract of employment. All other
transactions with key management personnel and directors, whether credit facilities, deposits or purchase of goods and
services, are at market terms and conditions and will be settled in cash.

All credit facilities with entities considered as related parties disclosed above are at markat tarms and conditions and will be
settled in cash. Credit facilities are secured except for credit eard advances and some personal leans which are granted
under an unsecured loan scheme in the normal course of business.

The above mentioned putstanding balances arase in the normal course of business. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Bank has ralsed expected credit losses for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties as per ECL model
currently being applied on financial assets. At 31 December 2021, none of the facilities to related parties was non-
perfarming (2020: MUR Nil, 2019: MUR Nil). In addition, for the year ended 31 December 2021 the Bank has not written off
any amount owed by related party (2020: MUR Nil, 2019; MUR Nil).
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an

adl)y

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Direclors aversees the risk management framswark and ensures decision making is aligned with Uhe Board-driven strategic risk
objeclives and risk appefite, The Board approves the risk policies and a set of prudential fimits and risk lolerarice limils, besides requlatory
limits, withifn which the Bank operates. The Senior Managemenl manitors a full spectrum of risks on an ongoing basis and is accountable to
ensure its operalions are within board approved policles and risk appetite framework besides regulatory Hmits, Any deviation and non-
compllance are reported Lo Board Risk Commitiee. The principal risks arising from financial instruments to which the Bank are exposed includs
credit risk, thquidity risk, market risk, operational risk, strategic rish and reputational risk,

Classiication of financial assets and financial llabliities

The following table shows Lthe meassurement categories under IFRS 9 for Lhe Bank's financial assets and financial | abilities:

Classifcation and measurement 31 December 31 Decomber 31 December
Financial assets category 2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cest 16,749,335 15,386,899
Mandalary balances with central bank Amortised Cosl 9,749,384 9,326,006
Leans to and placements with banks Amartised Cest 3,130,387 5,174,088
Derivative lnancial Instruments Fair value through PAL | 774,785 889,301
Loans and advances to non-bank customers Amartised cost | 99,038,527 99,025,404
Investment securities Amartised cost | 33,808,788 19,339,255
Investment securities Fair value throwgh OCI 50,175,246 42,291,708
Investment securlties Falr value through PEL 9,349,604 11,825,756
Equity investments Fair value through OCI 4,408 3411
Other assels Amorlised Cast 533,302 626,543
Total financial assels 223,313, 7Tha 203,888 371
Financial liablflities

Deposits from barks Amortised Cost 1,481,854 1.11%.661 929.357
Deposits from non-hank customers Amortised Cost 241,528,828 190,004,270 171,258,702
Other barrowed funds Amortises Cost (5275400 11085951 10,140,215
Derfvative financlal Instruments Fair value through PAL b 55!!,&55 1,165,271 1,000,972
Other liabilities Amortised Cost 6,211,999 4,528,646 5,225,986
Total financial liabilities _ﬁ%ﬁﬁ' 207,903,799 190,555,232

An amount of MUR 252 million has been excludod from other assets under the above section. (2020: MUR 174 millicn & 2019 MUR 165

o)

An amount of MUR 38 million has been excluded from other liabilitles under the above section. (2020 MUR 63 millian & 2019 MUR 36 million)
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7. RISH MAMAGEMENT {CONT'D)
a(lly Fair values

Accounting palicy

The Bank measures financial instruments, such as; derivatives at fair value at each regorting date, Fair vatues of financial instruments measured
at amartlsed cost are also disclosed under this note, Falr value Is: the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurament is based on the presumiption that the
transaction lo sell lhe assel or ransfer the fability takes place either:

* In the principal markel for the assat or lablity, or
= In the ahsence of a principal market, in the most agvantageous market for the asset or liabifity

The principal or the mast advantageous market musl be accessible to the Bank.The fair value of an assel or a liability s measured using tha
assumptions that markel participants would use when pricing the asset or liabllity, assuming thal market particlpants acl In thelr economic best
Interest. A fair value measurement of @ non financial asset takes inta account & markst particlpant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the naset in its nighast and best use ar by selling it to another market participant that would use the assel in its highest and best uss,

Sel out betow is a comparison of the carrying amaunts and fair values of financial instruments held al the reporting date.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Fair Falr Fair
' Carryling Value Value | Carrying Value WValue Carrylng Value Value
MUR' 000 MUR 00D MUR' 00D MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Financial assets . ol
Cash and cash equivalents (40,281,422 40,281,422 16,749,335 16,749,335 15,386,899 15,386,899
Mandatory balanees with centralbank 11,203,833 11,203,833 9,749,184 9,749,384 5,326,006 9,326,006
Loans ta and placements with banks 837,970 837,970 3,130,387 1,130,387 5.174.088 5,174,088
Derivative financial instruments 579,946 579,946 774,785 774,785 889,301 BES,301

Loans and advances to non-bank i
97,916,200 97,731,940 99,038,527 98,896,719 99,025,404 98, BO2 965

customears
investment securities | 119,392,466 117,890,045 93,333,638 94,899,868 73,456,719 73685759
Equily investments | 59 6,869 4,408 4,408 1411 3,411
Other assets | 535,827 535,827 533,302 533,302 B26,541 626,543
| 270,754,533 269,067,853 223313766 224,738,188 203,888,371 203,894,982
Financial liabilities | 0%
Depasits from banks 1,481,854 1,481,854 1,119,661 1,119,661 929,357 929,357
Depasits fram nan-hank customers 241,528,828 241,544,814 190,004,270 190,032,028 173,258,702 173,257,902
Dther boreowed tunds 5,275,400 5,275,400 11,085,951 11,085,951 10,140,215 10,140,215
Derivative finandial instruments | B65,655 565,655 1,165,271 1,165,271 1,000,972 1,000,972
Other liahilities 6,211,999 6,211,999 4,528,646 4,528,646 5,225,986 5,225.986

: 255,063,736 255,079,722 207,903,799 207,931,557 190,555,232 190,554,432

Loans and advances to non- bank customers
All the Tived loans and advances maluring aller ona year have been fair valuad based on the current pravalling lending rate.
Investment securities and equity investments

Al government bonds and BOM bonds have been lzir valued based on the latest weighled yield rate. The equity investment has been falr valued at
year end based on the net assels value of the investee, The Bank fair values its investment in mutual funds using net asset values,

Derivative Flnancial Instruments

Derivative praducts vaiued using a valuation methadology with market observable inputs indede {orward foreign exchange contracts, interest
rate swaps and eption conlracts acrass several assel classes, inchuding but not limited to forefgn curreneles, commodities, Indices and equities.
The most frequently appiied vaiuation techniques include farward pricing and swap models, using discounted cash flow methodology based on
market conventions. The models incorporate varicus inputs including loreign exchange spol and forward rates. interest rale curves, market
volatilities and other feeds from appointed valualion fcalculation agents.

Deposits from nen-bank custamers

For depasits Trom non-bank customers, all the term depesits maturing after one year have been fair valued based on the current prevailing
savings rale.

Excepl lor the leveis in which the financial assets and linancial liabilities ore shown in table 37 (aXiii), the fair values of the other financial assels
and financial liabilities arse categorised in level 3.
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37, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D}

adiii) Fair value measurement hierarchy

Fair value measurements of financial instruments can be grouped into level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the falr value is

observable, namely:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 - fair value measurements are those derived from Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for

the assel or fability, either direclly or indirectly,

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement Is unobservable.
The table below analyses financial instruments measured al fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into

whiich the fair value measurement is categorised.

31 December 2021
Derivative financlal assels

Investment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Debt securities

Investments at FVTOCI
Debt securities

Equity investments
Total assets
Derivative financial liabiities
Total labilities

| Quoted prices Significant
~ inactive significant \richsarvable
R y it fads
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
MUR® 000 MUR' 000 MUR* 000 MUR? 000
- 579,946 - 579,946
i 7,622,247 = 566,183 8,188,430
|+ e ) .
| 52,648,590 5,449,990 1,463,229 59,561,809
| = = 6,869 6,869
60,270,837 6,029,936 2,036,281 __ 68,337,054
- 565,655 - 565,655
- 565,655 - 565,655




SBM BANK (MAURITIUS)LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 fi.
37. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
afiiiy Fair value measurement hierarchy (cont'd)
Quoted prices Slgnificant
in active Signilicant unahservable
markets observable inpuls inputs
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2020 MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR" Q00 MUR' Q00
Derlvative financial assets - 774,785 - T74,T85
Investment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Debt securities 8,564,319 785,285 9,345 604
Investments at FYTOCT
Debl securities 45,724,570 3,805,254 645,422 50,175,246
Equity investments - . 4,408 4,408
Tolal assets 54,288,889 4,580,039 1,435,115 60,304,043
Derlvative financial liabilities 1,165,271 = 1,165,371
Total liabilities 1,165,271 1.165.271
31 December 2019
Derivative financial assets 889,301 B89,.301
Investment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Debt securities 11,116,554 F03.202 11,825,756
Investments at FVTOC]
Debt securities 38,675,057 2,999,631 617,020 42,291,708
Equity investments - £ 3411 3,411
Total assets 49,791,611 3,888,932 1,329,633 55,010,176
Derivative financial liabilities = 1,000,972 = 1,000,972
Total liabilities - 1,000,972 - 1,000,972
Reconciliation of level 3 assets:
31 December 31 December 31 Docember
2021 2020 2019
MUR" 000 MUR' 00D MUR' GO0
Balance at start of year 1,435,115 1,329,633 609,531
Additions 1,070,997 439,658 715,064
Disposals (532,909) (4111,256) (2,493)
Falr valug movement :15,553] 7,080 (11,4386)
Forelgn exchange adjustment 79,731 - 18,967
Balance at end ol year 2.036,281 1,435,115 1,329,633
There was no transfer between levels during the year,
b Credit risk

The Bank Is exposed to credit rish through its lending, trade finance, treasury, investment and leasing activities. Credit risk Is the risk of
loss arlsing from the failure of a counterparty to fulfll its contractual or financial obligations to the Bank as and when they fall due. The
Bank's credit risk is managed through a partfolia approach with prudential limits st across country, soversign, bank, single and group
concentration, industry and asset quality. The risk management team, independent of the origination process, ensures the accumulation
of assets within acceplable risk norms using Internal and external rating systems for the standardisation of credit assessment, The Bank
has a tiered credit sanclioning process depending on the credit quality, exposure type and amount. Credit expasures and risk profile are
manitared by the risk management team and are reported regularly to the Board Risk Management Committea, The Bank has also
enhanced its credit risk policy to relnfarce its controls on segment 8 lending.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk (cont’d)
() Maximum credit exposure

The mamimum exposure Lo credil rsk at the reporting date without taking accaunt of any collateral held and other credit enhancements is
as disclosed below:

31December 31Dscember 31 December
2021 2020 2019

Fund-tased exposures; MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

Cash and cash equivalents
Mandatory balances with central bank
Loans Lo and placements wilh banks

14,208,901 12,974,367
9,749,384 9,326,006
3,150,745 5,199,057

Derivative linancial instruments 9, 774,785 BRG3,301
Loans and advances to non-bank customers 109 ETQ.Z'H. 110,475,581 106,792,076
Investment securities 119,;4,3?‘,319- 931,376,566 73,483,287
Other assets 535,827 533,302 626,543

279,523,287 232,269,264 209,290,617

Mon-fund based exposures:

Acceplances, guarantess, letters of credil, endorsemenls and other abligations on |

account of custamers 11,114,874 5,391,316 8,333,807
Credit commitments 11,474,814 10,851,199  11,6752375

22,589,688 20,242,518 20,009,277

An analysis of the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk per class of financial asset, internal rating and ‘stage’, at the reporting date,
without taking account of any collateral held and other credit enhancements has been disciosed in Notes &, 8 and <.

An analysis of credit exposures, Inciuding non-fund based facilities, for advances to non-bank customers that are nelther past due nar
impaired using the Bank's credil grading system |5 given below:

31 December 31 C0ecember 31 December
2021 2020 2019

MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR" 0G0

Grades:

1 to 3 - High Grade | 49,9'?5,3&? 16,904,833 41 019 256
4 to 6 - Standard 37,534,694 35,889,770 42,947 906
T to 10 (ncluding unrated) - Sub standard 30,434,971 58,148,344 35094 326

117,946,032 110,940,847 100,061 488
———————a——

Grade 1 includes customers with low credit risk factors, strong financial conditions and excellent repayment capacities whereas grade 10
includes weak categary clients and unrated customers which have been defaulted to 10 on a prudent basis due to outdated financials,
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37. RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk {cont'd)
() Maximum eredlt exposure (cont'd)
Overview of modified loans
From a risk management point of view, once an asset s madified, the Bank cantinues te manitar the expasure until it 15 completely and
ultimately derecognised.
The table below shows [he grass carrying amount of medified financial assets tar which loss allswance has changed during the year,
31 Decembear 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying
“amournt ECL amount ECL amaunt ECL
MUR' 000 : MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 00O MUR’ 000
Modlfied loans 14,804,598 703,996 25.441,261 353,714 12,494,575 126,436
(i) Credit risk assessment

The cradit risk management framework is further supported by the policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and valldate
muodels ta assess and measure ECL.

The Bank uses a cambination of credit rating (internal and external) and statistical regresslon analyses lo determing the probabliity of
delaull. Statistical regression is derlved using an anabysis of historical data, whereby the Bank has estimated relationships between macra-
econormic variables, credit risk and credit losses. Counltry raling is also factared in ECL computation for non-resident counterparties,

Gavernance and post model adjustments

The IFRS 9 PD, EAD and LGD models are subject to the pravisioning policy that stipulates periodic model monitoring, periodic re-validation
ani delines approval procedures and authorities according to model materiafity, Post model adjustments (PMAs) are applied where
necessary to incorporate the most recent data available and are made on a temporary basis ahead of the underlying model paramater
changes being implemented.

Internal credit risk ratings

In order to minimise credit risk, the Bank has developed and maintained an internal credil rating model thal grades clients accarding ko
their degree of risk of default, The Bank's credit risk grading framework comprises different categories. The credit rating Infarmatian is
based an & range of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of defaull and applying experienced credit judgement. The nature af
the exposure and lype of horrower are taken into account In the analysis. Credil risk grades are defined using gualitative and guaniitative
lactors that are Indicative of risk of default,

The credit risk grades are designed and calibrated to reflect Lhe risk of defaull as credit risk deteriorates. As the credif risk increases the
difference in risk of default between grades changes. Each exposure is allocaled Lo a credil risk grade at initial recognition, based on the
available information about the counterparty. All exposures are manitored and the credit risk grade updated te retiect current information.
The manitaring procedures fallowed are both general and tailored to the type of exposure,

The following dala are typically used to monitor the Bank's expasures:

= Payment record and ageing analysis;

- Extent of utilisation of granted limit;

= Changes in business, linancial and economic conditions;

- Credit rating infermation supphied by external rating agencies: and

- For retall exposures internally generated dala of customer behaviour or other metrics,



SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 69,

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'ID

b Credit risk (cont'd)
(i) Credit risk assessment {cont'd)
Internal credit risk ratings (cant'd)

The Bank wses credit rish grages as o primary input inta the determinatian of the term structure of the PO lor corporate exposures. The Bank
callects periormance and defacit information about its credit nsk exposure analysed by lype of products and borrower as well as by crodit risk
grading. The Information used Is bath internal and external depgending on the portlolio assessed. The table belaw provides a mapping of the
Bank's internat credit risk grades to external ratings,

i, L]
Bank's credit risk BOM external rating Standard & Poor's Moody's Investors Fitch ratings

grades grade Rating services rating Description
1-3 1 AAA fo Ad- Apa fo Aad ARA LD AA- High Grage
d 2 At lo A= Al to A3 A+tg A Standard
5 3 BBB+ to BBE- Baal to Baa3 BBE+ to BBE- Slandarg
6 4 8B+ to BB~ Bal lo Ba3 HE+ to BR- Standard
7 5 B+ Lo B~ Bl to B3 B+ to B Sub-standard
B-10 [ CCC+to D) CaalteD CCC+ oD Sub-standard

The Bank analyses all data collecled using statistical models and estimates the remalning iifelime PD ol exposures and how these are expecled
to change aver time by using macrogconomic forecasts to adjust estimates of PDs.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Bank presumes that the credit risk on a finandlal asset has Increased signiticantly
since initial recognition when contractusl payments are more than 30 days past due unless the Bank has reasonabls and supportable
information that aemonstrate atherwise. The Bank has monitaring procedures in place to ensure that the criteria used to identily significant
increases in credit are effective, meaning that significant increase in credit risk is identified belore the exposure is defaulted or when the assel
becomes 30 days past due. The Bank performs pericdic bach-testing of Its ratings 1o consider whether the drivers of credil-risk that led to
defaull were accurately refiected in the rating in a timely manner,

1. Inputs, assumptions and technlques used in estimating ECL

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expecied Lo arise over the life of Ihe assel (the lifetime ¢xpecied credi loss or LTECL), unless
thera has been no significant increase in credit risk since arigination, In which case, the allawance is based an the 12 months' expected credil
loss (12mECL), The 12mECL is a compounded element of the LTECLs that represent the ECLS that result from defsull events an a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months aller the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caloutated on gither an individuat basis or @ collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfofio
of financial instruments.

Thit Bank has established a policy [o perform an assessmant, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a linancial instrument’s credit risk
has increéased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of defaull occurring over the remaining Afe of the
lmancial instrument.

For Tinanclal assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recavering either the entire outstanding amount, or & proportion
thareof, the gross carrying amaount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the linanclal asset,

The Bank calculates ECLs based on threa scensrios (baseline, upside and down side) to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximation to the EIR. A cash shortlall Is bhe difference between the cash Nows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash fiows that the entity expects ta receive,

Losn commitments are assessed along with the category of loan the Bank is committed Io provide, Le. commitments ta provide corparate loans
are gssessed using similar criteria to corporate loans.

Stage 1° The 1ZmECL Is calculated &5 the portion of LTECLs thal represents the ECLs thal resull from default events on a financial Instrument
thet are possible within the 12 months alter the reporting date. The Bank calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a
default occurring In the 12 manths lallewing the reparting date. These expected 12-month default probabllities are appllied to & forecast EAD
and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an appraximation bo the origingl EIR,

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a signilicant increase in credit risk since orlgination, the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. The
mechanlcs are slimilar o those explained above, inchuding the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGOS are estimated aver the lifetime of the
instrument. The expected cash shorttalls are discounted by an approximation Lo the original EIR.
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A7, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk (cont'd)
(i) Credit rish sssessment (cont'd)

1. Inputs, assumplions and lechnigues used In estimating ECL feont'd)

Stage 3: For loans considered credit<impaired, the Bank recognises the lifetime expecled credit losses for these loans. The method is similar Lo
thal for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set al 100%.

2. Incorpor atlon of lorward-looking infermation

The Bank incorperates forward loaking information that is avallabie without undue cost and effort into Both its assessment of whether the credil
risk of an Instrument nas Increased significantly since jts initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on analysis Irom econamic
experts and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecasl Infarmatlon, the Bank formulates a ‘hasecase’ view of the future direction
of ralevant econamic varlables as well as a representative range of other possibie forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two ar
mose additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabiiities of each guicome,

When estimaling the macro-econamlc varlables used n ECL calculation, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and a
downside). These economic scenarios are subject Lo different assumplions with the base scenario being the besl estimate. These estimales are
taken from repulable external providers based on economel rics methods.

The base case represenls a mast-likely outcome and is aligned witn information used by the Bank far pther purpases such as strateqic planning
and budgeting. The othar scenarlos represent mare optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the Bank carries out stress testing
of more exlreme shocks (o calibrale its determinalion of these other representalive scenarios.,
The Bank has identifled and documenled key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an
analysis of histerical data, has estimated relationships belween macro-econgmic variables, credit risk and credit losses. The following key
Indicators were considered;
National Accounts: GOP Discrepency

- Metional Accounls; Real Gross Capital Formation

= Nominal Bilaleral Exchange Rate

= Consumer Price index (CPI)

- Mational Accounts: Momingl Gross Domestic Product [GDP] = Purchasing Power Parity [PPP]

= Impficit Price Deilator: Gross Capital Farmation

= Labor Farce Survey: Unemploymant Rate
Interest rates: Risk Spread

- National Accounts: Real Exports of Goods and Services
Wage Rate Index - Real

= Interest Rates: S-year government bond yield

*  Terms al trade

In light of COVID-19, 5BM reviewed ils ECL Iramework so as o caler for the higher level of uncertalnty in marhels, both local and scross
borders. The Bank ensured that in doing so, It remains in line with the many guiding principles released by local and international bady on IFRS2
in a COVID-19 context, Adjusting for forward looking information during this unprecedented event, the Bank has factored in post model
adjustment to take Into account the unlikeliness to pay criteria on cerbain sectors Impacted by COVID=19. The adjustment is based on borrowers'
nor-paymen| behaviors observed in the current economic envirenment which may resull In an increasing amount of balances becoming past dus
and having a higher probability of default In the future, The Bank has alse considered the recent Russia/Ukraine war and the impact on thie
macra-gcanomic variables. As these were not captured in [be models, an overlay was estimated (o measure Lhe Increasing uncertalnty in the
local and international markets triggered by the war. The overlays determined by the Bank are based on the follovwing:

= COVID impacted sectorsflacilities (lourism as well as other restructured debts due to COVID-19)

= An analysis of downgrading of ratings as a resull ol COVID-19 and the recent war

- Recoverabliily assessment considefing the unlikeliness to pay and longer days past due triggered by COVID-19 and the Russia-Ukraine war.
Slgnificant Increase in credit risk

The Bank monitors all linancial assets that are subject Lo the impalrment requirements to assess whather there has been a significant Increase
In eredit risk since Initial recognition. If there has been signiticant Increase In credit risk, the Bank will measuse the loss allowance based on
lifetima rather than 12-month ECL. In asse<sing whether the credit rsk on a financial instrumenl has increased signilicantly singe initial
recagnition, the Bank compares the risk of a default eccurring en the tirancial instrument al the reparting date based on the remaining maturity
al the instrument with the risk of default that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial
instrument was lirst recogaisdd. In making this assessment, the Bank considers both guantitative and gualitative information that is regsanable
and suppaortable, including historical experlence and forward-looking infarmation thal s avallable withoul undue cost or effort, based on the
Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The ongaing assessment of whether a signilicant increase in credit risk kas occurred for revolving lagilities is similar to other lending praduct s,
This ls based on shifts In the customer™s Internal credit grade, but greater emphasts is alss glven to gqualtitative factors such as changes in usage.



5BM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 T1.

37. RISK NAMAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk (conl'd)
() Credit risk assessment (cont'd)

For corporate lending, {orward-looking intormation includes the future prospects of the Industries in which the Bank's counterparties operale,
obtalned from economic expert reports, financial analysts, gevernmentsal badies, and other similar organisations, as well as consideratlon of
various internal and external sources of actual and ferecast economic mformation. For relail lending, forward-looking Information includes the
same econemic lerecasts as corporate lending with additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly for certain industries, as well
as fnternally generated information of customer payment behaviour, The Bank aliocated its counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk
grade depending on thelr credit quality. The guantitative information is a primary Indicator of significant Increase in credit risk and |5 based on
the change in lifetime FD by comparing:

= the remaining lifetime PD at the reporing date; with

- the remaining litetime PO tar the peint in time that was estimated based on facts and crcumstances al the time of nitlal recognition of the
expasure.

The PDs used are farward Inoking and the Bank uses the same methadologies and data used to measure the loss allowance for ECL.

The quantitative tactors thar indicate a significant increase in credit risk are raflacted in PD maodels an a timely basis. Howovar the Bank stin
considers separately some gqualitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly, such as, creditworthiness of counterparty which
has deteriorated.

As 3 back-stop when an asset becomes 30 days past aue (retuttable presumption), the Bank considers thal a signilicanl increase In cradit risk
has accurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, Le. the loss allowance is measured as Lhe lifetime ECL.

The angoing assessment af wnether a significant increase in cradit risk has occurred for revolving facifities is similar to olher lending praducts,
This is based an shifts in the customer's internal credit grade, but greater emphasis s also glven Lo qualitative factors.

3. Measurement of ECL

The calculation of ECLE, including the estimation of the expected peried of exposure and discount rate is made on an indlvidual basis for
corporate snd on & collective basis for refall products, The collective assessments are made separately for portfalios of Facilities with simitar
credil risk characteristics.

The key inpuls into the measurement of ECL are Lhe Tollowing;
(i) probabilily of delfaull (PO

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A defaull may oaly happen at a certain time over
the assecsed period, If the facility has not been previously derecegnised and is still in the portfolic. The concept of POs is further explained in
under measurement of ECL.

(i) loss given default (LGDK

The Loss Glven Default is an estimate of the Ioss arising in the case whera a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the ditference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expecl Lo receive, including trom the reallsation of any collateral, It 1s usually
exgressad as a percenlage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained measurement of ECL,

i) exposure al delault (EAD).

The Exposure al Default is an estimate of the expesure at a fulure defaull date, Laking into account expected channes in the expasure after the
reporting date, Including repayments of principal and fntarest, whether seneduled by contract ar otherwise, expected drawdeawns on committed
facilities, and acorued interest from missed payments. The EAB is further explained measurement of ECL.

These parameters are derived fram trusted external sources based on Internally develaped statistical models and other historical data. They are
adjusted to reffact farward-looking information as described above,

PD Estimates

PO estimates are estimates at a certain dats, which are calculated based on slatistical rating models, and assessed using rating 1oals laliored to
the various categories of counterparbies and esposures. These statistical models are based on Internally compiled data comprising both
guaniitative and gualilative factors, Where it is available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate counterparties, IFa
counterparty or exposure migrates between raling classes, then this will lead to & change in the eslimate of the associated PD. PDs are
estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates,

Retall, Corporate and SME PO models all use the loglstic regression Tramewark to model monthly default rates, For the differsnt segments,
difterent features including macra-acaonamic variables have been chosen for inclussion in the logit models based on Lhelr statistical slgnificance in
explaining defaults as well as intuitiveness ol e coellicients.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Credit risk (cont'd)

Credit risk assessment (cont’d)
3, Measurement of ECL {cont'd)
PD Estimates (cont'd)

For banks, external defaull data from Standard & Poor's (S&P) is used. The PD models convert the through-the-cycle transition matrices cand
TTC Default rates) from Standard & Poor's into point-in-lime estimates that reflect economic conditions observed at reparting dale, The forward
looking facior s quantifisd by a scalar lacter arrived by a difference I twa economic reqressions (with Macroeconomic variables and witheut
Macroeconomic variables),

For soverslgns, historical default rates from Moody's is used together with correlated Giohat MEVs. The average | Z2-month rating transilion
matrix is converled into point-n-time (RIT) transition matric using the Vasicak Translarmation,

LeD

LGD s the magnilude of the ikely loss | there Is 2 default, The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of clains
against defsuited counterparties as well as cure rates. The LGD modeis consider the structure, collateral, senjority of the claim and recovery
costs ol any collateral thal is integral ta the financial asset. LGD estimates are recalibrated lor different economic scenarios and, lor real estate
landing. to reflect possible changes in properly prices, They are calculated on a discounied cash flaw basis using the effective interest rate as
the discounting factor,

Relail, Corparate and SME LGD model uses the work-out LGD framewark, In (his methodoiogy, LGO estimates are based on the histaricsl data
after discounting the cash flows (of the conlracts in defaull) that are recorded through the recovery & woriout stage at the reference time. Two
passible outcomes are considered: Cure (Facility defaults, bul goes back to active without loss, LGD close to zera) and Mo cure (Facility defaults,
does not cure, LGO between O% and 100%). A logit moda s fitted to the work-oul LG and the dilferent Teatures lor inclusian in the maasl are
chosen based on their statistical significance as well as the intuiliveness of the coelficients.

For-banks and sovereign exposures, in (he absence of internal data, Basel F-IRE unsecured recavery rates for senlor claims are used for the LGD
parameter,

EAD

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a dofault, The Bank derives the EAD fram the current exposure to the counterparty and
potential changes Lo the current amount allowed under the contract Including amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross camying
amaunt. For lending commitments and financial quarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well 35 potential future ameunts that may
be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on histoslcal eboervations and forward-lonking ferecasts. For some financial assets,
EAD is determined by modeling the range of possible exposure outcomes ab various points in time using scenario and statistical techniques. As
described abave, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month FD for financlal assets for which credit risk has nat significantly Increasad, the
Bank measures ECL cansidering the risk of default aver the maximum contractual pering including any barrower's extension aplions) over
which it is expased Lo credit risk, even if, for risk management purposes, the Bank cansiders a longer peried. The maximum coniractual period
exlends Lo lhe dale ai which the Bank nas the right to require repayment of an advance or lerminate a foan commilment or quarantoe,

However, for |oans with & funded compenent, the Bank measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual period il the Bank's
contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment daes not limit the Bank's exposure to credit losses to the
cantraclual notice period, These facllifies do not hove 2 fixed term or repayment structure and are managed on a coliective basis. The Bank can
cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual right Is nol enforced in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Bank
hecomes awara of an increase in credit risk at the facility level, This longer perind (s estimated taking into account the credit risk managament
actions thal the Bank expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL, These include & reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility andfor
turning the oulstanding balance into a loan with fized repayment terms,

For corporates, segmentation has been dong based on local and cross-border categorles with credit rating as internal varlable, SME has been
modelied separalely with industry ana line of business as internal parameters. Relail on the olher hand has been segmented at a product level
with difierent internal parameters such a5 menth-on-book and line of business as sulted by the madels,

Revalving products use segment specific (Relail, SME, Corparale) credit conversion factors (CCF) to project EAD values, Amortising products
use an amorlising schedule, where the expected cash flows frem the Bank's IT system are used Lo project EAD values at each poinl-in-time.

With the exception of credil cards and other revalving facliities, for which the treatment is separately set out telow, the maximum period for
which the credil losses are delermined s the contractual life of a financial instrument unless the Bank has the legal right ta call it earlier,

Loan commitments and letters of eredit: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn 1oan commiiments, 1he Bank estimates the expected pactinn at
the loon commitment that will be drawn down over its expected |ife. The ECL Is then based on the present valus of the expected shartialls in
cashilows if the lean is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalis are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn commilment, ECLs are calculated and presented together with
the jean., For loan commilments and letters of credit, the ECL Is recognisad within ather llabiiities,
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37, RISK MANAGEMENT {(CONT'D)
b Credit risk {conl'd)
(i} Credit rizk assessment (cant'd)
3. Measurement of ECL {conl'd)

Finencial guaraniee contracis: The Bank's lability under each guaraniee s measured al the higher of the amount initially recognised |ess
cuimulative amortisatlon recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and the ECL pravision. For this purpose, the Bank estimates ECLs based
on the present value of the sxpected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it ingurs. The shortlals are discounted by the risk-
adjusled interest rale relevant {o the exposure. The ECLs relaled (o financlal guarantee contracts are recognised within ather Habiities,

Credit cards and olher revolving facilities; The Bank's product offering inchudes a varlety of corporate and retall overdraft and credit cards
facilifios, in which the Bank has the right to cancel andfor reduce the facliities with one day's notice, The Bank doas not limit its exposure to
credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, Instead calculates ECL over a period Lhet reflects the Bank's expectations ol the cuslomer
behaviaur, its likelihood of defaull and Lhe Bank's lulure risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the laciiities. in
the case of credit cards, the most significant judgement is o reflact the operational practice of card reissuance and the assoclated credit
assessment as enabling a formal re-origination trigger. As a consequence, a capped |lfetime approach of 12 months is used on credit card and
averdrait balances.

Individually assessed allowances

The Bank determines the allowances to be appropriate for each facility assessed on an individual basis. ltems considersd when determining
allowance amounts include the sustainability of the counterparty's busingss plan, 1S abiilty to improve performance once a financial aifficutty
has arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should bankruptey ensue, the avallahility of other financial suppart, the
realisable value of collateral and the timing of the expected cash flows, The impairment losses are evalualed al each reporting date, unless
unforeseen circumstances require more carelul attention,

Regulatory pravision

Requlatory provision |s conducted in accordance with the Bank of Mauritivs Guideline on ‘Credit Impairment Measurement and Income
Recognition (April Z0L6)' and’ Addilional Macroprudential Measures For [he Banking Sector (January 2015) which require the Bank to take a
mimimum pertfolio provision of 1% on standard credils and an additional portfolio provision as a macroprudential policy measure ranging
belween 0.5% lo 1% depending on the sectors, The stage | and 2 provision on loans and advances was higher than the minimum portiolio
prowision,

Collateral valuation

To mitlgate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank seeks to use collateral, where passitle, The callakeral comes in various torms, such as
cash, securities, istters of credit/guarantses, real astate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assels and credit eshancements such as
netting agreements. The Bank’s accounting policy for collateral assigined Lo it through its lending arrangements under (FRS 9 is the same is it
was under 1AS 39, Collateral, uniess repossessed, is not recorded on the Bank's statement of financiol pasitlan. However, the fair value of
coliateral affects the calowiation of ECLs. 1t 15 generally assessed, al a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarlerly basis. However,
some coliateral, for example, cash or securifies refating to margining reguirements, is valved daily.,

To lhe extent possible, the Bank uses active markel dala for valulng financial assals held as collateral, Other financial assets which do not have
readily delesminable market values are valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, |s valued based on data provided by
third parties such as mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Collateral repossessed

The Bank's padicy is to determine whether & repossessed assel can be best used for its internal operations or should be sold, Assels determinged
to be uselul for Lhe internal cperations are transferred bo their relevanl asset categary al the lower of thekr repossessed value or the carrying
value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are tramsferred to assets held for sale at their
fair value {if financial assets) and falr value less cost to sedl for non-financial assets at the repessession date in, line with the Bank's policy,

In its mormal course of pusiness, the Bank does aot physically repassess properties ar sther assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external
agents ta recover funds, generally &t auction, to settie outstanding debl. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result
ol this practice, the residential properfies under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the statement of flinancial position,
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37, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk {cont'd)

(i) Credit risk assessment (cont'd)
4, IModifled financial asset

The contractual lerms of a loan may be modified lor a number of reasons, Including changing market conditions, customer retention and olher
factors nol related to a cusrent ar potential credit deterioration of the customer, An existing loan whose terms have been madified may be
derecoqnised and the reneqgotiated loan recognised as & new loan at fair valuo.

When the terms ol a financial assel are modified and the modiflcation does not result in gerecegnition, the determination of whnether the assets
Credil risk has increased significantly rellects camparison of:

=it5 remaining lifetime PO at the reporting date based on the modified lerms; with

- ive remaining lifetime PO estimated based on data at inllfal recognition and the original contractual terms.

The Bank renegoliates loans to customers in linancial difficuities bo maximise coliection opporiunities and minimise the risk of defaull. Under
this poficy, renegotiation s parfermed on a sefective basis if the deblor is currently in delault on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, thare
Is evidence that this debtor made all reasonable efforts Lo pay undoer the orlginal terms and the debtar is sxpected to be able to mest the revised
terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing ol nterest payments and amending (he lerms of loan covenants.
Bath retall and corparate loans are subject lo renegotiation palicy, For financlal assels madified, the estimate of PD refiects whether the
medification has impraved or restored the Bank's abillty lo collect interest and principal based on the Bank's previous experience on simiiar
renegotialion,

Generally modilieatian of linancial assets is a qualitative Indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and may constitute svidence that the
exposure is credit-impaired! in default, A customer needs to demanstrate consistently good payment behaviour over a period of time, as
prescrived by BOM guidelines on Credit impalement Measurement and Income Recognilion (see below) before the exposure s ne longer
considered to be credit-impaired, in default or the PD s considered to have decreased such that the loss allewance reverts to being measurad at
an amount equal bo lifetime ECL,

Wherg the restructuring occurs prior to the classification of a loan as Impalred, the restructured koan s classified as impaired when, in the
aggregate, the perlod of Hime the loan is in arrears before and aller restructuring is 90 days or more,

Where the restructuring occurs after 8 oan has been dassilled as impaired, [he restructured loan |s continuen 1o be elassified as impaired unti
repayments have been received by the Bank, in amount and in such stipulated time, for a contineaus period of six months, striclly in accardance
with the terms and condilions of the restructured Isan.

Where the loan has been restructured more than once, the restructured loan shall continue to be classifien as impaired until repayments have
been received by the financial instilutions In ameoun! and in such stipulated time, lor a continuous period of ning manths, ot a minimum, strictly
in accardance with the terms and conditions of the restructured loan.
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3T, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
b Credit risk {cant'd)
{iiiy Collateral and other credit enhancements

The use of credit risk mitigants-is an integral part of the credit rigk management process and is documented in the Bank Credit Risk policy. The amount and
type of coliateral réquired depend on the counterparty's credit qualily and repaymenl capacily, The grincips collaieral lypes taken inglude:

‘Fixed / 1leating charge on assels of borrowers;

- Medge of deposits [ securilies [ IiTe insurance policy f shares,
Governmen! quarantee | bank guaraniee [ corporate guarantee J personal guaranies;
Lign on wehiche; and

= Letter of comlart:

The Bank halds collateral and ather credlt enhancement against certain of s oredil expasure. The following table sets out the principal types of collateral heid
against difforent types of financial assels,

S S 31 December 31 December 31 December P"L""'I’:'t ":’
e S 2021 2020 2019 R
3 —_heid
MUR® 000 MUR' 000 MUR* 000
Fund-based exposures: =g
Cash and cash eniivalants 37,563,112 14,208:901 12,874,367  Unscoured
Mandatory balances with central bank 11,203,833 | 9.749.384 9,326,006  Unsecured
Loans to-gnd placements with banks 843,079 3,150,745 5,199,057 Unsécured
Derivative financial instruments 579,946 174, 78S 889,301  Unsecured
vl L Rosidential
Loans ang advances to non-nank customers 109370271 110,475,581 106,792,076 2 '
Inwestment securities 119427.219 93376566  T3.483.267  Unsecured
Other assels 535,827 | 533,302 626,541 Lnsecoved
| e |

Mon-fund based exposures: !
Acceplances, guarantees, |etters of credit,
endorsements and olher abligations on account | Residentlal
ol customers 11,114,874 %.391,316 8,333,897 property
Credit commitments 11,474,814 10,851,199 11,675,375 Unsecured

In addition Lo the collater ai Included In the table above, Ihe Bank holds olhar types of collateral and eredit enhancements, such as second charges and floating
charges for which specific values are nol generally avallable.

There was nochange In the Bank's collateral policy during the year_

(iv} Agelngof loans and advances that are past due but not impaired:
31 Decomber 31 Decembar 31 December

2021 2020 2019
MURIO00 MUR' Q00 MUR' 000
Up to 1 month | 130,071 135,068 163,012
Ovar | month and up bo 3 monlhs 490,212 502,055 346,884
' 620,283 841,123 509,895

Unider the Bank's monllaring procedures, a significant increase in cradil risk is idenlilied belore the exposure has delaulled, and at the lalest when the
exposure bacamaes 30 days past due. The lable below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of receivables by past due staius;

31 December 2021 31 Deceniber 2020 31 December 2019
sCarrying Loss Allowance  Gross Carrying Lioss Gross Carrying Loss

Amount Allowance Amonl Allpwance

MUR' 000G LR D0 MUR' Q00 MUR" 000 MUR' DOD
(30 days (51age 1) 651,183 79,391,628 711750 74,249,255 651,581
31-89 days (Stage 2) 1455001 18,743,944 961423 22,224,928 1,662,596
Tatal 2,106,194 58,141,772 L673471 96,474,193 2.314.187
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RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Credlt risk (cant'd)

Impalred Mnancial assets

Loans and advances are assessed for impaiment when objective evidence, such as delaull ar delinguency im interest or principal payments, signiflcant
financial difficulty of the counterparty or avidence that tha borrower will enter bankrupley or financial re-organisation, which indicate that the account may be

Impaired.
The carrying amount af mpaired financial assots and specific aliowance held are shown below:
31 Decebet 31 Decomber 31 December

2021 2020 2019
MUR! 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000
Loans and advances (Note &c) 10,883,354 12,333,808 10,317.884
Specific allowance held n respect of impaired advances (hote 8c) 9,347,876 9,763,881 5,452,485
Fair value of collaterais of impairea advances 1.m 2,951,380 4,956,827

Credil concentration of risk hy industry sectars

Tetal sutstanding credit facilities, net of deposits where there §s & right ol sel off, including guarantees, acceptances, and olher similar commitmenis extended
by the Bank o any one custemer or group of elosely relaled customers lor amounls aggregating maore than 104 ol iis caplial base, classilion by indusicy
sachars:

31 December 31 December 31 Decombar

2024 2a19

Farttaile MUR' 400 KUR' 000

Agriculture 3,227,632 3,858 712
Traders B.042.135 7.BB3415
Re=al estate 5.704.924 5,150 442
Transpart 1.825.9%95 4,012,762
Tatirism B,389.473 6,758,321
Financial services 1,748,745 12,870,411 6,873,501

31,011,675 40,060,570 34,538,154

Offsetting linancial Instruments
Loans and advances 10 cUsiomars

The Dank holds cash collaleral and markotable securities Lo miligale the cred)t risk of securities lending,
Derivative financial instiuments

The Bank enters into derivatives bilaterally under International Swaps and Durlvallves Association (SDA) master netting agreements; 1SD4 Master Netting
agreements give either party the legai right of offset on fermination of the contract or on defaull of Ineether party, The Bank executes a credit support annex
in conjunction with each ISDA sareement. which reguires the Bank and each countorparly to post collateral to mitigate credil risk. Collateral |s alzo posted as
perterms of Cradil Supgort Annex (CSA) In respect of derivalives transacted an exchanges.

Lbeyitldity rish

Linuiity risk 4 the potential earnings velatility arising from beng unable (o fend assels al reasonable rales over reguired maturities. The Bank ensures that
sufficient (inuidity Is maintained to fund its day-to-day eperations, meel deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements. Liguidity risk is managed by selting
prudential limits on maturity mismatches, Higuid assets ratios, concentration of depesits by type and by entity, Liquidity gap analysis is used 1o measure and
maonitar the mismalches by lime buckel and currency under reabistic and siress scenarios,
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SBM BANK (MAURITIUSILTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 A3.

37, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

d
M

Market risk (coni'd)

Inferest rate risk {cont'd)

Interesi rate benchmark reform

As fisted in nole 2, the Bank has nen dervatlve financial instruments and fair value hedge relatipnsnins atiected by the interest rate benchmark retarm,

Thi Bank has closely monitored the market and the cutput from the warious industry working groups managing the transitien Lo new benchmark interest rates.
This Includes announcement s made by the IBOR reguistars, The Minancial Conduct Authority (FCA) has confirmed that 2l LIBOR settings wiil either cease to be
provioded by any admiristratar of no longer be represeniative:

* immediately after 31 December 2021, In the case of all Sterling, Eurn, Swiss frane and Japanese yen sellings, and the 1-week and 2-month US dollar
+ Immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the remaining US dollar seltings

In respanse to the announcemants, the Bank has set up an IBOR Transttion Warking Grawp comprising of the follawing work streams: risk Risk Managament,
Treasury, Legal, Credil Services Unit, &ssat and Liabllity Team, Finance and IT Team, The working group reporting to the Executive Forum was chalred by Lhe
Acting Chief Risk Otticer,

Risks arising lrom the Inferest rate benchmark reform
Thee Toll owing are the koy risks far |he Bank arising from the iransition:

Interest rabe basis risk: If the bilateral negotiations with the Bank's counterparties are nol successfully concluded belare (he cessatlon of LIBORs, there are
significant uncertainties with regard to the interest rate that would apply,

Liguldity risk: There are fundamental differences between LIBORS and the various slternative benchimark retes which the Bank will be adopiing. LIBORS are
lorward-inaking term rates published for a period (2.9, 3 months) al the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit spread, wherias alternative
Benchmark rates are typleally risk-ires overnight rates published at the end of the overnight period with no embedded credii spread. These differences wil
result in acditional uncertainty regarding fleating raie interest psyments whict will require additional Fguidgity management.

Other aperational risks 1o which the Bank |s exposad Incluge wpdating of cantraclual terms, updating of systems thal use IBOR curves and revislon of
operational controls related to Lhe reform and regulatory risks.

Pragress fowards impiamentation of alternative benchmark inleres! rates
Al newly transacted fhoating rate financial assets and liabilities as fram 1 January 2022 will be linked fo an alternative benchmark rate as follows:

Currency Mew rates

uso Term SOFR {1m, Im, and &m)
GHF Dally SONIA

EUR EURIBOR <1m, 3m and m}

The Bank"s {eam is currently focusing on converting existing contracts in EURQ and GBP. Thereafler, the Bank will addrass the USD expesuras.

The Bank s planning to transition the majority of its LIBOR-inked contracts to allernative rates through amendments ol exlsling conlracls. There are no
changes made In existing contracts-at 31 December 2021, The amendments are expected to be mplemented as from 1 January 2022,

Interest rate benchmark transition for non-dertvative financlal instruments

Mon derivative financlal Instrument prior to \imturing i Nominai Total naminal Hedge Transklon progeess
transitlon 9 currency (MUR) accounting

Floating rate financial assets FENY'O00 MUR' 000
L d advances t s link

oaEn and ai ces o tustomers linked Lo Bolween 2022 and 2034 163,606 B,085.641 /B Expected to transition bo EURIBOR
EURD in guarker March 2022
L i

oan and afvances o customers linked ta i PP Ak DLDG 17.529 1,031,385 N/A Expected to transition to SOMIA in
GEP quarter March 2022

Loan and advances Lo cuslomers finked to Transition discussions in progress

132,111 5754117 M

Usp Belwesn 2022 and 2031
L rd adw: ust inked L el
U::n E] ANCES [o CUstomers ln “ 17,196 748,958 In fairvalue

Belween 2024 and 2033 hedge

Expecied (o transition to SCFR by
ST.024 2,483,691 NiA 20
Traging assets (USD) Up lo Mareh 2034 dune 2023
Floating rate lnanclel llabilities
Term deposits linked to LSO Between 2022 and 2030 4165 137 e Z Transitioned in January 2022
Term dposits finked to EURD Between 2022 and 2026 e AR * Transiioned in January 2022
Tal 45,966 -

Term deposits linked lo GOP Between 2022 and 2025 Transitioned in January 2022



SEM BANK (MAURITIUS)LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 a4,

37, RISK MANMAGEMENT {CONT'D)

d
)]

Market risk {cant’d)

Interest rate risi (cont'd)

Interest rate benchmark refarm (cont'd)

Interest rate benchmark transition for gerlvatives and hadge refationshing

The Bank has in lssuz fixed rale financial instruments witleh were In a talr yadue hedge using fixed to floating interest rale swap (IRS) contracts;

Finaneial Instrument IRS contracts

Loan and advances Lo cusiomers (Euro [xed

rate) Fixed o floating 3 mths Eurp EURBOR
Bonds Flzed to lloaling LS50 SOFR

Doposils (USD fiked rate) Fized to fioating & mtns USD LIBDR

The Bank have not yel fransitioned the interest rate swaps to allernative risk-free rate, which would be &5 per 504 Protocol, However, the Phasa 1
amendments permit continuation of hedge accounting even i in the future the hedged benchmark interest rate f5 no longer considerad to De separately

For Bank's derivalives with nominal ameunt MUR 2.5 billion that reference to USD LIBOR maturing wp te March 2034 bub were net designated in hedge
relationshigs, the International Swaps and Derlvatives Associalion's (ISDA) fallback clayses were made availabie in the first guarter ol 2021 and the Bank has
stgned up to the protocod, alang with each of the Bank's counterparties. This ensures all legacy Irades will, on cessation of IBOR, follow the faliback clause
pravided i ihe protocal,

The Bank will continue to apply he amendments (o IFRS 94145 39 untll the uncertainty arlsing from the interest rate benchmark refarms with respect Lo the
liming and the amount of the ungeriying cash Hows Inat the Bank is exposes ends. The Bank sxpects this uncertainty will continue until the Bank's conlracls
that reference LIBORS are amended to specify the aate an which the interest rate benchmark will be replaced, the basis o Whe cash llews of the alternative
benchmark rate are delermined Including any fixed spread.
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SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 89,

37. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

d
i

{iv)

Market risk (cont'd)
Currency rlsk {cont'd)
Walue-at-Risk Analysis

The Bank uses Value-al-Risk (VAR) to estimate the polential foreign exchange loss arising frem adverse movemenls in an
ordinary market enviranment. To calculate VAR, the Bank uses the historical methad which assumes thal historical changes in
market values are representative of future changes, The VAR Is based on the previous 12 months data. The Bank calculales
VAR using 10 days halding period and an expected lail-loss methodalogy, which approximates a 99% confidence level, This
wolld mean that anly once in every 100 trading days, the Bank would expect to incur losses greater than the VAR estimates, or
about two to three times a year, The use of 10 days holding perlod and a one-year historical abservation period are in line with
the Basel Il recommendation,

The Bank's VAR amaunted ta:
31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019
MUR' DOO MUR' 000 MUR' 0D
Minirmum for the year 393 487 764
Maximum for the year 24,032 7.608 11,027
Year end 2,834 1,495 2,933

Equity price sentivity analysis

The Bank is exposed to equily price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for strategic rather than
far trading purposes and the Bank does not actively trade in these investments. Changes In prices / valuation of these
investments are reflected in the statement of comprehensive inceme, except for impafrment lasses which are reported in the
statement of profit or loss. Changes in prices of held-for-trading investments are reflected in the statement of profit or loss,

A 5% Increase [n the price of equities held at the reporting date would have resulted In an unrealised gain to the statement of
comprehensive income or statement of profit or loss as reflected below. & 5% decrease would have resulted in an equivalent
loss being booked.

31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2019
MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 00D
Statement of other comprehensive income 343 220 171
Statement of profit or loss - . =
. 343 220 171

Accounting policies

Details af the accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basls on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of eaeh class of financial asset and financlal liability and equity
Instruments are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements (accounting policies).



SEM BANK (MAURITIUSI LTD
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 90.

38. OTHER RESERVES

Fair vaive through other comprehensive income reserve

This reserve comprites fair valoe movements recognised on fair value Lhrough olher comprehensive income financlal aszets,

Forefgn currency transiation reserve

The nel translation reserve bs used 1o record exchange ditfersnces arfsing Iram the transtation of financlal statements of forelgn eperations,
Statutory reserve

This reserve roprasents transfars lrom retained earnings In accordance with the Banking Act 2004, A sum squal to not less than 15% of the
profit for the year Is transferred each year unlll the balance is-equal to the amount pald as stated capital.

Property revaluatlen reserve

The nel progerly revalualion reserve is used to record incresses in the falr value of fand and buikings thet of deferred tax on the revatusd
ass=l) and decreases Lo the extent that such decreases ralates to 40 Increase an the same asset previousty recognisad In equity.

31Dpeomber | 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 za19
MUR! 000 MU DO MUR 000

Statutory reserve m 400,000 400,000
Fair vale resarve on linancial instruments ﬁﬂi-‘} 1,242,935 283,401
Propest revaluation reserve 1,255,899 1,303,607 1,350,561

1,653,685 2,946,542 2,033,962

3%, MATURITY AMALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES )
31 December 2021
! Current Mon current Total

ASSETS | MUR'DOO MUR'000 MUR' 000
Cash and cash vquivalont | 40,281,422 =x 40,281,422
Mandalgry balances with central banks 11,203,833 - 11,203,833
Loans to and placements wilh banks ; 837,970 837 970
Deerivative linancial instruments _ TE,675 _’fﬂ_ﬂ-.a.ﬂ- i - 579,946
Loans and advances te nen-bank cuslomers 17,711,062 BO,205,138 57,916,200
[nvestment securities 41,349,965 78,049,370 119,399,335
Praperty and equipment - i 3.’1:;9;1!7_ 3,019,187
Right-of-use assers - 212,037 212,037
Intangible assels - 1,816,509 1,816,509
Deferrad |ax assets ol = 518,443 m.m
Olher assels THT, 947 —— TH7.947
Total assats | 111409904 165,162,925 276,572,829
LIABILITIES |
Degosits from banks | vamese - 1,481,854
Deposlts rom non-bank customers | 237,260,068 4,268,760 241,528,828
Other barrowed funds 4,417,138 B58,264 5,275,400
Derivative financial Instruments 113,857 451,798 565,655
Lease liability | 105,997 78,668 1B4,685
Current tax fahilitizs [ 307,887 - 307,887
Pension llanility I . 395,928 395,928
Other lisbilities 6,249,910 : £:245,910 |

Total liabilities 243,936,709 6,053,4 418 255,990,127



SEM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 o1.
30, MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D]
31 Decamber 2020
Ciurrent Nan current Talal
ASSETS MUR'" G:00 MURY (00 MUR' 000
Cash and tash equivalents 18,749,335 . 18,749,335
Mandalory balances with central banks 9,749,384 # 9,749,384
Loans to and placements with banks 2,293,197 B37,190 3,130,387
Derivative linancial instroments 556, T34 218,051 774,785
Loans and advances Lo monrbank Cusiomirs 17483008 81,555,429 a4 018 527
Investment securities £9. 790,165 63,547,881 93,338,046
Property and equipmant . 2,582,331 2582,331
Right-of-rse assets + 255.603 255,603
Intangible assels . 2,145,280 2,145,280
Defersred Lax assels - 497,123 497,123
Other assits 706,889 = T06,8809
Total assets 77,328,802 151,638, 888 228 967,690
LIABILITIES
Deposits rom banks 1119661 E 1,119,661
Depaosits from non-bank custamirs 187,352,961 2,651,309 190,004,270
Othar borrowed funds £,080,167 5,005, T84 11,085,951
Derivalive financial instruments 76,129 349,142 1,165,271
Lease labality 74,537 159,053 233,550
Current Lax Habifities 246,774 % 246,774
Pension [ability * 724,082 724,082
Other labilitles A,591,660 . 4,591,660
Total liabilities 200,241, 089 B,929,370 208,171 259
A1 Decembar 2019
Current Hon current Tatal

ASSETS MUR' 000 MLR' OO0 MUR 000
Cash and cash equivalents 15,386,839 = 15,386,599
Mandalory balances wilh central banks 3,326,006 . 9,326,006
Loars to and placements with banks 4,121,661 1,052 427 5,174,088
Derivative fingnclal inslruments T24. 070 165,231 ag9. 301
Loans and advances Lo non-bank customers 18,440,739 80,584,665 99,025,404
Invastment securities 28,740,387 44,719,744 T3.460,131
Proaparty and equipment . 2,599,568 2,599 568
Right-of-use assets - 24T 166 247168
Intangitde assels = 2,526,156 2.526.156
Dofarred Lax assels . 219,302 219,302
Okher aszels 791,859 = 781,859
Taotal assets T7.531.621 132,114,261 204,645 882
LIABILITIES
Doposits Irom banks 929,357 = 929,357
Depaosits [rom non-kank customens 168,384,525 4,874,177 173,258,702
Other borrowed Tunds 6,966,542 3,173,673 14,140,215
Darivative linancial instiruments 543,748 457 224 1,000,972
Lease Habilily £, B4 173,531 240,180
Current tax labilikies 487,139 " 487,139
Pansian lability s 334,005 334,005
Diher labifities 5,190,076 % 5,190,076
Total linbilities 182, 568,016 9,012,610 191,580,646
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